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TENTATIVE AGENDA 
RAYTOWN BOARD OF ALDERMEN 

APRIL 10, 2018 
REGULAR SESSION NO. 25 

RAYTOWN CITY HALL 
10000 EAST 59TH STREET 

RAYTOWN, MISSOURI  64133 
 

OPENING SESSION 
7:00 P.M. 

Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
Roll Call 
 
Proclamations & Presentations 

 
 A Proclamation recognizing National Telecommunicator Week 
 Swearing in of Police Officer Tristan Richards 

 
Public Comments 
Communication from the Mayor 
Communication from the City Administrator 
Committee Reports 
 
 

STUDY SESSION 
 

2016-2017 Audit Presentation 
Mize Houser & Company, P.A. 

 
 

LEGISLATIVE SESSION 
 

1. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Board of Aldermen and will be 
enacted by one motion without separate discussion or debate.  The Mayor or a member of the Board of Aldermen 
may request that any item be removed from the consent agenda.  If there is no objection by the remaining 
members of the board, such item will be removed from the consent agenda and considered separately.  If there is 
an objection, the item may only be removed by a motion and vote of the board. 
 

Approval of the Regular March 20, 2018 Board of Aldermen meeting minutes. 
 
REGULAR AGENDA   
 

NEW BUSINESS 
             

2. R-3076-18: A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF 
ALDERMEN TO THE POSITION OF ACTING PRESIDENT FOR A TERM OF ONE 
YEAR OR UNTIL A SUCCESSOR IS APPOINTED.   Point of Contact:  Teresa Henry, 
City Clerk. 

 
Proclamations and Presentations 
 
 A Proclamation of appreciation to Aldermen Jason Greene for his service as Acting 

President of the Board of Alderman during 2016-2017. 
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OLD BUSINESS 
 
3. SECOND READING:  Amended Bill No. 6463-18, Section III-A-9.  AN ORDINANCE 

CALLING AN ELECTION IN THE CITY OF RAYTOWN, JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI 
TO BE HELD ON THE 7TH DAY OF AUGUST, 2018 FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
SUBMITTING A QUESTION TO THE QUALIFIED VOTERS OF THE CITY OF RAYTOWN 
TO INCREASE THE GENERAL PROPERTY TAX RATE FOR ALL SUBCLASSES OF 
PROPERTY TO $1.00 PER ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS OF ASSESSED VALUATION IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH STATE LAW, PRESCRIBING THE FORM OF BALLOT TO BE USED 
THEREAT, SETTING OUT THE FORM OF NOTICE OF SAID ELECTION AND DIRECTING 
ITS PUBLICATION.   Point of Contact:  Tom Cole, City Administrator. 

 
4. SECOND READING:  Amended Bill No. 6464-18, Section III-A-9.  AN ORDINANCE 

AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING SUBMISSION AT THE PRIMARY ELECTION TO BE 
HELD ON AUGUST 7, 2018 TO THE QUALIFIED VOTERS OF THE CITY OF RAYTOWN, 
MISSOURI THE QUESTION OF WHETHER THE CITY SHALL IMPOSE A MOTOR FUEL 
FEE TO BE USED TO FUND THE CONSTRUCTION, RECONSTRUCTION, 
MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, AND SIGNING OF ROADS AND STREETS AT THE RATE OF 
TWO CENTS ($0.02) PER GALLON TO BE IMPOSED ON ALL MERCHANTS FOR THE 
SALE OF FUEL USED FOR PROPELLING MOTOR VEHICLES PURSUANT TO THE 
AUTHORITY GRANTED BY AND SUBJECT TO THE PROVISIONS OF ARTICLE IV 
SECTION 30(A) OF THE MISSOURI CONSTITUTION AND IMPOSING SUCH TAXES IF 
APPROVED BY THE QUALIFIED VOTERS VOTING THEREON.   Point of Contact:  Tom 
Cole, City Administrator. 

 
5. SECOND READING:  Amended Bill No. 6465-18, Section III-A-9.  AN ORDINANCE 

IMPOSING A USE TAX AT THE RATE OF TWO AND ONE-HALF PERCENT (2.5%) FOR 
THE PRIVILEGE OF STORING, USING, OR CONSUMING WITHIN THE CITY ANY 
ARTICLE OF TANGIBLE PERSONAL PROPERTY PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY 
GRANTED BY AND SUBJECT TO THE PROVISION OF SECTIONS 144.600 THROUGH 
144.761 RSMO; PROVIDING FOR THE USE TAX TO BE REPEALED, REDUCED OR 
RAISED IN THE SAME AMOUNT AS ANY CITY SALES TAX IS REPEALED, REDUCED, 
OR RAISED; AND PROVIDING FOR SUBMISSION OF THE PROPOSAL TO THE 
QUALIFIED VOTERS OF THE CITY FOR THEIR APPROVAL AT THE PRIMARY 
ELECTION CALLED AND TO BE HELD IN THE CITY ON AUGUST 7, 2018, AND 
PROPOSING THE FORM OF THE BALLOTS TO BE EMPLOYED AT SAID ELECTION 
AND DIRECTING THE CITY CLERK TO DO ALL THINGS CALLED FOR BY LAW IN 
CONNECTION WITH THE HOLDING OF SAID ELECTION.   Point of Contact:  Tom Cole, 
City Administrator. 

 
6. Amended R-3062-18: A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE 

PURCHASE OF A 2019 FREIGHTLINER M2 CHASSIS AND A ELGIN CROSSWIND 
REGENERATIVE AIR STREET SWEEPER FROM KEY EQUIPMENT OFF THE 
MISSOURI DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION COOPERATIVE PURCHASING 
CONTRACT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $250,000.00.   Point of Contact:  
Damon Hodges, Public Works Director. 

 
NEW BUSINESS (continued) 

 
7. FIRST READING:  Amended Bill No. 6466-18, Section V-A.  AN ORDINANCE 

AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING A CONTRACT FOR TRANSIT SERVICE BY AND 
BETWEEN THE KANSAS CITY AREA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY AND THE CITY 
OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $58,418.00 FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2017-2018.   Point of Contact:  Ray Haydaripoor, Community Development Director. 
 

8. R-3077-18: A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING AN ORGANIZATION 
RESOLUTION AND AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF RAYTOWN, 
MISSOURI AND UMB BANK, N.A.  Point of Contact:  Teresa Henry, City Clerk. 
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9. R-3078-18:  A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AMENDED FORMAL AND 
COMPREHENSIVE SCHEDULE OF FEES AND CHARGES FOR THE CITY OF 
RAYTOWN, MISSOURI RELATING TO FOOD TRUCKS AND LIQUOR.  Point of Contact:  
Missy Wilson, Interim Finance Director/Economic Development Administrator. 

 
10. R-3079-18:  A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AMENDED FORMAL AND 

COMPREHENSIVE SCHEDULE OF FEES AND CHARGES FOR THE CITY OF 
RAYTOWN, MISSOURI RELATING TO ANIMAL CONTROL.  Point of Contact:  Ray 
Haydaripoor, Community Development Director. 

 
11. R-3080-18:  A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AMENDED FORMAL AND 

COMPREHENSIVE SCHEDULE OF FEES AND CHARGES FOR THE CITY OF 
RAYTOWN, MISSOURI RELATING TO BUILDING AND CONSTRUCTION.  Point of 
Contact:  Ray Haydaripoor, Community Development Director. 

 
12. R-3081-18:  A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AMENDED FORMAL AND 

COMPREHENSIVE SCHEDULE OF FEES AND CHARGES FOR THE CITY OF 
RAYTOWN, MISSOURI RELATING TO PLANNING AND ZONING.  Point of Contact:  Ray 
Haydaripoor, Community Development Director. 

 
CLOSED SESSION 

 
Notice is hereby given that the Mayor and Board of Aldermen may conduct a closed 
session, pursuant to the following statutory provisions: 
 
610.021(3) Hiring, firing, disciplining or promoting of particular employees by a public 

governmental body when personal information relating to the performance or 
merit of an individual employee is discussed or recorded; and/or 

 
610.021(13) Individually identifiable personnel records, performance ratings or records 

pertaining to employees or applicants for employment. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Next Ordinance No.:  5565-18 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
 

 
 
 
 
Mayor and Board of Aldermen 
City of Raytown, Missouri 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Raytown, Missouri, as of and for the 
year ended October 31, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.   
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  These standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
of material misstatement.   
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.  
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Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the City of Raytown, Missouri, as of October 31, 2017, and the respective changes in 
financial position, and where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the general 
fund and the TIF fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion 
and analysis on pages 3 through 11, the schedule of funding progress on page 51, the schedule of the changes in 
net pension liability and related ratios on pages 52 and 54, the schedule of pension contributions on pages 53 and 
55 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information 
for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge 
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express 
an opinion or provide any assurance.  
 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the City’s financial statements as a whole. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and 
schedules as listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required 
part of the basic financial statements.  The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and 
schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying account and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated 
in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.  

 
Certified Public Accountants 
Lawrence, Kansas 
 
April 5, 2018 
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
Year Ending October 31, 2017 

Unaudited 
 
 

The management team for the City of Raytown, Missouri (the City) offers our readers this narrative overview 
and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2017. 
 
Finances for this City are multifaceted and quite complex. As such, management desires for this narrative to 
be informative beyond what is seen on the face of the statements and to discuss the financial activities of the 
City.  We hope you find these comments helpful as you read through them. 
 
Financial Highlights 
 
The assets and deferred outflows for the City of Raytown, Missouri (the City) exceeded its liabilities and 
deferred inflows at the close the 2016-2017 fiscal year by $11,565,080 (net position). 
 
The City’s total net position increased $118,014 when compared to 2015-2016. 
 
Governmental activities net position decreased $349,272 due to decreased value in aging assets and the use 
of current assets to cover insufficient revenue sources for operating costs. 
  
The largest single area of decreased liabilities was bonds payable, as the City continues to pay down debt 
while not taking on any new obligations. 
 
Business-type activities realized an increase in net position of $467,286 over year-end 2016. Similar to the 
Governmental activities, the City continues to decrease its Business-type long term obligations. 
 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis is provided as an introduction to the basic financial statements. The basic 
financial statements consist of three components: government-wide financial statements, fund financial 
statements, and notes to the basic financial statements. This report also contains required and other 
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements. 
 
Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are a broad overview of 
the City’s finances presented in a manner similar to a private business. These statements provide both long-
term and short-term information about the City’s overall financial status.   
 
The statement of net position presents all of the City’s assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred 
inflows with the difference reported as net position. Net position is an important measure of the City’s overall 
financial health. The increases and decreases in net position can be monitored to determine whether the 
City’s financial position is improving or deteriorating. 
 
The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the most 
recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the 
change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flow. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported 
in this statement for certain items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g. uncollected 
taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 
 
The government-wide financial statements report governmental activities of the City, which are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, and business-type activities of the City, which are 
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges. The governmental 
activities for the City include general government, parks and recreation, development and public affairs, public 
safety, and public works. The business-type activities for the City include the sanitary sewerage system. 
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
Year Ending October 31, 2017 

Unaudited 
 

 
Fund financial statements. Fund financial statements focus on individual parts of the City’s government.  These 
statements report the City’s operations in more detail than the government-wide financial statements.  A fund is a 
grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for 
specific activities or objectives. The City uses fund accounting to ensure compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. These funds are divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary 
funds. 
 
Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide 
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of 
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. This 
information may be useful in evaluating the City’s near-term financing requirements. 
 
The focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, thus it is 
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. This may enable the reader to better 
understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund 
balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances 
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 
 
The 2017 fiscal year budget saw the addition of the Storm Water fund.  The Board of Alderman approved the 
addition of this fund to the 2017 fiscal year budget on March 1st, 2016.  The dedicated source of funding for this is 
provided by a 25% split of the one-eighth of one percent local parks/storm water control sales tax.  All storm water 
related revenue and expenses will now be tracked in this fund.  Until additional revenue sources can be identified 
for funding the necessary storm water improvements, the General fund will have budgeted transfers to provide 
additional funds. 
 
Proprietary funds. There are two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the 
same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. Internal 
service funds are an accounting mechanism used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City’s 
various functions. The City currently does not use internal service funds. 
 
Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the 
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements, since the resources of 
those funds are not available to support the City’s operations. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like 
that used for proprietary funds. 
 
Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to obtain a 
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 
 
Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also 
contains certain required supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in the 
financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information that provides certain combining 
and individual fund statements and schedules. 
 
Government-wide Financial Analysis 
 
As indicated earlier, net position may serve as a useful indicator of the City’s financial position. The largest portion 
of the City’s net position, $35,303,117, reflects its net investment in capital assets (e.g., land, construction in 
progress, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure, net of related debt). The City 
uses capital assets to provide services to citizens; therefore, these assets are not available for future spending. 
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
Year Ending October 31, 2017 

Unaudited 
 
 
The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Position as of October 31, 2017 and 2016: 
 

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Current assets 18,790,452$  19,777,084$  4,466,163$    4,684,090$    23,256,615$  24,461,174$  
Noncurrent assets 30,562,586    32,017,438    14,637,251    15,196,576    45,199,837    47,214,014    
Deferred outflows of resources 5,221,474      2,971,908    60,757         46,058         5,282,231      3,017,966    

  Total assets and 54,574,512$  54,766,430$ 19,164,171$ 19,926,724$ 73,738,683$  74,693,154$ 

    deferred outflows of resources

Current liabilities 16,153,131$  14,499,147$  1,601,901$    1,959,433$    17,755,032$  16,458,580$  
Noncurrent liabilities 34,931,316    36,339,342    9,099,494      9,969,708      44,030,810    46,309,050    
Deferred inflows of resources 386,759         475,363       1,002           3,095           387,761         478,458       

  Total liabilities and 51,471,206$  51,313,852$ 10,702,397$ 11,932,236$ 62,173,603$  63,246,088$ 

    deferred inflows of resources

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 30,562,586$  31,971,602$  4,740,531$    4,497,009$    35,303,117$  36,468,611$  
Restricted 10,325,307    10,493,089    559,232         547,422         10,884,539    11,040,511    

Unrestricted [37,784,587]   [39,012,113]   3,162,011      2,950,057      [34,622,576]   [36,062,056]   

Total net position 3,103,306$    3,452,578$   8,461,774$   7,994,488$   11,565,080$  11,447,066$ 

City of Raytown
Condensed Statement of Net Position

Governmental Activities  Business-Type Activities Total

 
Net position may serve as a useful indicator of the City’s financial position. As of October 31, 2017, assets exceed 
liabilities by $11,565,080   
 
The City currently has deficit unrestricted net position related to governmental activities due to the economic 
development project on 350 Highway. In 2007, the City issued tax increment and sales tax revenue bonds in the 
amount of $39,990,000 to fund certain development project costs. Certain debt service payments are subject to 
annual appropriations, but not backed by the full faith and credit of the City. This obligation has resulted in the City 
recording the liability with no reportable capital asset. The City began paying principal payments on the bonds in 
2012 and currently holds $3,880,618 in a Debt Reserve Fund should pledged revenues fall short of debt service 
requirements. 
 
The City’s combined net position increased to $11,565,080 from $11,447,066 as a result of the year’s revenues 
exceeding expenses. 
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
Year Ending October 31, 2017 

Unaudited 
 
 
The following table reflects the revenues and expenses from the City’s activities for the years ended October 31, 
2017 and 2016: 
 

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Revenues:
 Program revenues:
  Charges for services 2,157,853$  2,701,033$  6,483,337$  5,810,166$  8,641,190$    8,511,199$    
  Operating grants and contributions 56,404         52,718         -                   -                   56,404           52,718           
  Capital grants and contributions -                   457,795       -                   -                   -                     457,795         

 General revenues:
  Property tax 1,732,356    1,763,434    -                   -                   1,732,356      1,763,434      
  Sales tax 8,121,535    8,060,190    -                   -                   8,121,535      8,060,190      
  Motor vehicle tax 1,197,862    1,165,513    -                   -                   1,197,862      1,165,513      
  Franchise tax 3,728,574    3,700,552    -                   -                   3,728,574      3,700,552      
  Intergovernmental activity tax 1,229,216    1,354,258    -                   -                   1,229,216      1,354,258      
  Other taxes 68,286         67,188         -                   -                   68,286           67,188           
  Miscellaneous 89,091         171,804       -                   -                   89,091           171,804         
  Investment earnings 338,950       440,634       289,361       310,940       628,311         751,574         
  Transfers [net] 1,186,107    1,177,862  [1,186,107]   [1,177,862]   -                     -                   

Total revenues 19,906,234  21,112,981 5,586,591  4,943,244  25,492,825    26,056,225  

Program expenses:
  General government 2,150,696    2,304,821    -                   -                   2,150,696      2,304,821      
  Parks and recreation 993,331       1,413,745    -                   -                   993,331         1,413,745      
  Community development 786,266       803,314       -                   -                   786,266         803,314         
  Public safety 8,598,824    9,088,652    -                   -                   8,598,824      9,088,652      
  Public works 6,010,428    5,937,113    -                   -                   6,010,428      5,937,113      
  Interest on long term debt 1,715,961    1,780,865    -                   -                   1,715,961      1,780,865      
  Sewer -                  -                 5,119,305  5,159,966  5,119,305      5,159,966    

Total expenses 20,255,506  21,328,510 5,119,305  5,159,966  25,374,811    26,488,476  

Increase [decrease] in net position [349,272]     [215,529]     467,286       [216,722]     118,014         [432,251]       

Net position, beginning 3,452,578    3,668,107  7,994,488  8,211,210  11,447,066    11,879,317  

Net position, ending 3,103,306$  3,452,578$ 8,461,774$ 7,994,488$ 11,565,080$  11,447,066$ 

TotalBusiness-Type ActivitiesGovernmental Activities

City of Raytown Changes in Net Position

 
 
Governmental Activities 
 
Governmental activities decreased the City’s net position by $349,272.  Revenues continue to decline even with a 
slight uptick of 1% in taxes collected.  The largest single revenue category for the City of Raytown remains sales 
taxes, which totaled $8,121,535 or 37% of total governmental revenue.  Sales tax revenues increased $61,344 or 
.8% compared to 2016.  The City saw a 20% reduction in charges for services revenues, this decrease was due 
to the closure of the Super Splash (City Pool), elimination of Jackson County Tax collection services, and write-
offs from uncollectible ambulance receivables.  Overall governmental activities revenue finished the year 
$1,206,747 below prior year.   
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
Year Ending October 31, 2017 

Unaudited 
 
 
Governmental activities expenses decreased $1,073,004 or about 5.1% for the fiscal year ended October 31, 
2017, compared to the fiscal year ended October 31, 2016.  This decrease was achieved through conscious 
efforts to streamline City expenditures.  All programs, excluding Public Works, which saw a 1% increase, were 
able to reduce expenses while providing a 2% cost of living wage increase.  
 
Revenues from governmental activities totaled $18,720,127 or 73% of the total City revenues. This represents a 
decrease of $1,214,992 compared to 2016. The main source of the decrease was due to sales tax revenues.  
 
Business-type Activities 
 
Total business-type activities are attributable to the sanitary sewer fund. In 2017, business-type revenues were up 
$643,347 or 13%, while expenses decreased $40,661 or .1% when compared to 2016. The increase in revenue is 
attributable to the 15% rate increase that took effect December 6, 2016.  In total, the Business-type activities 
experienced an increase in net position of $467,286. The City is continuing the Sanitary Sewer Evaluation Survey 
to determine the most efficient use of the sewer fund resources and will complete a sanitary sewer rate study in 
Spring of 2018 to provide to provide stability in funding the sewer treatment, infrastructure, and maintenance in 
current and future years. 
 
Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds 
 
Governmental Funds 
 
As of the end of the 2016-2017 fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds have a combined fund balance of 
$17,681,261, which represents a decrease of $816,848 over 2015-2016. 
 
General Fund 
 
The City met its City Resolution 2039-08 requiring a contingency reserve equal to 17% of total operating 
revenues. However, the City’s new leadership took notice of the deficit in the current and prior audit and diligently 
worked to align services with resources for the 2017-2018 budget.  Three revenue initiatives are being brought 
forward to the Board of Alderman and Citizens in 2018 to secure the City’s financial resolve and bolster Citizen 
services.  
 
The General Fund revenues and transfers in were $12,243,499 compared to $12,357,019 in 2016 which 
represents a decrease of $113,520 or .9%.  The decrease in revenues was due to elimination of Jackson County 
Tax collection services, and write-off of uncollectible ambulance receivables bringing ambulance fees down 21%.  
The City switched ambulance billing companies in September 2017 and is currently evaluating new collection 
agencies to improve recovery of outstanding ambulance fees going forward.   
  
General Fund expenditures, including transfers out, were $13,038,501 compared to $13,152,788 in 2016 which 
represents a decrease of $114,287 or .9%. A conscience effort of a reduction in expenditures were made as 
General Government reductions were $234,918 or 10.6%, and Public Works reductions were $271,253 or 9.3%.  
However, cost in Public Safety and Community Development rose a modest, 2.6% and 1.5% respectively. These 
overall reductions were achieved even with an authorized 2% cost of living increase. 
 
The fund balance of the General Fund decreased $795,002 during the fiscal year compared to an $795,769 
decrease in 2016. The ending fund balance of $5,096,224 well exceeds the City required reserve of 17%.  
However, utilizing the fund balance to support general operating costs is not feasible for the future of the City.  
Community service level decisions or additional revenue decisions are on the horizon. 
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
Year Ending October 31, 2017 

Unaudited 
 
 
Tax Increment Finance Fund 
 
The TIF Fund revenues were $3,149,408 compared to $3,097,109 in 2016, which represents an increase of 
$52,299. The increase of approximately 2% percent is attributable to increased sales tax revenue in the TIF 
districts. 
 
The expenditures were $3,180,763 compared to $3,059,535 in 2016 which represents an increase of $121,228 or 
4%. This increase was due to the scheduled increases in debt service payments associated with the 350 Highway 
Development and increased legal fees because of a dispute with the Raytown Fire District that was resolved in 
December 2017. 
 
The fund balance of the Tax Increment Finance (TIF) Fund decreased $31,355 during the fiscal year. As the debt 
payment schedule increases, the fund balance will be spent down unless additional development occurs to offset 
the escalating debt payment. 
 
Other Governmental Funds (Combined) 
 
Other Governmental funds represent multiple combined funds which include Park, Risk Management, Capital 
Improvements, Transportation Sales Tax, Capital Sales Tax, Public Safety Sales Tax, and Stormwater funds. 
These funds are combined for reporting purposes only. 
 
The other governmental funds combined revenues and transfers in were $5,022,593 compared to $5,510,574 in 
2016 which represents a decrease of $487,981 or 9%. This decrease was due primarily the closing of the Super 
Splash water park. 
 
Combined expenditures and transfers out for other Governmental Funds were $5,013,084 compared to 
$5,024,912 in 2016. This decrease of $11,829 or .2%.  It is important to note that Parks and recreation 
expenditures decreased $379,618 or 30.2% due to the closing of Super Splash water park.  The addition of the 
Storm Water fund increased Capital Outlay expenditures by $192,505 that previously were accounted in the 
general fund.  Public Safety also saw a $155,393 increase or 13.7%.  These increase off set the dramatic 
decrease in Parks and recreation expenditures. 
 
The combined fund balance of the other governmental funds increased $9,509 during the fiscal year. The primary 
reason for the increase is the delay of transportation projects and the 83rd Street Bridge replacement that will 
begin construction in Spring 2018. 
 
Proprietary Funds 
 
The City’s proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information found in the government-wide 
statements but in more detail. 
 
The Sanitary Sewer fund operating revenues were $6,483,337 in 2017 compared to operating revenues of 
$5,810,166 in 2016. The increase of $673,171 is directly related to a 15% rate increase.  The City sewer system 
is, for the most part, completely built out with very little opportunity for additional connections. Any variances in 
consumption and billing from one year to the next is related to how wet or dry the year is given that sewer billing is 
calculated off water usage. It can be expected that without growth or new industry that the overall trend in 
consumption will be down as household appliances become more efficient. 
 
The operating expenses were $4,643,122 in 2017 compared to $4,650,056 in 2016. The decrease of $6,934 in 
expenses is part cost saving measure through bringing all payment processing in house, the delay of the second 
phase of the sanitary sewer evaluation survey. 
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
Year Ending October 31, 2017 

Unaudited 
 
 
Transfers out include reimbursing the General Fund for its share of expenses directly related to the Sewer Fund 
but covered in the General Fund. 
 
This fund has a significant amount of non-operating revenues and expenses. This activity is primarily related to 
the City debt issuance for infrastructure improvements as part of the SRF 2007A bonds. All of the projects 
associated with this debt issuance have now been completed. 
 
The net position of the Sanitary Sewer fund at the end of the year increased $467,286. Due to the delay of the 
second phase of the sanitary sewer evaluation survey and a cost savings saving measure of processing all sewer 
payments in house.  A rate study is occurring in the Spring of 2018 to provide stability in funding the sewer 
treatment, infrastructure, and maintenance in current and future years. 

 
General Fund Actual to Budget Analysis 
 
Actual revenues and transfers in were $720,388 less than the final budget.  Actual expenditures and transfers out 
were $1,349,853 less than the final budget. The reduction in expenditures was distributed among several line 
items that came in significantly below budget. The following areas exceeded budgeted amounts for the year: 
 

 Governing Body exceeded budget by $36,420 or 32% 
 
These increases were attributable to reclassification of the general liability insurance for elected officials in the 
Governing Body versus City Wide. 
 
The following graph illustrates the City’s General Fund Revenues against Expenditures for fiscal years ended 
2007 through 2017: 
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As this graph illustrates, the City has had expenditures in excess of revenues in FY 2006-07 that had to be made 
up from the fund balance. In FY 2009-10, the City again had expenditures in excess of revenues primarily due to 
a planned spend down of fund balance for one-time projects and a minor operating subsidy. In 2010-11 the City 
once again had expenditures in excess of revenues that were primarily due to a transfer for a loan to an 
Improvement District. In FY 2011-12, through the fiscal year 2014-15, the City’s revenue exceeded expenditures.  
In FY 2015-16 and FY2016-17, expenditures exceeded revenues. 
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
Year Ending October 31, 2017 

Unaudited 
 
 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 
 
The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of October 31, 2017, 
amounts to $45,199,837 compared to $47,214,014 in 2016 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in 
capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, collections systems, machinery and equipment, and 
infrastructure. In 2017, the City purchased new equipment and completed various Storm Drain Improvements. 
 
The following table reflects the capital asset activity for the years ended October 31, 2017 and 2016: 
 

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Land 1,573,340$    1,573,392$    433,393$       433,393$       2,006,733$      2,006,785$      
Construction in progress 2,076,515      1,843,726      -                     -                     2,076,515        1,843,726        
Buildings and improvements 3,332,560      2,870,815      -                     -                     3,332,560        2,870,815        
Equipment and vehicles 2,870,894      3,110,873      92,860           147,967         2,963,754        3,258,840        
Infrastructure 20,709,277    22,618,632   14,110,998  14,615,216  34,820,275      37,233,848    

Total 30,562,586$  32,017,438$  14,637,251$  15,196,576$  45,199,837$    47,214,014$    

City of Raytown Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

 
For additional information on capital assets, see Note III.G. to the basic financial statements. 
 
Debt Administration 
 
At the end of fiscal year 2017, the City had a total of $46,707,720 of outstanding debt compared to $48,857,460 in 
2016. This was a decrease of $2,149,740 from the previous year. 
 
The following table reflects changes in the City’s long-term debt for the years ended October 31, 2017 and 2016: 
 

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Tax increment and sales tax
  revenue bonds (including premium) 34,173,901$  35,454,706$  -$                   -$                   34,173,901$  35,454,706$  
Revenue bonds (including premium) -                     -                     9,914,410      10,719,026    9,914,410      10,719,026    
Developer obligations 1,771,022      1,834,657      -                     -                     1,771,022      1,834,657      
Capital leases -                     45,836           -                     -                     -                     45,836           
Compensated absences 475,513         460,266         5,383             4,751             480,896         465,017         
Net OPEB obligation 352,791         324,689       14,700         13,529         367,491         338,218       

Total 36,773,227$  38,120,154$  9,934,493$    10,737,306$  46,707,720$  48,857,460$  

City of Raytown Long-Term Debt

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

 
The City received an S&P rating of A+ during its bond refinancing in 2014. 
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
Year Ending October 31, 2017 

Unaudited 
 
 

Requests for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide the reader with a general overview of the City’s finances. Questions or 
requests for more information concerning any of the information provided in this report should be directed to 
Briana Burrichter, Finance Director, Finance Department, City of Raytown, 10000 E 59th Street, Raytown, MO 
64133. 
 
 



 

Primary
 Governmental Business-type Government

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES: Activities Activities Total

  Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 7,864,763$      2,607,202$     10,471,965$     
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles):

Taxes 1,768,549 -                      1,768,549         
Accounts 196,068 1,247,599       1,443,667         
Fines 50,145 -                      50,145              
Intergovernmental 305,095 -                      305,095            
Loan 686,837 -                      686,837            
Interest 29,934 7,856              37,790              

Inventory 32,467 -                      32,467              
Prepaid expenses 634,315           44,274            678,589            
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 6,187,847 559,232          6,747,079         
Land held for future use 1,034,432        -                      1,034,432         

  Total current assets 18,790,452      4,466,163       23,256,615       

Noncurrent assets:

  Capital assets not being depreciated:
    Land 1,573,340 433,393          2,006,733         
    Construction in progress 2,076,515 -                      2,076,515         

Capital assets being depreciated 78,752,033 26,158,145     104,910,178     
    Less: accumulated depreciation [51,839,302]     [11,954,287]    [63,793,589]       

Total noncurrent assets 30,562,586      14,637,251     45,199,837       

Total assets 49,353,038      19,103,414     68,456,452       

Deferred outflow of resources
    Deferred charge on refunding -                       17,690            17,690              
    Pension liability 5,221,474        43,067            5,264,541         

Total deferred outflow of resources 5,221,474        60,757            5,282,231         

Total assets and deferred outflow of resources 54,574,512$    19,164,171$   73,738,683$     

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
 Liabilities:
    Accounts payable 494,538$         139,625$        634,163$          
    Court bonds payable 92,266 -                      92,266              
    Accrued liabilities 472,243 6,527              478,770            
    Interest payable 709,967 141,063          851,030            
    Customer deposits payable -                       425,073          425,073            
    Net pension liability 12,542,206 54,614            12,596,820       
    Other-long term liabilities:
      Due within one year 1,841,911 834,999          2,676,910         
      Due in more than one year 34,931,316      9,099,494       44,030,810       

Total liabilities 51,084,447      10,701,395     61,785,842       

 Deferred inflows of resources

    Pension liability 386,759           1,002              387,761            

Total deferred inflows of resources 386,759           1,002              387,761            

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 51,471,206$    10,702,397$   62,173,603$     

NET POSITION:
    Net investment in capital assets 30,562,586$    4,740,531$     35,303,117$     
    Restricted:    
      Debt service 6,744,255        559,232          7,303,487         
      General government 26,941             -                      26,941              
      Community development 340,753           -                      340,753            
      Public safety 981,925           -                      981,925            
      Public works 2,231,433        -                      2,231,433         
    Unrestricted [37,784,587]     3,162,011       [34,622,576]       

Total net position 3,103,306$      8,461,774$     11,565,080$     

   

CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

Primary Government

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
October 31, 2017

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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 Operating Capital Business

Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Type
 Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total

Governmental activities:

General government 2,150,696$      395,778$       -$                   -$                  [1,754,918]$   -$                   [1,754,918]$    
Parks and recreation 993,331 109,146 -                     -                    [884,185]        -                     [884,185]         
Community development 786,266 101,569 -                     -                    [684,697]        -                     [684,697]         
Public safety 8,598,824 1,520,630 56,404 -                    [7,021,790]     -                     [7,021,790]      
Public works 6,010,428 30,730 -                     -                    [5,979,698]     -                     [5,979,698]      
Interest on long-term debt 1,715,961        -                     -                     -                    [1,715,961]     -                     [1,715,961]      

Total governmental activities 20,255,506      2,157,853      56,404           -                    [18,041,249]   -                     [18,041,249]    

Business-type activities:

Sewer 5,119,305        6,483,337      -                     -                    -                     1,364,032      1,364,032       

Total business-type activities 5,119,305        6,483,337      -                     -                    -                     1,364,032      1,364,032       

Total primary government 25,374,811$    8,641,190$    56,404$         -$                  [18,041,249]   1,364,032      [16,677,217]    

 General Revenues:
  Property taxes levied for:
    General purposes 1,156,354 -                     1,156,354       
    Parks and recreation 576,002 -                     576,002          
  Franchise tax 3,728,574 -                     3,728,574       
  Sales tax 8,121,535 -                     8,121,535       
  Motor vehicle tax 1,197,862 -                     1,197,862       
  Intergovernmental activity tax 1,229,216 -                     1,229,216       
  Other taxes 68,286 -                     68,286            
  Investments earnings 338,950 289,361         628,311          
  Miscellaneous 89,091 -                     89,091            
Transfers, net 1,186,107      [1,186,107]     -                      

Total general revenues 17,691,977    [896,746]        16,795,231     

Change in net position [349,272]        467,286         118,014          

Net position - beginning 3,452,578      7,994,488      11,447,066     

Net position - ending 3,103,306$    8,461,774$    11,565,080$   

and Changes in Net Assets

Program Revenues Primary Government

CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended October 31, 2017

Net [Expenses] Revenue

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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 Other Total
 Governmental Governmental
 General TIF Funds Funds

ASSETS
  Cash and cash equivalents 3,259,176$    394,788$         4,210,800$        7,864,764$        
  Receivables:

Taxes 811,817         330,571           626,161             1,768,549          
Accounts 146,068         -                       50,000               196,068             
Fines 50,145           -                       -                         50,145               
Intergovernmental 99,336           205,759           -                         305,095             
Loan -                     -                       686,837             686,837             
Interest 11,743           1,224               16,967               29,934               

  Inventory 32,467           -                       -                         32,467               
  Prepaid expenses 438,855         -                       195,460             634,315             
  Restricted cash and cash equivalents -                     6,187,847        -                         6,187,847          
  Land held for future use 1,034,432      -                       -                         1,034,432          

Total assets 5,884,039$    7,120,189$      5,786,225$        18,790,453$      

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
  RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
  Accounts payable 236,089$       35,181$           223,268$           494,538$           
  Court bonds payable 92,266           -                       -                         92,266               
  Accrued liabilities 409,315         -                       62,928               472,243             

Total liabilities 737,670         35,181             286,196             1,059,047          

Deferred inflows of resources:
  Unavailable revenue - property taxes 50,145           -                       -                         50,145               

Total deferred inflows of resources 50,145           -                       -                         50,145               

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 787,815         35,181             286,196             1,109,192          

Fund balance:
Nonspendable 1,505,754      -                       882,297             2,388,051          
Restricted:

      Debt service -                     6,744,255        -                         6,744,255          
      General government -                     -                       26,941               26,941               
      Community development -                     340,753           -                         340,753             
      Public safety -                     -                       981,925             981,925             
      Public works -                     -                       2,231,433          2,231,433          

Assigned:
      General government -                     -                       -                         -                         
      Parks and recreation -                     -                       779,380             779,380             
      Public works -                     -                       598,053             598,053             

Unassigned 3,590,470      -                       -                         3,590,470          

Total fund balance [deficit] 5,096,224      7,085,008        5,500,029          17,681,261        

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
  and fund balances 5,884,039$    7,120,189$      5,786,225$        18,790,453$      

 

CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

October 31, 2017

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Total Governmental Fund Balances 17,681,261$  

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
 statement of net position are different because

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
 resources and therefore are not reported in the funds

        The cost of capital assets is 82,401,888    
        Accumulated depreciation is [51,839,302]   30,562,586    

Pension contributions are reported as an expense in the funds as a 
deferred outflow of resources in the governmental activities in the 
statement of net position 5,221,474      

Pension fundings are reported as a revenue in the funds and as a 
deferred inflow of resources in the governmental activities in the
statement of net position [386,759]        

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period and, 
 therefore, are reported as unavailable revenue in the funds 50,145           

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in
 the current period and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds.  
 Long term liabilities at year end consist of:

        Revenue bonds payable 34,173,902    
        Net pension liability 12,542,206    
        Net other post employment benefit obligation 352,791         
        Developer obligations payable 1,771,022      
        Interest payable 709,967         
        Compensated absences payable 475,513         [50,025,401]   

Net Position of Governmental Activities 3,103,306$    

 

CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

RECONCILIATION OF THE TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES TO
NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended October 31, 2017

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Other Total
 Governmental Governmental
 General TIF Funds Funds

REVENUES:
      Taxes 7,648,866$    1,522,037$    4,479,846$      13,650,749$    
      Intergovernmental activity taxes -                     1,443,622      -                       1,443,622        
      Licenses and permits 456,668         -                      -                       456,668           
      Intergovernmental 1,254,266      -                      -                       1,254,266        
      Fines, forfeitures and penalties 634,624         -                      -                       634,624           
      Charges for services 959,053         -                      99,501             1,058,554        
      Use of money and property 36,324           183,749         118,876           338,949           
      Miscellaneous 67,591           -                      134,370           201,961           

Total revenues 11,057,392    3,149,408      4,832,593        19,039,393      

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government 1,987,726      -                      154,915           2,142,641        
Parks and recreation -                     -                      878,243           878,243           
Community development 702,417         174,613         -                       877,030           
Public safety 7,523,232      -                      1,287,875        8,811,107        
Public works 2,635,126      -                      -                       2,635,126        

Capital outlay -                     -                      2,644,053        2,644,053        
Debt service

Principal -                     1,265,000      45,835             1,310,835        
Interest and other charges -                     1,741,150      2,163               1,743,313        

Total expenditures 12,848,501    3,180,763      5,013,084        21,042,348      

Excess [deficiency] of revenues
  over [under] expenditures [1,791,109]     [31,355]           [180,491]          [2,002,955]       

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES [USES]
Transfers in 1,186,107      -                      190,000           1,376,107        
Transfers [out] [190,000]        -                      -                       [190,000]          

Total other financing sources [uses] 996,107         -                      190,000           1,186,107        

Excess [deficiency] of revenues
  and other sources over [under]
  expenditures and other [uses] [795,002]        [31,355]           9,509               [816,848]          

Fund balance - Beginning of year 5,891,226      7,116,363      5,490,520        18,498,109      

Fund balance - End of year 5,096,224$    7,085,008$    5,500,029$      17,681,261$    

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended October 31, 2017

CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Total Net Change In Fund Balances - Governmental Funds [816,848]$     

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
 statement of activities are different because

Capital outlays to purchase or build assets are reported in governmental funds
 as expenditures.  However, for governmental activities those costs are shown
 in the statement of net position and allocated over their estimated useful lives
 as annual depreciation expenses in the statement of activities.  This is the 
 amount by which capital outlays exceeds depreciation in the period.
        Capital outlays 1,751,892      
        Loss on sale of assets [202,151]        
        Depreciation expense [3,004,595]     [1,454,854]    

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial 
 resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. [214,405]       

Interest on long-term debt in the statement of activities differs from the amount
 reported in the governmental funds because interest is recorded as an 
 expenditure in the funds when it is due, and thus requires the use of current 
 financial resources.  In the statement of activities, however, interest expense 
 is recognized as the interest accrues, regardless of when it is due.  This is 
 the amount by which interest decreased. 27,352          

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the
 use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
 expenditures in governmental funds.
        Compensated absences [15,247]         
        Net other post employment benefits [28,102]         

Repayment of developer obligations is an expenditure in the governmental funds,
 but it reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets and does not
 affect the statement of activities. 63,636          

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but
 it reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets and does not
 affect the statement of activities. 1,280,806     

Repayment of capital leases is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but
 it reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets and does not
 affect the statement of activities. 45,836          

Pension payments are reported as expenditures in the

governmental funds and do not affect the statement of net activities 762,554        

Changes In Net position of Governmental Activities [349,272]$     

 

CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES WITH THE GOVERNMENT WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended October 31, 2017

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual [Negative]

Revenues:
    Taxes 8,096,900$      8,096,900$      7,648,866$     [448,034]$       
    Licenses and permits 314,700 314,700 456,668          141,968          
    Intergovernmental 1,159,600       1,160,100        1,254,266       94,166            
    Fines, forfeitures and penalties 802,000          802,000           634,624          [167,376]         
    Charges for services 1,194,000       1,194,000        959,053          [234,947]         
    Use of money and property 22,500            22,500             36,324            13,824            
    Miscellaneous 187,580          187,580           67,591            [119,989]         

Total Revenues 11,777,280     11,777,780      11,057,392     [720,388]         

Expenditures:
General government:
  Governing body 112,194          112,194           148,614          [36,420]           
  Administration 807,776          820,792           684,896          135,896          

     Finance 753,912          766,214           627,087          139,127          
     Courts 355,561          355,645           329,092          26,553            
     Legal 113,258          118,639           72,524            46,115            
     City wide 254,120          180,125           93,726            86,399            

Total general government 2,396,821       2,353,609        1,955,939       397,670          

   Community development 851,668          852,730           701,355          151,375          

   Public safety:
     EMS 1,140,186       1,216,239        1,142,606       73,633            
     Police 6,599,690       6,731,138        6,347,297       383,841          

   Total public safety 7,739,876       7,947,377        7,489,903       457,474          

Public works 2,943,464       2,960,962        2,617,628       343,334          

Total Expenditures 13,931,829     14,114,678      12,764,825     1,349,853       

Excess [Deficiency] of Revenues 
   Over [Under] Expenditures [2,154,549]       [2,336,898]       [1,707,433]      629,465          

Other Financing Sources [Uses]:
    Transfers in 1,186,107       1,186,107        1,186,107       -                      
    Transfers [out] [190,000]          [190,000]          [190,000]         -                      

Total Other Financing Sources [Uses] 996,107          996,107           996,107          -                      

Excess [Deficiency] of Revenues
   and Other Sources Over [Under]
   Expenditures and Other [Uses] [1,158,442]$     [1,340,791]$     [711,326]         629,465$        

Fund Balance, November 1 5,807,550       

Fund Balance, October 31 5,096,224       

GAAP to Budgetary Basis Adjustment:

  Encumbrances Outstanding -                      

GAAP Fund Balance, October 31 5,096,224$     

For the Year Ended October 31, 2017

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE -  ACTUAL AND BUDGET

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Variance with
 Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual [Negative]

Revenues:
    Taxes 1,500,000$    1,500,000$    1,522,037$    22,037$         
    Intergovernmental activity taxes 1,428,000      1,428,000      1,443,622      15,622           
    Use of money and property 210,000         210,000         183,749         [26,251]          

Total Revenues 3,138,000      3,138,000      3,149,408      11,408           

Expenditures:
    Community development 124,800         251,900         174,613         77,287           
    Debt service
      Principal 1,265,000      1,265,000      1,265,000      -                     
      Interest and other charges 1,741,150      1,741,150      1,741,150      -                     

Total Expenditures 3,130,950      3,258,050      3,180,763      77,287           

Excess [Deficiency] of Revenues
    Over [Under] Expenditures 7,050$           [120,050]$      [31,355]           88,695$         

Fund Balance, November 1 7,116,363      

Fund Balance, October 31 7,085,008$     

For the Year Ended October 31, 2017

CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

TIF FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE -  ACTUAL AND BUDGET

Budgeted Amounts

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

Sewer
Utility

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 2,607,202$          
Receivables:  
    Accounts (net of allowance) 1,247,599           
    Interest 7,856                  
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 559,232              
Prepaid expenses 44,274                

Total current assets 4,466,163           

Noncurrent assets:
  Capital assets not being depreciated:
    Land 433,393              

Capital assets being depreciated 26,158,145         
    Less: accumulated depreciation [11,954,287]         

Total noncurrent assets 14,637,251         

Total assets 19,103,414         

Deferred outflows of resources:
  Deferred charge on refunding 17,690                
  Pension liability 43,067                

Total deferred outflows of resources 60,757                

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 19,164,171$        

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Current liabilities (payable from current assets):
   Accounts payable 139,625$             
   Accrued liabilities 6,527                  
   Compensated absences 5,383                  
   Interest payable 141,063              
   Customer deposits payable 425,073              
   Current portion of bonds payable 829,616              

Total current liabilities (payable from current assets): 1,547,287           

Noncurrent liabilities:
   Net other post employment benefit obligation 14,700                
   Bonds payable 9,084,794           
   Net pension liability 54,614                

Total noncurrent liabilities: 9,154,108           

Total liabilities 10,701,395         

Deferred inflows of resources:
    Pension liability 1,002                  

Total deferred inflows of resources 1,002                  

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 10,702,397$        

NET POSITION:
   Net investment in capital assets 4,740,531$          
   Restricted for:
     Debt service 559,232              
   Unrestricted 3,162,011           

Total Net Position 8,461,774$          

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

October 31, 2017

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

Sewer
Utility

Operating revenues:
  Charges for services 6,460,207$         
  Other 23,130                

Total operating revenues 6,483,337           

Operating expenses:
  Personal services 110,645              
  Contractual 304,760              
  Commodities 96,996                
  Sewer treatment charges 3,571,397           
  Depreciation 559,324              

Total operating expenses 4,643,122           

Operating income [loss] 1,840,215           

Nonoperating revenues [expenses]:
  Interest on long term debt [476,183]             
  Interest income 289,361              

Total nonoperating revenues [expenses] [186,822]             

Income [loss] before transfers 1,653,393           

Transfers from [to] other funds
  Transfers out [1,186,107]          

Total transfers [1,186,107]          

Change in net position 467,286              

Net position, November 1 7,994,488           

Net position, October 31 8,461,774$         

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended October 31, 2017

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Sewer
Utility

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers 6,398,072$          
Cash paid to suppliers and employees [4,514,765]           

Net cash provided by [used in] operating activities 1,883,307           

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities
     Transfers [in] out [1,186,107]           

Net cash provided by [used in] non-capital financing activities [1,186,107]           

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
    Principal paid on bonds, notes and loans [804,616]              
    Interest expense and fiscal charges [485,137]              

Net cash provided by [used in] capital and related financing activities [1,289,753]           

Cash flows from investing activities

    Interest income 288,804              

Net cash provided by [used in] investing activities 288,804              

Net increase [decrease] in cash and cash equivalents [303,749]              

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, November 1 3,470,183           

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, October 1 3,166,434$          

 

Cash and cash equivalents 2,607,202$          
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 559,232              

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, October 1 3,166,434$          

CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended October 31, 2017

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Sewer
Utility

Reconciliation of Operating Net Income to
   Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

    Operating income [loss] 1,840,215$          

    Adjustments to reconcile operating income [loss] to
        net cash provided by [used in] operating activities:
              Depreciation 559,324              
           Change in assets and liabilities:
              [Increase] decrease in accounts receivable [74,790]                
              [Increase] decrease in prepaid expenses [10,475]                
              [Increase] decrease in pension liability deferred outflows [16,468]                
              Increase [decrease] in accounts payable [471,271]              
              Increase [decrease] in accrued liabilities 2,836                  
              Increase [decrease] in compensated absences 632                     
              Increase [decrease] in customer deposit payable 41,381                
              Increase [decrease] in net other post employment benefit obligation 1,171                  
              Increase [decrease] in net pension liability 12,845                
              Increase [decrease] in pension liability deferred inflows [2,093]                  

    Total Adjustments 43,092                

    Net Cash Provided by [Used in] Operating Activities 1,883,307$          

For the Year Ended October 31, 2017
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - CONTINUED

CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

Police
Pension Agency

Trust Funds

ASSETS
Cash and investments 10,799,859$  74,290$         
Accounts receivable -                    31,366           

Total assets 10,799,859$  105,656$       

LIABILITIES
Due to others -$                   105,656$       

Total liabilities -$                  105,656$       

NET POSITION
Held in trust for pension benefits 10,799,859$  -$                   

Total Net Position 10,799,859$  -$                  

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended October 31, 2017

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Police
Pension

Trust

Additions:
Employer contributions 600,589$       
Investment earnings:
  Interest and dividends 302,346         
  Net appreciation in fair value of investments 1,195,376      
  Investment expenses [96,819]          

Total additions 2,001,492      

Deductions:
Benefits paid 1,082,327      

Administrative and other expenses 31,098           

Total deductions 1,113,425      

Change in net position 888,067         

Net position, beginning of year 9,911,792      

Net position, end of year 10,799,859$  

CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended October 31, 2017

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year ending October 31, 2017 

 
 
I.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

A. Reporting Entity 
 

The City of Raytown, Missouri (the City), was incorporated in 1950 and covers an area of approximately ten 
square miles in Jackson County, Missouri.  Raytown is a city of the fourth class and operates under the 
Mayor/Board of Aldermen form of government.  The City provides services to its approximately 29,500 
residents in many areas, including general government, law enforcement, paramedic services, public works, 
sewer services, community enrichment and development, and various social services.  Fire protection 
services are provided by a fire district, which is a separate government entity.  Primary and secondary 
education services are provided by the Raytown School District, also a separate governmental entity.   
 
The accounting and reporting policies of the City conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAP). 
 
This report includes the financial statements of the City (the primary government) and its blended component 
unit: the City of Raytown, Missouri, Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Commission (the Commission).  The 
Commission is governed by an eleven-member board.  Six members are appointed by the City’s Board of 
Aldermen and the remaining five members are appointed by the respective taxing districts’ boards.  Although 
the Commission is legally separate, the Commission is reported as a blended component unit because its 
sole function is to use TIF as a method to finance economic development through payments in lieu of taxes 
(PILOT) and economic activity taxes (EATs).  The Commission does not issue separate financial statements.   
 

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 
 
The statement of net position and the statement of activities report information on all of the nonfiduciary 
activities of the City.  For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these 
statements.  Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the City’s governmental and business-type 
activities.  Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the 
various functions concerned.  Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant 
extent on fees and charges for support.   
 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function are 
offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service, 
program or department and therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function.  Program revenues include 
charges paid by the recipient of the goods or services offered by the program and grants and contributions 
that are restricted to meeting the operational requirements of a particular program.  Taxes and other items 
which are not classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues of the City. 
 
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds.  Major individual 
funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.   

 
C.  Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation 

 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements.  Revenues are 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of 
related cash flows.  Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.  Grants 
and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider 
have been met. 
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year ending October 31, 2017 

 
 
I.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

C.  Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation (Continued) 
 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available.  Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.  For this purpose, the City 
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.  
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.  However, debt 
service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to certain compensated absences and claims and 
judgments are recognized when the obligations are expected to be liquidated with expendable available 
financial resources. 
 
Property taxes and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to 
accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.  Entitlements and shared 
revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria are met.  
Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred 
and all other grant requirements have been met. 
 
Proprietary fund type operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net 
total assets.  Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing goods and services in connection with a 
proprietary fund’s ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues of the City’s proprietary funds are 
charges to customers for sales and services.  Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of 
sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.  All revenue and expenses 
not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
 
The following are the City’s major governmental funds: 
 

The General Fund is the principal operating fund of the City and accounts for all financial transactions not 
accounted for in other funds. For financial reporting purposes, the City’s grant fund activities are included 
in the General Fund. The general operating expenditures, fixed charges and capital improvement costs 
that are not paid through other funds are financed through revenues received by the General Fund.  
 
The Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Fund is used to account for resources and activities of the City’s tax 
increment financing plans. 

 
The City reports the following major proprietary fund: 

 
The Sewer Utility Fund accounts for the provision of sewer services to residents of the City. All activities 
necessary to provide such service are accounted for in this fund, including, but not limited to, 
administration, operations, maintenance, financing and related debt service, and billing and collection. 

 
The following are the City’s fiduciary funds: 
 

The Police Pension Trust Fund accounts for the activity of the Policemen’s Retirement Plan. 
 
The Jackson County Tax Agency Fund accounts for taxes collected on behalf of Jackson County, 
Missouri. 
 
The Raytown Highway 350 Transportation Development District (TDD) Fund accounts for taxes collected 
on behalf of the TDD. 
 
The Ditzler CID Fund which accounts for taxes collected on behalf of the CID. 
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year ending October 31, 2017 

 
 
I.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 
C.  Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation (Continued) 

 
Since these assets are being held for the benefit of a third party and cannot be used to support activities or 
obligations of the City, these fiduciary funds are not incorporated into the government-wide statements. 

 
D.  Assets, Liabilities, Fund Balance and Equity 
 

1.  Deposits and Investments 
 
The City maintains a cash pool that is available for use by all funds managed by the City.  Each fund type’s 
portion of the pool is displayed in the financial statements as “Cash and Investments.”  The City’s cash and 
cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments (including 
certificates of deposit) with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. 
 
Investments, including pension trust investments, are stated at fair market value. 
  
2.  Receivables and Payables 
 
Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the 
end of the year are referred to as either “interfund receivables/payables” (i.e., the current portion of interfund 
loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans).  All other 
outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.” 

 
All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles, if any. 
 
The City’s property tax is levied each September 1 on the assessed value as of the prior January 1 for all real 
and personal property located in the City.  Property taxes are billed in total by November 1 following the levy 
date and considered delinquent after January 1.  On January 1, a lien attaches to all real property for which 
taxes are unpaid.  Taxes remaining unpaid for two years after that date are submitted to Jackson County for 
collection through foreclosure proceedings.  Property taxes levied on September 1, 2017 are for the budget 
year ended October 31, 2018, and therefore have not been reflected in the accompanying basic financial 
statements.   
 
Assessed values are established by the Jackson County Assessor, subject to review by the County’s Board 
of Equalization.  The assessed value for property, including railroad and utility properties located in the City 
as of January 1, 2016, on which the fiscal year ended October 31, 2017, levy was based, totaled 
$310,097,901.  During the year ended October 31, 2017, the City collected approximately 95% of the 
property taxes levied for that period. 
 
The City is permitted by Missouri State Statutes to levy taxes up to $1.00 per $100 of assessed valuation for 
general governmental services, other than the payment of principal and interest on long-term debt, and an 
unlimited amount for the payment of principal and interest on long-term debt.  Property tax levies per $100 of 
assessed valuation for the year ended October 31, 2017, were: 
 

Levy
in Dollars

General Fund $0.3530
Park Fund 0.1763    
Total Levy $0.5293  
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year ending October 31, 2017 

 
 
I.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 
D.  Assets, Liabilities, Fund Balance and Equity (Continued) 

 
3.  Prepaid Items 
 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as 
prepaid items. 
 
4.  Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets, are reported in the 
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.  
Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 
and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.  Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated 
historical cost if purchased or constructed.  Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market 
value at the date of donation.  Capital assets used in governmental fund types of the City are recorded at 
cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.   
 
The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend 
assets lives are not capitalized. 
 
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.  Interest 
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type is included in the capitalized value 
of the asset constructed, net of interest earned on the invested proceeds over the same period. 
 
Property, plant and equipment of the City, are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following 
estimated useful lives: 
 

Assets Years
Buildings and improvements 25 - 50
Office equipment and furniture 7 - 10
Computer equipment 3 - 5
Machinery and other equipment 7 - 15
Vehicles 5 - 10
Infrastructure 20 - 50  

 
5.  Compensated Absences 
 
Under terms of the City’s personnel policy, City employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying 
amounts based upon length of service. In the event of termination, an employee is paid for accumulated 
vacation days up to the maximum accruable of 240 hours. Employees are not paid for accumulated sick 
leave upon termination.  
 
Vested or accumulated paid time off that is expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial 
resources is reported as an expenditure and a fund liability in the government fund financial statements that 
will pay it.  Vested or accumulated paid time off of the business-type funds and government wide financial 
statements are recorded as an expense and liability of those funds as the benefits accrue to employees.   
 
The General Fund and Sewer Utility Fund have been used in prior years to liquidate the liability for 
compensated absences. 
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year ending October 31, 2017 

 
 
I.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
 D.  Assets, Liabilities, Fund Balance and Equity (Continued) 

 
6.  Long-term Obligations 
 
In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, 
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental 
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position.  Bond premiums and 
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective 
interest method.  Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.  Bond 
issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt. 
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well 
as issuance costs, during the current period.  The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing 
sources.  Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on 
debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.  Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual 
debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 
 
7.  Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
8. Net Position 

 
Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities.  Net investment in capital assets 
consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any 
borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.  Net position is reported as 
restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by 
the City or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other 
governments.   

 
9. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, 
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as 
an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.  The City reports deferred charge on refunding, 
pension contributions made after the measurement date, pension changes in assumptions, pension net 
differences between projected and actual investment earnings and pension differences between expected 
and actual experience as deferred outflows of resources. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as 
an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The government funds report unavailable revenues from 
one source: property taxes. Pension differences between expected and actual experience are reported as 
deferred inflows for governmental activities. 
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year ending October 31, 2017 

 
 
I.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
 D.  Assets, Liabilities, Fund Balance and Equity (Continued) 

 
10. Fund Balances 

 
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund balance in the following classifications: 
nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned. Nonspendable fund balance includes 
amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable form or legally or contractually 
required to be maintained intact. Restricted fund balance indicates that constraints have been placed on the 
use of resources either by being externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations 
of other governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Committed 
fund balances include amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed 
by formal action of the city council. Assigned fund balances include amounts that are constrained by the City 
management’s intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. Unassigned 
fund balance represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been 
restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the General Fund. When an expenditure is 
incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available restricted amounts 
are considered to be spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which committed, 
assigned, or unassigned fund balance is available, the following is the order in which resources will be 
expended: committed, assigned and unassigned. 
 
The General Fund balance policy (Resolution 2039-08) is to reserve 17% of the prior fiscal year’s 
expenditures as an emergency reserve that may only be appropriated by the Board of Aldermen.  At such 
time the emergency reserve is depleted, the City must establish a plan to restore the reserve before any new 
programs may be established.  Compliance with the Fund Balance Classification Policy is reviewed as part of 
the annual budgeting process. 
 
The following is the detail for governmental fund balance classifications in the financial statements: 
 

 Other Total
Governmental Governmental

General TIF Funds Funds
Fund balance:

Nonspendable 1,505,754$ -$                882,297$       2,388,051$   
Restricted:

      Debt service -                  6,744,255   -                     6,744,255     
      General government -                  -                  26,941           26,941          
      Community development -                  340,753      -                     340,753        
      Public safety -                  -                  981,925         981,925        
      Public works -                  -                  2,231,433      2,231,433     

Assigned:
      Parks and recreation 779,380         779,380        
      Public works -                  -                  598,053         598,053        

Unassigned 3,590,470   -                  -                     3,590,470     

Total fund balance [deficit] 5,096,224$ 7,085,008$ 5,500,029$    17,681,261$ 

Major Governmental Funds
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year ending October 31, 2017 

 
 
II.   STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY  

 

Budgetary Information 
 

The City prepares an annual operating budget on a basis consistent with GAAP.  The City conducts public 
hearings on the proposed budget and the budget is adopted by the City pursuant to state law.  The 
appropriated budget is prepared by fund and program.  The legal level of budgetary requirements is 
controlled by federal regulations, other statutes, or by the use of internal spending limits established by the 
City’s Board of Aldermen.  
 

III.   DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 
 

A. Deposits and Investments 
 

 
At October 31, 2017, the carrying values of cash and investments are summarized as follows: 
 

Primary Fiduciary
Government Funds Total

Cash and cash equivalents:
  Deposits 4,348,136$   174,172$       4,522,308$   
  Certificates of deposit 5,408,000     -                     5,408,000     
  Petty cash 3,495            -                     3,495            

Total cash and cash equivalents 9,759,631     174,172         9,933,803     

Investments:

  Short-term investments held in trust 6,747,079     -                     6,747,079     
  Missouri securities investment program (MOSIP) 712,334        -                     712,334        
  Pension trust investments -                     10,699,977    10,699,977   

Total investments 7,459,413     10,699,977    18,159,390   

Total cash and investments 17,219,044$ 10,874,149$  28,093,193$ 
 

 
Deposits and investments are reflected in the financial statements as follows: 
 

Fiduciary
Government Funds

Wide Statement
Statement of of Net
Net Position Position Total

Cash and investments 10,471,965$  10,874,149$  21,346,114$  

Restricted cash and investments 6,747,079      -                     6,747,079      

Total cash and investments 17,219,044$  10,874,149$  28,093,193$  
 

 
Investment policy.  Missouri state statutes authorize the City, with certain restrictions, to deposit or invest in 
open accounts, time deposits, obligations of the U.S. government or U.S. government agencies, and 
certificates of deposit.  Statutes also require that collateral pledged must have a fair value equal to 100% of 
the funds on deposit, less Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) amounts.  Collateral securities must 
be held by the City or a third-party and must meet certain requirements listed in Missouri statutes. 
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III.   DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

 
A. Deposits and Investments (Continued) 

 
The City maintains a cash and investment pool.  Interest earned is allocated to the funds based on the 
average monthly cash and investment balances.  Certain restricted assets, related to bond issuances, are 
held in escrow by a financial institution’s trust department. 
 
The investments of the Police Officer’s Retirement Fund Pension Plan are held separately from the City’s 
other funds and are restricted to any investment not prohibited under the laws of the State of Missouri.  The 
Board of Trustees, the plan custodian and investment managers chosen by the Trustees have discretionary 
authority concerning purchases of investments in the pension plan, subject to the overall investment policy 
guidelines as approved by the Board of Trustees and adopted by the Board of Aldermen.  The investment 
policy follows RSMo 86.590 and 105.588 regarding constraints on the deposit and investment of the plan 
assets.  The value of the investments is recorded at fair value. 
 
The plan’s investment policy permits investments in high-quality, domestic, fixed income securities, domestic 
equity securities, and international equities.  Under the policy, the investment manager may select fixed 
income securities in domestic markets, including corporate debt securities and obligations of the U.S. 
government or its agencies.  The investment manager may select domestic equity securities or equity 
securities mutual funds trade on major U.S. exchanges. 
 
The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP).  The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the 
fair value of the asset.  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs 
are significant other observable inputs; and Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. 
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A. Deposits and Investments (Continued) 

 
The following summarizes the City’s and the Police Officer’s Retirement Fund Pension Plan investments at 
October 31, 2017: 

 
Fair Value

Measurement
Using Quoted

Prices in Active
Markets for

Identical Assets
Investments by fair value level 10/31/2017 (Level 1) Rating Maturity
U.S. Treasuries 496,297$      496,297$           Moody's Aaa 11/30/18 to 2/15/27
Federal Agency Issues:
  Federal Home Loan Bank 3,880,618     3,880,618          Moody's Aaa 11/30/16 to 11/30/17
  Federal National Mortgage Association 45,981          45,981               Moody's Aaa 3/30/26 to 4/1/36
  Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 5,409            5,409                 Moody's Aaa 4/20/17 to 2/1/37
Corporate bonds, stocks and notes 6,337,896     6,337,896          

Total investments by fair value level 10,766,201   10,766,201$      

Investments measured by the net asset value (NAV)
Missouri Securities Investment 
  Program (MOSIP) Liquid Series 712,334        
Fidelity Treasury Fund Class III 2,866,462     
Midcap SPDR Trust Series I 600,515        
Schwab US Large-Cap Index ETF 316,260        
Eaton Vance Floating Rate Institutional 185,773        
Palmer Square Income Plus 111,987        
Northern Funds Institutional Government 288,915        
DFA Funds US Small Cap Fund 542,022        
Lazard Funds US Corp Income Portfolio Instl 159,680        
T. Rowe Price Mutual Funds Mid Cap Growth 194,142        
Salient MLP & Infrastructure II Institutional 248,871        
DFA Funds Emerging Mkts Core Equity 249,631        
DFA Funds Intl Small Cap Value 319,472        
Oppenheimer Mutual Funds Developing Markets CL Y 353,797        
Vanguard Group REIT Index Fund 243,328        

Total investments measured by the net asset value (NAV) 7,393,189     

Total investments 18,159,390$ 

 
Several of the above investments are measured at the net asset value, have an ongoing redemption 
frequency and liquidity fees or redemption gates are not imposed on any of the investments.   
 
Credit risk.  The credit risk for deposits and investments is the possibility that the issuer to an investment will 
be unable to fulfill its obligations.  It is the City’s policy to limit its investments to certificates of deposits and 
bonds or other obligations of the U.S. government.  
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A. Deposits and Investments (Continued) 

 
Credit risk is associated with the credit quality or rating of debt instrument investments.  The Police Officer’s 
Retirement Fund Pension Plan investment policy specifies that the plan may invest in money market mutual 
funds, U.S. treasuries and government agency securities, asset-backed securities rated A or better, and 
corporate obligations rated BBB or better. 
 
Custodial credit risk.  Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits or 
investments may not be returned to it.  The City’s deposit policy for custodial credit risk requires that 
depository banks will maintain 100% security in the form of Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) 
coverage and pledged collateral. At October 31, 2017, the City’s deposits were insured by Federal depository 
insurance and uninsured deposits were fully collateralized by securities held in the City’s name by their 
financial institution’s agent. The City’s securities were registered and held by the City’s financial institution in 
the City’s name. 
 
Interest rate risk.  Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair 
value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its 
fair value to changes in market interest rates. The City structures the investment portfolio so that securities 
mature to meet cash requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell securities on the 
open market prior to maturity and by investing operating funds primarily in shorter-term securities. The City 
has elected to use the segmented time distribution method of disclosure for its interest rate risk.  
 

B. Receivables 
 
Receivables at year end are as follows: 
 

Business-type
Activities

General TIF Nonmajor Sewer
Fund Fund Funds Fund

Receivables:
  Taxes 811,817$    330,571$    626,161$    -$                   
  Accounts 146,068      -                   50,000        1,247,599      
  Fines 50,145        -                   -                   -                      
  Intergovernmental 99,336        205,759      -                   -                      
  Loan -                   -                   686,837      -                      
  Interest 11,743        1,224          16,967        7,856             

Total receivables 1,119,109$ 537,554$    1,379,965$ 1,255,455$    

Activities
Governmental

 
 

The City has entered into a development agreement with Gregory Square Partners, LLC and the Ditzler 
Community Improvement District (CID).  Under the agreement, the City provided funding totaling $850,000 
to be used to finance a portion of the development cost of the project and development of certain real 
property located at the intersection of Gregory Boulevard and Ditzler Avenue.  Under the terms of the 
agreement, the City is scheduled to be reimbursed for the $850,000 in funding over a period not to exceed 
20 years, including interest at 6.5%, from CID sales taxes generated from taxable sales within the CID 
district.  The outstanding balance under the agreement is $686,837 as of October 31, 2017. 
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C. Tax Collection Services 
 

Jackson County, Missouri prepares and mails the City’s property tax bills.  Until January 17, 2017, the 
County and the City had an agreement in place to collect property and other taxes on behalf of each other.  
The County and City receive a fee equal to 1% of the gross amount of current taxes collected.   
 
The County collected approximately $2.1 million of the City’s taxes during the year ended October 31, 2017.  
This resulted in a collection charge of $21,426 paid by the City to Jackson County.  
 
The City collected approximately $7.2 million of the County’s taxes during the year ended October 31, 2017, 
in the Jackson County Tax Fund (an Agency Fund).  This resulted in a collection charge of $72,620 paid by 
Jackson County to the City.  
 

D. Land Held for Redevelopment 
 
The City has acquired title to certain land that is not used in the City’s continuing operations but is instead 
held by the City for future redevelopment projects.  At October 31, 2017, the valuation of the land was 
$1,034,432. 
 

E. Restricted Assets 
 

The City’s bond indentures require the City to establish certain special trust funds in the City’s name.  Assets 
of these special funds consist of cash and investments stated at fair value and are reported as Restricted 
Cash and Investments for the year ended October 31, 2017 as follows: 
 
 

TIF Fund Sewer Fund Total
Project/Construction funds 340,753$          -$                   340,753$         
Rebate funds -                        167,466        167,466           
Debt service and
  debt service reserve funds 5,847,094         391,767        6,238,861        

6,187,847$       559,232$      6,747,079$      
 

 
F. Interfund Transactions 

 
Interfund transfers for the year ended October 31, 2017, are as follows: 
 

From To Amount
Sewer Fund General Fund 1,186,107$ 
General Fund Storm Water Fund 190,000      

1,376,107$ 
 

 
Transfers were used for the reimbursement of salaries, wages, benefits and other administrative fees 
between the two funds. 
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G. Capital Assets  

 
Capital asset activity for the year ended October 31, 2017, was as follows: 
 

Balance Balance
10/31/16 Additions Retirements 10/31/17

City governmental activities:
  Capital assets, not being depreciated

 Land 1,573,392$     -$                    52$               1,573,340$    
 Construction in progress 1,843,726       353,455         120,666        2,076,515      

  Capital assets, being depreciated
     Buildings and improvements 6,523,008       688,390         -                    7,211,398      
     Vehicles and equipment 9,435,331       481,077         202,151        9,714,257      

     Infrastructure 61,678,839     147,539         -                    61,826,378    
 
Total capital assets 81,054,296     1,670,461      322,869        82,401,888    

Less accumulated depreciation for:  
     Buildings and improvements 3,652,193       226,645         -                    3,878,838      
     Vehicles and equipment 6,324,458       721,056         202,151        6,843,363      

     Infrastructure 39,060,207     2,056,894      -                    41,117,101    

Total accumulated depreciation 49,036,858     3,004,595      202,151        51,839,302    

Governmental activities capital assets, net 32,017,438$   [1,334,134]$    120,718$      30,562,586$  

Business-type activities:
  Capital assets, not being depreciated

 Land 433,393$        -$                    -$                  433,393$       
  Capital assets, being depreciated
     Vehicles and equipment 672,249          -                      -                    672,249         

     Infrastructure 25,485,896     -                      -                    25,485,896    
 
Total capital assets 26,591,538     -                      -                    26,591,538    

Less accumulated depreciation for:  
     Vehicles and equipment 524,282          55,107           -                    579,389         

     Infrastructure 10,870,680     504,218         -                    11,374,898    

Total accumulated depreciation 11,394,962     559,325         -                    11,954,287    

Business-type activities capital assets, net 15,196,576$   [559,325]$       -$                  14,637,251$   



 

38 

CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year ending October 31, 2017 
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G. Capital Assets (Continued) 
 
The City’s depreciation expense was charged as follows: 

 
Governmental activities:
General government 54,983$      
Parks and recreation 163,788      
Community development 4,767          
Public safety 267,360      
Public works 2,513,697   

Total depreciation expense 3,004,595$ 

Business-type activities:
Sewer utility 559,325$    

Total depreciation expense 559,325$    
  

H. Long-term Debt 
 

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the following changes occurred in long term liabilities: 
 

Balance Balance Current
November 1, 2016 Additions Retirements October 31, 2017 Portion

City governmental activities:
Revenue bonds 35,215,000$         -$                 1,265,000$ 33,950,000$        1,355,000$ 
Bond premiums 239,706                -                   15,805        223,901               15,805        

Revenue bonds, net 35,454,706           -                   1,280,805   34,173,901          1,370,805   
Developer obligations 1,834,657             -                   63,635        1,771,022            43,144        
Capital lease payable 45,836                  -                   45,836        -                           -                   
Compensated absences 460,266                504,056      488,809      475,513               427,962      
Net OPEB obligation 324,689                28,102        -                   352,791               -                   

38,120,154$         532,158$    1,879,085$ 36,773,227$        1,841,911$ 

Business-type activities:
Revenue bonds 10,575,000$         -$                 790,000$    9,785,000$          815,000$    
Bond premiums 144,026                -                   14,616        129,410               14,616        

Revenue bonds, net 10,719,026           -                   804,616      9,914,410            829,616      
Compensated absences 4,751                    5,381          4,749          5,383                   5,383          
Net OPEB obligation 13,529                  1,171          -                   14,700                 -                   

10,737,306$         6,552$        809,365$    9,934,493$          834,999$     
 
Compensated absences and the Net OPEB obligation are primarily liquidated in the General, Park and 
Sewer funds. 
 
Revenue bonds.  The City issues revenue bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of 
major capital facilities. Revenue bonds have been issued for both governmental and business-type activities. 
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H.  Long-term Debt (Continued) 

 
The City, other taxing districts and governmental entities have pledged a portion of future incremental 
property tax and sales tax revenues (TIF revenues) to repay the tax increment and sales tax revenue bonds 
described above. TIF revenues were projected to produce sufficient funds to meet debt service requirements 
over the life of the bonds. Should the normal TIF revenues (50% of incremental activity taxes) including those 
of other taxing districts and governmental entities not be sufficient to meet the required debt service 
obligations, the City, subject to annual appropriation, further covenants to appropriate the City’s remaining 
50% portion (effectively 100%) of the economic activity taxes generated by the project and other legally 
available funds of the City in an amount equal to the principal and interest of the bonds due in the next fiscal 
year. Incremental taxes are pledged to make payments on these obligations for a period not to exceed 23 
years.  
 
For the current year, the City made debt service payments on the tax increment and sales tax revenue bonds 
totaling $3,006,150. The incremental tax revenues generated by the 350 Highway TIF plan began in October 
2009. For the year ended October 31, 2017, the City’s incremental tax revenues totaled $1,522,037. The 
remaining funds necessary to meet the current year debt service requirements were derived from 
incremental activity tax revenues from other taxing districts and governmental entities, and interest income 
totaling $1,627,371. 
 
The City has entered into a developer agreement whereby the developer financed project costs that have 
been certified by the City are eligible to be reimbursed from payments in lieu of taxes (PILOTs) attributable to 
the project. Under tax increment financing plans, the developer may be reimbursed up to the certified cost 
amount including interest from incremental taxes during a period not to exceed 23 years. Accordingly, 
certified project costs in excess of amounts reimbursed to date are reflected as a long-term obligation of the 
City. PILOTs were projected to produce sufficient funds to reimburse the developer for certified costs. The 
developer obligations are limited solely to the amount of PILOTs received attributable to the project; any 
deficiencies are the sole responsibility of the developer and do not constitute an obligation of the Commission 
or of the City. For the current year, debt service on the obligation totaled $50,827 in interest and principal 
payments. These payments were funded by PILOTs attributable to the City as well as from other taxing 
districts and governmental entities.  
 
The City has entered into a developer agreement whereby the developer financed project costs that have 
been certified by the City as eligible to be reimbursed are $1,773,001 related to Phase 2 of the 350 Highway 
TIF Project. These obligations are to be paid from Phase 2 Economic Activity Taxes (EATs) revenues in 
excess of 125% of the debt service payments of the related tax increment and sales tax revenue bonds. For 
the current year, debt service on the obligation totaled $24,234 in principal payments. 
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Revenue bonds payable at October 31, 2017 are comprised of the following: 

 

Date of Date of Interest Original Current
Issuance Maturity Rate Amount Amount

City governmental activities:
Series 2007 tax increment and
  sales tax revenue bonds 6/12/2007 12/1/2031 4.75 to 5.125% 39,990,000$       33,950,000$ 

39,990,000         33,950,000   

Business-type activities:
Series 2006-A refunding and
  improvement revenue bonds 4/27/2006 7/1/2026 4.00 to 5.25% 7,590,000           4,385,000     
Series 2007-A refunding and
  improvement revenue bonds 1/1/2008 1/1/2028 4.00 to 4.375% 5,495,000           3,570,000     
Series 2013 refunding
   revenue bonds 8/27/2013 7/1/2027 .85 to 4.15% 2,310,000           1,830,000     

15,395,000         9,785,000     

55,385,000$       43,735,000$ 
 

 
Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the revenue bonds are as follows: 
 

Year Ending
October 31, Principal Interest Principal Interest Total

2018 1,355,000$   1,675,650$   815,000$    420,300$    4,265,950$   
2019 1,355,000     1,607,900     855,000      385,677      4,203,577     
2020 1,425,000     1,538,400     895,000      348,575      4,206,975     
2021 1,555,000     1,463,900     935,000      310,437      4,264,337     
2022 1,675,000     1,383,150     960,000      272,485      4,290,635     

2023 - 2027 10,580,000   5,445,803     4,920,000   673,181      21,618,984   
2028 - 2032 16,005,000   2,281,753     405,000      8,859          18,700,612   

33,950,000$ 15,396,556$ 9,785,000$ 2,419,514$ 61,551,070$ 

Governmental activities Business-type activities

 
 

On November 2, 2004, City of Raytown voters approved the issuance of up to $18,500,000 for sanitary 
sewer revenue bonds and to appropriately raise the sewer rates to retire this debt.  The City subsequently 
issued bonds in the amount of $7,590,000 in 2006, $5,495,000 in 2008 and $2,310,000 in 2013.  The City is 
authorized to issue debt for the remaining $3,105,000; however, the City does not intend to issue any 
additional bonds in the upcoming fiscal year. 
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H. Long-term Debt (Continued) 

 
Capital leases.  On December 4, 2007, the City entered into a capital lease agreement for property and 
buildings in the amount of $384,439.  The lease carries an interest rate 4.715%.  The cumulative amount of 
assets acquired under the capital lease amounted to $374,278 with related accumulated depreciation of 
$118,522 as of October 31, 2017.  The lease was fully paid during the year-ended October 31, 2017.  

 
IV.  OTHER INFORMATION 
 

A. Risk Management 
 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  The City carries commercial insurance 
for these risks of loss including related lost revenue. No significant reductions in insurance coverage from 
that of the prior year have occurred.  Settlements have not exceeded insurance coverage for each of the last 
three years. 

 
B. Contingent Liabilities 
 

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by those 
agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, 
may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount of additional expenditures which may be 
disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the City expects such amounts, if any, 
to be immaterial. 
 
The City is a party in various pending claims.  Although the outcome of these pending claims is not presently 
determinable, it is the opinion of management that resolution of these matters will not have a material 
adverse effect on the financial condition of the City. 

 
C. Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

 
Pensions.  For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources, and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of 
the Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System (LAGERS) and additions to/deductions from 
LAGERS fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by LAGERS.  
For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due 
and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value.  
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C. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 
 
Plan description.  The City’s defined benefit pension plan provides certain retirement, disability and death 
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.  The City participates in the Missouri Local Government 
Employees Retirement System (LAGERS).  LAGERS is an agent multiple-employer, state-wide public 
employee pension plan established in 1967 and administered in accordance with RSMo. 70.600-70.755.  As 
such, it is LAGERS responsibility to administer the law in accordance with the expressed intent of the 
Missouri General Assembly.  The plan is qualified under the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a) and is tax 
exempt.  The responsibility for the operations and administration of LAGERS is vested in the LAGERS Board 
of Trustees consisting of seven persons.  LAGERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes 
financial statements and required supplementary information.  This report may be obtained by accessing the 
LAGERS website at www.molagers.org. 
 
Benefits provided.  LAGERS provides retirement, death and disability benefits. Benefit provisions are 
adopted by the governing body of the City, within the options available in the state statutes governing 
LAGERS. All benefits vest after 5 years of credited service. Employees who retire on or after age 60 (55 for 
police and fire) with 5 or more years of service are entitled to an allowance for life based upon the benefit 
program information provided below. Employees may retire with an early retirement benefit with a minimum 
of 5 years of credited service and after attaining age 55 (50 for police and fire) and receive a reduced 
allowance. 
 

2017 Valuation
Benefit Multiplier 1.25% for life, plus .75% to age 65
Final Average Salary 5 years
Member Contributions Noncontributory for employees  

 
Benefit terms provide for annual post retirement adjustments to each member’s retirement allowance 
subsequent to the member’s retirement date. The annual adjustment is based on the increase in the 
Consumer Price Index and is limited to 4% per year. 
 
Employees covered by benefit terms.  At June 30, 2017, the following employees were covered by the 
benefit terms: 
 

LAGERS
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 31
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 83
Active employees 127
Total 241  

 
Contributions.  The City is required to contribute amounts at least equal to the actuarially determined rate, as 
established by LAGERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the 
cost of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance an unfunded 
accrued liability. Full-time employees of the City do not contribute to the pension plan. Employer contribution 
rates are 13.7% (General) and 9.7% (Police) of annual covered payroll. 
 
Net pension liability. The City’s net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of February 28, 
2017. 
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Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability in the February 28, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined 
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 
 

Inflation 3.5% wage inflation; 2.5% price inflation
Salary increase 3.25% to 6.55% including wage inflation
Investment rate of return 7.25%, net of investment expenses  

 
The healthy retiree mortality tables, for post-retirement mortality, were the RP-2014 Health Annuitant 
mortality tables for males and females.  The disabled retiree mortality tables, for post-retirement mortality, 
were the RP-2014 disabled mortality tables for males and females.  The pre-retirement mortality tables used 
were the RP-2014 employees mortality table for males and females. 
 
Both the post-retirement and pre-retirement tables were adjusted for mortality improvement back to the 
observation period base year of 2006.  The base year for males was then established to be 2017.  Mortality 
rates for a particular calendar year are determined by applying the MP-2015 mortality improvement scale to 
the above described tables.   
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the February 28, 2017, valuation was based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period of March 1, 2011 through February 28, 2016. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a model method in 
which the best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of investment 
expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce 
the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset 
allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic 
real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table: 
 

Target Long-term expected
Asset Class Allocation real rate of return

Equity 43.00% 5.29%
Fixed Income 26.00% 2.93%
Real Assets 21.00% 3.31%
Strategic Assets 10.00% 5.73%  

 
Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability is 7.25%. The projection of cash 
flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that employer and employee contributions will be made at 
the rates agreed upon for employees and the actuarially determined rates for employers. Based on these 
assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to pay all projected future 
benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return 
on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payment to determine the total 
pension liability. 
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IV.  OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 
 
C.  Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 

 

Changes in the net pension liability. 
 

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability (a) Net Position (b) Liability (a) - (b)

Balances at 10/31/2016 14,489,324$ 10,783,147$     3,706,177$       

Changes for the year:
  Service cost 558,483        -                        558,483            
  Interest 1,057,979     -                        1,057,979         
  Changes of benefit terms [1,773,928]     -                        [1,773,928]        
  Difference between expected and actual experience 3,722,090     -                        3,722,090         
  Contributions - employer -                    800,985            [800,985]           
  Contributions - employee -                    181,359            [181,359]           
  Net investment income -                    1,364,033         [1,364,033]        
  Benefit payments, including refunds [347,807]        [347,807]           -                        
  Administrative expense -                    [17,199]             17,199              
  Other changes -                    [1,977]               1,977                

Net changes 3,216,817     1,979,394         1,237,423         
Balances at 10/31/2017 17,706,141$ 12,762,541$     4,943,600$       

Increase [Decrease]

 
 

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the Net Pension 
Liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 7.25%, as well as what the City’s Net Pension 
Liability would be using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (6.25%) or one percentage point 
higher (8.25%) than the current rate. 
 

Current
Single Discount

1% Decrease Rate Assumption 1% Increase
6.25% 7.25% 8.25%

Total Pension Liability (TPL) 17,497,273$     17,706,140$        15,198,639$     
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 12,762,540       12,762,540          12,762,540       

Net Pension Liability/(Asset) (NPL) 4,734,733$       4,943,600$          2,436,099$       
 

 

Pension expense and deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions.  
For the year ended October 31, 2017, the City recognized pension expense of $[345,718]. The City reported 
deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience 3,257,447$  309,359$     
Changes in assumptions 401,725       -                   
Net difference between projected and actual 
  earnings on investment plan investments 242,747       6,605           

Total 3,901,919$  315,964$      
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IV.  OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 
 
C.  Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 

 
Amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be 
recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

Year Ending
October 31,

2018 777,625$    
2019 777,626      
2020 673,439      
2021 504,578      
2022 325,471      

Thereafter 527,216      
Total 3,585,955$  

 
$230,262 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year 
ended October 31, 2018.  
 
Payable to the pension plan.  At October 31, 2017, the City reported a payable of $61,597 for the outstanding 
amount of contributions to the pension plan. 
 

D.  Deferred Compensation Plan 
 

Beginning on January 1, 2013, the City offers all employees not governed by a collective bargaining 
agreement a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with the Internal Revenue Code Section 
401(a).  Under the plan, the City matches 50% of employee contributions, up to 2% of the employee’s annual 
salary deferrals to the plan.  The payroll for the employees covered by the plan was $4,648,179 during the 
year.  Total gross payroll was $8,236,023.  For the year ended October 31, 2017, the City contributed 
$85,909 to the plan. 
 

E.  Police Officers’ Retirement Plan (Frozen) 
 

Plan description.  Commissioned officers of the Police Department hired before December 31, 2013 are 
members of the Police Officer’s Retirement Fund Pension Plan.  The plan is a single-employer plan 
administered by the City.  Benefit Trust Company Inc. acts as the investment advisor and custodian for the 
plan.  The financial statements of this plan are included in the Pension Trust Fund in the accompanying basic 
financial statements of the City. 
 
The plan was amended and restated effective December 31, 2013.  Under the amendment and restated 
plan, benefits were frozen as of December 31, 2013, no new participants are allowed to enter the plan, and 
all active participants as of December 31, 2013 are 100% vested. The plan does not issue a separate 
financial statement. 
 
Benefits provided.  The City’s Police Officer’s Retirement Fund Pension Plan provides retirement, disability 
and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.  Officers who retire at age 55 with 20 or more years of 
service are entitled to an allowance for life based on the benefit program information provided below.   
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IV.  OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 
 
E.  Police Officers’ Retirement Plan (Frozen) (Continued) 

 
2017 Valuation

Benefit Multiplier 2.5% up to 20 years of service plus 1% of next 10 years
Final Average Salary 5 highest calendar years of compensation of last 10 years
Member Contributions Noncontributory for employees  

 
Employees covered by benefit terms.  At January 1, 2017, the following employees were covered by the 
benefit terms: 
 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 35
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 10
Active employees 42
Total 87  

 
Contributions.  The City’s contributions are determined by the City’s Board of Aldermen, as recommended by 
the plan’s actuaries.  The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the cost 
of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance an unfunded accrued 
liability.  Employees do not contribute to the pension plan.   
 
Net pension liability.  The City’s net pension liability was measured as of January 1, 2017, and the total 
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
January 1, 2017.   
 
Actuarial assumptions.  The total pension liability in the January 1, 2017, actuarial valuation was determined 
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods including the measurement: 
 

Salary increase 4.0% (plan is frozen, scale is for death benefits only)
Investment rate of return 7.5%, net of investment expenses, 2.5% inflation component  

 
Mortality rates were based on the RP-2015 Blue Collar tables with generational projections.   
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2017, valuation was based on past experience of the plan. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a model method in 
which the best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of investment 
expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce 
the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset 
allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic 
real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table: 
 

Target Long-term expected
Asset Class Allocation real rate of return

Equity 65.00% 9.00%
Fixed Income 35.00% 3.50%  
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IV.  OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 
 
E.  Police Officers’ Retirement Plan (Frozen) (Continued) 

 
Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability is 7.5%. The projection of cash 
flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that employer and employee contributions will be made at 
the rates agreed upon for employees and the actuarially determined rates for employers. Based on these 
assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to pay all projected future 
benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return 
on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payment to determine the total 
pension liability. 
 
Changes in the net pension liability. 

 

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability (a) Net Position (b) Liability (a) - (b)

Balances at beginning of year 17,236,595$ 9,934,413$       7,302,182$       

Changes for the year:
  Service cost 15,527          -                        15,527              
  Interest 1,255,628     -                        1,255,628         
  Difference between expected and actual experience 263,758        -                        263,758            
  Contributions - employer -                    562,862            [562,862]           
  Net investment income -                    633,761            [633,761]           
  Benefit payments, including refunds [1,008,095]     [1,008,095]        -                        
  Administrative expense -                    [12,748]             12,748              

Net changes 526,818        175,780            351,038            

Balances at end of year 17,763,413$ 10,110,193$     7,653,220$       

Increase [Decrease]

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the Net Pension 
Liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 7.5%, as well as what the City’s Net Pension Liability 
would be using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (6.5%) or one percentage point higher (8.5%) 
than the current rate. 
 

Current
Single Discount

1% Decrease Rate Assumption 1% Increase
6.50% 7.50% 8.50%

Total Pension Liability (TPL) 19,667,586$  17,763,413$        16,170,691$ 
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 10,110,193    10,110,193          10,110,193   

Net Pension Liability/(Asset) (NPL) 9,557,393$    7,653,220$          6,060,498$   
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IV.  OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 
 
E.  Police Officers’ Retirement Plan (Frozen) (Continued) 

 
Pension expense and deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions.  
For the year ended October 31, 2017, the City recognized pension expense of $898,544.  The City reported 
deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience 295,448$     71,797$       
Changes in assumptions 120,998       -                   
Net difference between projected and actual 
  earnings on investment plan investments 715,914       -                   

Total 1,132,360$  71,797$        
 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be 
recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

Year Ending
October 31,

2018 342,548$    
2019 342,547      
2020 312,220      
2021 63,248        
2022 -                  

Thereafter -                  
Total 1,060,563$  

 
Payable to the pension plan.  At October 31, 2017, the City reported a payable of $50,678 for the outstanding 
amount of contributions to the pension plan for the year ended October 31, 2017. 
 

F.  Frozen Pension Plan 
 
Prior to participating in LAGERS and the Police Officers’ Retirement Fund, the City offered two defined 
benefit pension plans for its employees.  Upon entering into LAGERS and the Police Officers’ Retirement 
Fund, the City transferred the obligation for all future benefit payments under the plans to an outside 
insurance company.  The City has no future obligation to contribute any additional amounts to these plans, 
and no amounts were paid during the year ended October 31, 2017.  Accordingly, no provisions for the 
related assets have been made in the accompanying financial statements.  The City was unable to determine 
the benefits paid from these plans during the year ended October 31, 2017. 

 
G. Tax Abatements 
 

Tax abatements are granted under the Urban Redevelopment program described under Chapter 353 of the 
RSMo, Tax Increment Financing program describe under Section 99.800 RSMo, the Industrial Development 
program described under Chapter 100 of RSMo, and the Enhanced Enterprise Zone program described 
under Sections 135.950 to 135.973 of RSMo.  For each of these programs, property taxes are abated by 
reducing the assessed valuation of the associated properties.  For the fiscal year ended October 31, 2017, 
taxes abated for the City in connection with the Chapter 353, and Tax Increment Financing program were 
estimated at $6,543, and $24,279, respectively. 
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IV.  OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 
 

H.  Postemployment Healthcare Plan (Continued) 
 

Plan description.  The City provides for a continuation of medical, pharmacy, dental and vision insurance 
benefits to eligible early retirees and their spouses.  The plan is administered by Midwest Public Risk (MPR) 
and is an agent multiple-employer plan.  No separate financial report is issued for the plan. 
 
Funding policy. The City requires the retirees to pay 125% of the premiums charged to active employees.  
Retirees and spouses have the same benefits as active employees.  However, all retiree coverage 
terminates upon Medicare entitlement or if payment is not received on a timely basis.   
 
Annual OPEB cost and net OPEB obligation.  The City’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost 
(expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount 
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45.  The ARC represents a 
level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize 
any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years.  
 
The following table shows the components of the City’s annual OPEB cost for the Plan for the year, the 
amount actually contributed to the plan, and the changes in the City’s net OPEB obligation to the Plan: 

 
Annual Required contribution 48,923$          
Interest on Net OPEB obligation 15,220            

Adjustment to annual required contribution [19,870]           

Annual OPEB cost 44,273            
Contributions made [15,000]           
Change in Net OPEB Obligation 29,273            
Net OPEB Obligation - beginning of year 338,218         

Net OPEB Obligation - end of year 367,491$        
 

 
The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan, and the net 
OPEB obligation for the year ended October 31, 2017, was as follows:   

 
Fiscal Annual Percentage OPEB Net
Year OPEB of ARC Cost OPEB

Ended Cost Contributed Contributed Obligation
October 31, 2015 56,041$  8.92% 5,000$          304,481$   
October 31, 2016 44,737    22.48% 11,000          338,218     
October 31, 2017 44,273    30.66% 15,000          367,491      

 
Funding status and funding progress.  As of July 1, 2015, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the Plan 
was not funded.  The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $369,931 and the actuarial value of asset 
was $0, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $369,931.  The covered payroll 
(annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $6,893,180 and the ratio of the UAAL to the 
covered payroll was 5.4%.  
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IV.  OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 
 

H. Postemployment Healthcare Plan (Continued) 
 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions 
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.  Examples include assumptions about future 
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend.  Amounts determined regarding the funded status of 
the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual 
results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.  The schedule 
of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial 
statement, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets (if any) are 
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions.  Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on 
the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan participants) and include the 
types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs 
between the employer and plan participants to that point.  The actuarial methods and assumptions used 
include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued 
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 
 
As of July 1, 2015, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the entry age normal actuarial cost method was 
used.  The actuarial assumptions included a 4.50% investment rate of return, which is the rate of the 
employer’s own investments as there are no plan assets and an annual healthcare cost trend of 7% initially, 
reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 5% after six years.  The UAAL is being amortized as a level 
dollar over an open thirty-year period.    
 

I. Contingencies 
 

The City is involved in lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of activities, including claims regarding contract 
issues, personal injury, discriminatory personnel practices, property condemnation proceedings, and suits 
contesting the legality of certain taxes.  While these cases may have future financial effect, management, 
based on the advice of legal counsel, believes that their ultimate outcome will not be material to the basic 
financial statements. 
 

J. Encumbrances 
 

The City uses encumbrances to control expenditure commitments for the year and to enhance cash 
management. Encumbrances represent commitments related to executor contracts not yet performed and 
purchase orders not yet filled. Commitments for such expenditure of monies are encumbered to reserve a 
portion of applicable appropriations. Encumbrances still open at year-end are not accounted for as 
expenditures and liabilities, but, rather, as restricted, committed, or assigned fund balance. At October 31, 
2017, the City's recorded encumbrances in governmental funds were as follows: 
 

Encumbrance
Fund Amount

Park Fund 32,344$         
Transportation Sales Tax Fund 590,193         
Capital Improvements Fund 62,720           
Storm Water Fund 30,106           

715,363$       
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Schedule of Funding Progress - Other Post-Employment Benefits 
 

UAAL as
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Funded Covered Percent of
Valuation Value of Accrued AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date Assets (a) Liability (b) (b) - (a) (a) / (b) (c) (b)-(a)/(c)
July 1, 2011 -$         264,530$    264,530$ -      6,957,357$ 3.8%
July 1, 2013 -           431,305      431,305   -      6,821,324   6.3%
July 1, 2015 -           369,931      369,931   -      6,893,180   5.4%  
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Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios, Last Ten Fiscal Years - LAGERS 
 

2017 2016 2015
Total pension liability
  Service cost 558,483$      533,362$      560,833$      
  Interest on the total pension liability 1,057,979     922,257        877,580        
  Differences between expected and actual experience 3,722,090     152,189        [505,106]        
  Changes of assumptions -                    591,243        -                    
  Changes of benefit terms [1,773,928]     -                    -                    
  Benefit payments and refunds [347,807]        [331,216]        [276,894]        

Net change in total pension liability 3,216,817     1,867,835     656,413        

Total pension liability, beginning 14,489,324   12,621,489   11,965,076   

Total pension liability, ending 17,706,141$ 14,489,324$ 12,621,489$ 

Plan fiduciary net position
  Contributions - employer 800,985$      822,633$      823,197$      
  Contributions - employee 181,359        -                    -                    
  Pension plan net investment income 1,364,033     [27,096]          188,721        
  Benefit payments and refunds [347,807]        [331,216]        [276,894]        
  Pension plan administrative expenses [17,199]          [17,003]          [18,549]          
  Other changes [1,977]            [1,534]            180,399        

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 1,979,394     445,784        896,874        

Plan fiduciary net position, beginning 10,783,147   10,337,363   9,440,489     

Plan fiduciary net position, ending 12,762,541$ 10,783,147$ 10,337,363$ 

Employer net pension liability/(asset) 4,943,600$   3,706,177$   2,284,126$   

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
  of the total pension liability/asset 72.08% 74.42% 81.90%

Covered employee payroll 6,973,652$   7,456,923$   6,988,224$   

Employer's net pension liability/asset as a percentage
  of covered employee payroll 70.89% 49.70% 32.69%

For the Year Ended
October 31,
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Schedule of Pension Contributions, Last Ten Fiscal Years - LAGERS 
 

Actuarially
Determined Contribution Covered Contribution

Year Ended Pension in Contribution Employee as
June 30, Contribution Relation Deficiency Payroll Percentage

2017 758,396$   758,396$   -$               7,306,482$ 10.38%
2016 806,116     806,116     -                 7,437,737   10.84%
2015 1,108,659  1,108,659  -                 9,964,066   11.13%
2014 485,224     485,224     -                 4,219,336   11.50%
2013 508,424     508,424     -                 4,236,865   12.00%
2012 501,652     501,652     -                 4,215,565   11.90%
2011 523,449     523,449     -                 4,326,023   12.10%
2010 489,302     489,302     -                 4,292,123   11.40%
2009 473,388     473,388     -                 4,152,526   11.40%
2008 466,421     466,421     -                 4,055,832   11.50%  

 
Notes to the Schedule - LAGERS 

 
Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of February 28, 2017. 

 
Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates: 

 
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal and Modified Terminal Funding
Amortization method Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed
Remaining amortization period Multiple bases from 13 to 19 years
Asset valuation method 5 year smoothed market; 20% corridor
Inflation 3.25% wage inflation; 2.5% price inflation
Salary increases 3.25% to 6.55% including wage inflation
Investment rate of return 7.25%, net of investment expense
Retirement age Experience-based table of rates that are specific

  to the type of eligibility condition
Mortality The healthy retiree mortality tables, for post-retirement mortality, 

  were the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant mortality table for males
  and females.  The disabled retiree mortality tables, for post-retirement
  mortality, were the RP-2014 disabled mortality tables for
  males and females.  The pre-retirement mortality tables used
  were the RP-2014 employees mortality tables for males and females.

Both the post-retirement and pre-retirement tables were adjusted for
  mortality improvement back to the observation period base year of 2006.
  The base year for males was then established to be 2017.  Mortality
  rates for a particular calendar year are determined by applying the
  MP-2015 mortality improvement scale to the above described tables.  
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Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios, Last Ten Fiscal Years - Police Pension 
 

2017 2016 2015
Total pension liability
  Service cost 15,526$        12,633$        12,663$        
  Interest on the total pension liability 1,255,628     1,211,255     1,193,469     
  Differences between expected and actual experience 263,758        148,107        [167,956]        
  Changes of assumptions -                    207,116        -                    
  Benefit payments, including refunds [1,008,095]     [974,294]        [960,970]        

Net change in total pension liability 526,817        604,817        77,206          

Total pension liability, beginning 17,236,596   16,631,779   16,493,351   

Total pension liability, ending 17,763,413$ 17,236,596$ 16,570,557$ 

Plan fiduciary net position
  Contributions - employer 562,862$      510,320$      513,291$      
  Pension plan net investment income 633,761        [157,302]        219,080        
  Benefit payments, including refunds [1,008,095]     [974,294]        [960,970]        
  Pension plan administrative expenses [12,748]          [14,400]          [99,319]          

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 175,780        [635,676]        [327,918]        

Plan fiduciary net position, beginning 9,934,413     10,570,089   10,546,501   

Plan fiduciary net position, ending 10,110,193$ 9,934,413$   10,218,583$ 

Employer net pension liability/(asset) 7,653,220$   7,302,183$   6,351,974$   

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
  of the total pension liability/asset 56.92% 57.64% 61.67%

Covered employee payroll -$                  -$                  -$                  

Employer's net pension liability/asset as a percentage
  of covered employee payroll 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

October 31,
For the Year Ended
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Schedule of Pension Contributions, Last Ten Fiscal Years - Police Pension 
 

Actuarially
Determined Contribution Covered Contribution

Year Ended Pension in Contribution Employee as
October 31, Contribution Relation Deficiency Payroll Percentage

2017 562,862$   562,862$   -$               -$                0.00%
2016 513,291     510,320     2,971         -                  0.00%
2015 508,285     509,880     [1,595]         -                  0.00%
2014 660,842     660,842     -                 3,122,522   21.16%
2013 678,787     686,270     [7,483]         3,065,002   22.39%
2012 616,618     645,818     [29,200]       2,978,208   21.68%
2011 865,591     721,033     144,558     2,987,634   24.13%
2010 685,030     278,854     406,176     2,780,497   10.03%
2009 501,472     1,115,415  [613,943]     2,686,169   41.52%
2008 525,837     560,191     [34,354]       2,770,595   20.22%  

 
Notes to the Schedule - Police Pension 

 
Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of January 1, 2017. 

 
Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates: 
 

Actuarial cost method Unit Credit
Amortization method Closed
Remaining amortization period 27 years
Asset valuation method 5 year smoothing
Inflation 4.0%
Salary increases 4.0% prior to plan freeze
Investment rate of return 7.5%
Retirement age Age 55

Mortality RP-2015 Blue Collar generational tables  
 
 

 



Public Total Other
Risk Transportation Capital Safety Capital Storm Governmental

Park Management Sales Tax Sales Tax Sales Tax Improvements Water Funds

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 759,578$       35,347$         1,076,236$    773,672$       821,784$       620,101$       124,082$       4,210,800$      
Receivables:
  Taxes 44,269           -                      181,163         172,320         214,973         -                      13,436           626,161          
  Accounts -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      50,000           50,000            
  Loan -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      686,837         -                      686,837          
  Interest 2,782             369                5,096             2,870             3,048             1,991             811                16,967            
Prepaid expenses 21,593           146,271         -                      -                      27,596           -                      -                      195,460          

Total assets 828,222$        181,987$        1,262,495$    948,862$        1,067,401$    1,308,929$    188,329$        5,786,225$      

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

Accounts payable 8,174$           8,775$           106,359$       -$                    14,027$         24,039$         61,894$         223,268$        

Accrued liabilities 19,075           -                      -                      -                      43,853           -                      -                      62,928            

Total liabilities 27,249           8,775             106,359         -                     57,880           24,039           61,894           286,196          

Fund balance:
Nonspendable 21,593           146,271         -                      -                      27,596           686,837         -                      882,297          
Restricted:
  General government -                     26,941           -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      26,941            
  Public safety -                     -                     -                      -                      981,925         -                      -                      981,925          
  Public works -                     -                     1,156,136      948,862         -                      -                      126,435         2,231,433       
Assigned:
  Parks and recreation 779,380         -                     -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      779,380          
  Public works -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      598,053         -                      598,053          

Total fund balance [deficit] 800,973         173,212         1,156,136      948,862         1,009,521      1,284,890      126,435         5,500,029       

Total liabilities and fund balances 828,222$        181,987$        1,262,495$    948,862$        1,067,401$    1,308,929$    188,329$        5,786,225$      

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

October 31, 2017

CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements
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Public Total Other
Risk Transportation Capital Safety Capital Storm Governmental

Park Management Sales Tax Sales Tax Sales Tax Improvements Water Funds

REVENUES:
    Taxes 816,081$       -$                  1,197,101$    1,021,964$    1,347,821$    -$                  96,879$         4,479,846$    
    Charges for services 99,501           -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    99,501           
    Miscellaneous 14,799           104,721         -                    14,850           -                    -                    -                    134,370         

    Use of money and property 8,871            1,190            13,739           9,822            8,778            74,521           1,955            118,876         

Total revenues 939,252         105,911         1,210,840      1,046,636      1,356,599      74,521           98,834           4,832,593      

EXPENDITURES:
    Current:
      General government -                    154,915         -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    154,915         
      Parks and recreation 878,243         -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    878,243         
      Public safety -                    -                    -                    -                    1,287,875      -                    -                    1,287,875      
    Capital outlay -                    -                    1,024,654      1,280,683      149,372         26,945           162,399         2,644,053      
    Debt service:
      Principal -                    -                    -                    45,835           -                    -                    -                    45,835           

      Interest and other charges -                    -                    -                    2,163            -                    -                    -                    2,163            

Total expenditures 878,243         154,915         1,024,654      1,328,681      1,437,247      26,945           162,399         5,013,084      

Excess [deficiency] of revenues
over [under] expenditures 61,009           [49,004]          186,186         [282,045]        [80,648]          47,576           [63,565]          [180,491]        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES [USES]

    Transfers in -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    190,000         190,000         

Fund balance - Beginning of year 739,964         222,216         969,950         1,230,907      1,090,169      1,237,314      -                    5,490,520      

Fund balance - End of year 800,973$       173,212$       1,156,136$    948,862$       1,009,521$    1,284,890$    126,435$       5,500,029$    

For the Year Ended October 31, 2017

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements
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Variance with
 Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual [Negative]

Revenues:
    Taxes 855,250$       855,250$       816,081$     [39,169]$      
    Charges for services 112,600         112,600         99,501         [13,099]        
    Miscellaneous 7,600             7,600             14,799         7,199           
    Use of money and property -                     -                     8,871           8,871           

Total Revenues 975,450         975,450         939,252       [36,198]        

Expenditures:
    Parks and recreation 1,108,181      1,119,352      908,416       210,936       

Total Expenditures 1,108,181      1,119,352      908,416       210,936       

Excess [Deficiency] of Revenues
    Over [Under] Expenditures [132,731]$      [143,902]$      30,836         174,738$     

Fund Balance, November 1 737,793       

Fund Balance, October 31 768,629       

GAAP to Budgetary Basis Adjustment:

  Encumbrances Outstanding 32,344         

GAAP Fund Balance, October 31 800,973$      

PARK FUND

CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

Budgeted Amounts

For the Year Ended October 31, 2017
IN FUND BALANCE -  ACTUAL AND BUDGET

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements
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Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual [Negative]

Revenues:
    Miscellaneous 115,000$       115,000$       104,721$    [10,279]$       
    Use of money and property -                     -                     1,190          1,190            

Total Revenues 115,000         115,000         105,911      [9,089]           

Expenditures:
    General government 220,000         220,000         154,534      65,466          

Total Expenditures 220,000         220,000         154,534      65,466          

Excess [Deficiency] of Revenues
    Over [Under] Expenditures [105,000]$      [105,000]$      [48,623]       56,377$        

Fund Balance, November 1 221,835      

Fund Balance, October 31 173,212$    

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

RISK MANAGEMENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE -  ACTUAL AND BUDGET

For the Year Ended October 31, 2017

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

TRANSPORTATION SALES TAX FUND

For the Year Ended October 31, 2017

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual [Negative]

Revenues:
    Taxes 1,190,000$    1,190,000$    1,197,101$ 7,101$          
    Use of money and property 1,500             1,500             13,739        12,239          

Total Revenues 1,191,500      1,191,500      1,210,840   19,340          

Expenditures:
    Capital outlay 645,250         1,724,568      1,312,342   412,226        

Total Expenditures 645,250         1,724,568      1,312,342   412,226        

Excess [Deficiency] of Revenues
    Over [Under] Expenditures 546,250$       [533,068]$      [101,502]      431,566$      

Fund Balance, November 1 667,445      

Fund Balance, October 31 565,943      

GAAP to Budgetary Basis Adjustment:

  Encumbrances Outstanding 590,193      

GAAP Basis, October 31 1,156,136$  

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE -  ACTUAL AND BUDGET

Budgeted Amounts

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

CAPITAL SALES TAX FUND

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual [Negative]

Revenues:
    Taxes 975,000$       975,000$       1,021,964$    46,964$        
    Miscellaneous 15,000           15,000           14,850           [150]              
    Use of money and property 4,000             4,000             9,822             5,822            

Total Revenues 994,000         994,000         1,046,636      52,636          

Expenditures:
    Capital outlay 1,214,959      1,973,522      1,011,840      961,682        
    Debt service:
      Principal -                     45,835           45,835           -                    
      Interest and other charges -                     2,163             2,163             -                    

Total Expenditures 1,214,959      2,021,520      1,059,838      961,682        

Excess [Deficiency] of Revenues
    Over [Under] Expenditures [220,959]$      [1,027,520]$   [13,202]          1,014,318$   

Fund Balance, November 1 899,344         

Fund Balance, October 31 886,142         

GAAP to Budgetary Basis Adjustment:

  Encumbrances Outstanding 62,720           

GAAP Basis, October 31 948,862$       

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE -  ACTUAL AND BUDGET

Budgeted Amounts

For the Year Ended October 31, 2017

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

PUBLIC SAFETY SALES TAX FUND

For the Year Ended October 31, 2017

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual [Negative]

Revenues:
    Taxes 1,334,000$    1,334,000$    1,347,821$    13,821$        
    Use of money and property 2,200             2,200             8,778             6,578            

Total Revenues 1,336,200      1,336,200      1,356,599      20,399          

Expenditures:
    Public safety 1,550,277      1,604,329      1,287,875      316,454        
    Capital outlay 159,750         151,838         149,271         2,567            

Total Expenditures 1,710,027      1,756,167      1,437,146      319,021        

Excess [Deficiency] of Revenues
    Over [Under] Expenditures [373,827]$      [419,967]$      [80,547]          339,420$      

Fund Balance, November 1 1,090,068      

Fund Balance, October 31 1,009,521$    

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE -  ACTUAL AND BUDGET

Budgeted Amounts

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS FUND

For the Year Ended October 31, 2017

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual [Negative]

Revenues:
    Use of money and property -$                   74,600$         74,521$        [79]$              

Total Revenues -                     74,600           74,521          [79]                

Expenditures:
    Capital outlay -                     4,000             26,945          [22,945]         

Total Expenditures -                     4,000             26,945          [22,945]         

Excess [Deficiency] of Revenues
    Over [Under] Expenditures -$                   70,600$         47,576          [23,024]$       

Fund Balance, November 1 1,237,314     

Fund Balance, October 31 1,284,890$   

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE -  ACTUAL AND BUDGET

Budgeted Amounts

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements
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Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual [Negative]

Revenues:
    Taxes 83,250$           83,250$            96,879$          13,629$          
    Use of money and property -                       -                        1,955              1,955              

Total Revenues 83,250             83,250              98,834            15,584            

Expenditures:
  Capital outlay 242,000           242,000            192,505          49,495            

Total Expenditures 242,000           242,000            192,505          49,495            

Excess [Deficiency] of Revenues 
   Over [Under] Expenditures [158,750]          [158,750]           [93,671]           65,079            

Other Financing Sources [Uses]:
    Transfers in 190,000           190,000            190,000          -                       

Total Other Financing Sources [Uses] 190,000           190,000            190,000          -                       

Excess [Deficiency] of Revenues
   and Other Sources Over [Under]
   Expenditures and Other [Uses] 31,250$           31,250$            96,329            65,079$          

Fund Balance, November 1 -                       

Fund Balance, October 31 96,329            

GAAP to Budgetary Basis Adjustment:

  Encumbrances Outstanding 30,106            

GAAP Fund Balance, October 31 126,435$        

CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

STORM WATER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE -  ACTUAL AND BUDGET

For the Year Ended October 31, 2017

Budgeted Amounts

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

Balance Balance
JACKSON COUNTY TAX FUND October 31, October 31,

ASSETS 2016 Additions Deductions 2017
Cash and cash equivalents 10$                 7,222,425$    7,222,425$    10$                 

Total assets 10$                 7,222,425$    7,222,425$    10$                 

LIABILITIES
Due to others 10$                 7,222,425$    7,222,425$    10$                 

Total liabilities 10$                 7,222,425$    7,222,425$    10$                 

Balance Balance
RAYTOWN HIGHWAY 350 TDD October 31, October 31,

ASSETS 2016 Additions Deductions 2017
Cash and cash equivalents 102,940$       74,203$         102,863$       74,280$         
Taxes receivable 12,131           76,755           74,203           14,683           

Total assets 115,071$       150,958$       177,066$       88,963$         

LIABILITIES
Due to others 115,071$       150,958$       177,066$       88,963$         

Total liabilities 115,071$       150,958$       177,066$       88,963$         

Balance Balance
DITZLER CID October 31, October 31,

ASSETS 2016 Additions Deductions 2017
Cash and cash equivalents -$                   118,044$       118,044$       -$                   
Taxes receivable 16,683           118,044         118,044         16,683           

Total assets 16,683$         236,088$       236,088$       16,683$         

LIABILITIES
Due to others 16,683$         236,088$       236,088$       16,683$         

Total liabilities 16,683$         236,088$       236,088$       16,683$         

Balance Balance
TOTAL October 31, October 31,

ASSETS 2016 Additions Deductions 2017
Cash and cash equivalents 102,950$       7,414,672$    7,443,332$    74,290$         
Taxes receivable 28,814           194,799         192,247         31,366           

Total assets 131,764$       7,609,471$    7,635,579$    105,656$       

LIABILITIES
Due to others 131,764$       7,609,471$    7,635,579$    105,656$       

Total liabilities 131,764$       7,609,471$    7,635,579$    105,656$       

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS
October 31, 2017

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements
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DRAFT 
MINUTES 

TENTATIVE AGENDA 
RAYTOWN BOARD OF ALDERMEN 

MARCH 20, 2018 
REGULAR SESSION NO. 24 

RAYTOWN CITY HALL 
10000 EAST 59TH STREET 

RAYTOWN, MISSOURI  64133 
 

OPENING SESSION 
7:00 P.M. 

 
Mayor Michael McDonough called the March 20, 2018 Board of Aldermen meeting to order at 7:03 p.m. Tim 
Mabbot of Raytown Christian Church provided the invocation and led the pledge of allegiance. 
 
Roll 
 
Roll was called by Teresa Henry, City Clerk, and the attendance was as follows: 
 
Present: Alderman Frank Hunt, Alderman Jason Greene, Alderman Mark Moore, Alderman Bill Van Buskirk, 

Alderman Karen Black, Alderman Jim Aziere, Alderman Ryan Myers, Alderman Steve Meyers, 
Alderman Bonnaye Mims 

 
Public Comments 
 
Anahi Tapia, Bel Aire, KS, spoke on behalf of the United Food & Commercial Workers International Union’s 
(UFCW) Making Change at Wal-Mart campaign regarding their desire to speak with the elected officials of the 
City. 
 
Randy Parraz, Brandywine, MD, spoke on behalf of the UFCW’s Making Change at Wal-Mart campaign 
regarding their desire to speak with the elected officials of the City. 
 
Tony Jacob, 10201 E 64 Street, spoke regarding the recent Park Board meeting, street lights, property taxes, 
Ward 5 representation, a City Charter, website statistics and the meeting’s agenda. 
 
Diane Krizek, 10801 E 83 Street, spoke regarding the Ward 5 appointment. 
 
Allan Thompson, 7823 Ridgeway, spoke regarding the meeting’s agenda. 
 
Communication from the Mayor 
 
The Mayor highlighted the events he attended since the previous meeting. 
 
Communication from the City Administrator 
 
The City Administrator provided an update on the City’s current projects and plans. 
 
Committee Reports 
 
Alderman Van Buskirk spoke regarding the Police Pension Board Meeting. 
 
Alderman Hunt spoke regarding the Council on Aging’s 2018 Senior Expo. 
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STUDY SESSION 
 

Quarterly Financial Report 
Briana Burrichter, Finance Director 

 
Finance Director, Briana Burrichter, presented a first quarter Financial Report of fiscal year 2017-2018. 

 
LEGISLATIVE SESSION 

 
1. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Board of Aldermen and will be enacted by one motion 
without separate discussion or debate.  The Mayor or a member of the Board of Aldermen may request that any item be removed from 
the consent agenda.  If there is no objection by the remaining members of the board, such item will be removed from the consent 
agenda and considered separately.  If there is an objection, the item may only be removed by a motion and vote of the board. 
 

Approval of the Regular March 6, 2018 Board of Aldermen meeting minutes. 
 
Alderman Mims, seconded by Alderman Black, made a motion to adopt. The motion was approved by 
a vote of 9-0. 
 
Ayes: Aldermen Mims, Black, Aziere, Greene, Meyers, Myers, Hunt, Van Buskirk, Moore 
Nays: None 
 
REGULAR AGENDA    
                                                                                                                  

OLD BUSINESS 
 
2. Public Hearing:  A public hearing to consider vacating a portion of 75th Street. 
  

2a. SECOND READING:  Amended Bill No. 6457-18, Section XIII.  AN ORDINANCE VACATING A 
PORTION OF 75TH STREET LOCATED BETWEEN THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 
RAYTOWN ROAD AND THE WEST PROPERTY LINE OF LOT 2, RAYTOWN CROSSING EAST – 
SECOND PLAT, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPREHENSIVE ZONING 
REGULATIONS FOR THE CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI.   Point of Contact:  Michael Swan, 
Planning & Zoning Coordinator. 

 
The ordinance was read by title only by Teresa Henry, City Clerk. 
 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Michael Swan, Planning & Zoning Coordinator, remained available for any discussion. 
 
Alderman Van Buskirk, seconded Alderman Myers, made a motion to adopt. The motion was approved by 
a vote of 9-0. 
 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing. 
 
Ayes: Aldermen Van Buskirk, Myers, Hunt, Mims, Greene, Moore, Aziere, Black, Meyers 
Nays: None 
 
Became Ordinance 5564-18 
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NEW BUSINESS 
 

3. FIRST READING:  Bill No. 6463-18, Section III-A-9.  AN ORDINANCE CALLING AN ELECTION IN THE 
CITY OF RAYTOWN, JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI TO BE HELD ON THE 7TH DAY OF AUGUST, 
2018 FOR THE PURPOSE OF SUBMITTING A QUESTION TO THE QUALIFIED VOTERS OF THE CITY 
OF RAYTOWN TO INCREASE THE GENERAL PROPERTY TAX RATE FOR ALL SUBCLASSES OF 
PROPERTY TO $1.00 PER ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS OF ASSESSED VALUATION IN COMPLIANCE 
WITH STATE LAW, PRESCRIBING THE FORM OF BALLOT TO BE USED THEREAT, SETTING OUT 
THE FORM OF NOTICE OF SAID ELECTION AND DIRECTING ITS PUBLICATION.   Point of Contact:  
Tom Cole, City Administrator. 

 
The ordinance was read by title only by Teresa Henry, City Clerk. 
 
Tom Cole, City Administrator, remained available for any discussion. 
 
Discussion involved tax revenue distribution and property assessments.  
 
The Mayor called for a 10-minute recess. 
 
The Meeting reconvened at 8:45 p.m. 
 
4. FIRST READING:  Bill No. 6464-18, Section III-A-9.  AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING 

SUBMISSION AT THE PRIMARY ELECTION TO BE HELD ON AUGUST 7, 2018 TO THE QUALIFIED 
VOTERS OF THE CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI THE QUESTION OF WHETHER THE CITY SHALL 
IMPOSE A MOTOR FUEL FEE TO BE USED TO FUND THE CONSTRUCTION, RECONSTRUCTION, 
MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, AND SIGNING OF ROADS AND STREETS AT THE RATE OF TWO CENTS 
($0.02) PER GALLON TO BE IMPOSED ON ALL MERCHANTS FOR THE SALE OF FUEL USED FOR 
PROPELLING MOTOR VEHICLES PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY GRANTED BY AND SUBJECT TO 
THE PROVISIONS OF ARTICLE IV SECTION 30(A) OF THE MISSOURI CONSTITUTION AND 
IMPOSING SUCH TAXES IF APPROVED BY A MAJORITY OF THE QUALIFIED VOTERS VOTING 
THEREON.   Point of Contact:  Tom Cole, City Administrator. 

 
The ordinance was read by title only by Teresa Henry, City Clerk. 
 
Tom Cole, City Administrator, remained available for any discussion. 
 
Discussion involved tax revenue distribution.  
 
5. FIRST READING:  Bill No. 6465-18, Section III-A-9.  AN ORDINANCE IMPOSING A USE TAX AT THE 

RATE OF TWO AND ONE-HALF PERCENT (2.5%) FOR THE PRIVILEGE OF STORING, USING, OR 
CONSUMING WITHIN THE CITY ANY ARTICLE OF TANGIBLE PERSONAL PROPERTY PURSUANT 
TO THE AUTHORITY GRANTED BY AND SUBJECT TO THE PROVISION OF SECTIONS 144.600 
THROUGH 144.761 RSMO; PROVIDING FOR THE USE TAX TO BE REPEALED, REDUCED OR 
RAISED IN THE SAME AMOUNT AS ANY CITY SALES TAX IS REPEALED, REDUCED, OR RAISED; 
AND PROVIDING FOR SUBMISSION OF THE PROPOSAL TO THE QUALIFIED VOTERS OF THE CITY 
FOR THEIR APPROVAL AT THE PRIMARY ELECTION CALLED AND TO BE HELD IN THE CITY ON 
AUGUST 7, 2018, AND PROPOSING THE FORM OF THE BALLOTS TO BE EMPLOYED AT SAID 
ELECTION AND DIRECTING THE CITY CLERK TO DO ALL THINGS CALLED FOR BY LAW IN 
CONNECTION WITH THE HOLDING OF SAID ELECTION.   Point of Contact:  Tom Cole, City 
Administrator. 

 
The ordinance was read by title only by Teresa Henry, City Clerk. 
 
Tom Cole, City Administrator, remained available for any discussion. 
 
Discussion involved tax revenue distribution.  
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6. R-3072-18:  A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE MAYOR’S AD HOC EVENT COMMITTEE IN THEIR 

EFFORTS TO ORGANIZE A SUMMER CONCERT SERIES ON THE CITY’S GREENSPACE IN THE 
CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT.  Point of Contact:  Dave Turner, Interim Parks Director. 

 
The resolution was read by title only by Teresa Henry, City Clerk. 
 
Interim Parks Director, Dave Turner, and committee member Jeff Bethel, remained available for any 
discussion. 
 
Discussion clarified Raytown Live’s event funding.  
 
Alderman Van Buskirk, seconded by Alderman Black, made a motion to adopt. The motion was approved by a 
vote of 9-0. 
 
Ayes: Aldermen Van Buskirk, Black, Moore, Aziere, Hunt, Mims, Meyers, Greene, Myers 
Nays: None 
 
Community partners present were asked to stand in recognition for their part in the project. 

 
7. R-3073-18:  A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2017-2018 BUDGET RELATED TO 

PARKS AND RAYTOWN LIVE EVENTS.  Point of Contact:  Dave Turner, Interim Parks Director. 
 

The resolution was read by title only by Teresa Henry, City Clerk. 
 
Interim Parks Director, Dave Turner, remained available for any discussion. 
 
Alderman Black, seconded by Alderman Mims, made a motion to adopt. The motion was approved by a vote of 
9-0. 
 
Ayes: Aldermen Black, Mims, Greene, Van Buskirk, Hunt, Meyers, Aziere, Moore, Myers 
Nays: None 

 
8. R-3074-18:  A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2017-2018 BUDGET RELATED TO 

PARKS AND THE ARTS & MUSIC FESTIVAL.  Point of Contact:  Dave Turner, Interim Parks Director. 
 
The resolution was read by title only by Teresa Henry, City Clerk. 
 
Interim Parks Director, Dave Turner, remained available for any discussion. 
 
Alderman Mims, seconded by Alderman Aziere, made a motion to adopt. The motion was approved by a vote 
of 9-0. 
 
Ayes: Aldermen Mims, Aziere, Black, Hunt, Greene, Myers, Moore, Meyers, Van Buskirk 
Nays: None 
 
9. R-3075-18:  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WITH BRAD 

TAYLOR, INC. FOR MOWING SERVICES IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $25,000.00 BUT WITHIN 
BUDGETED AMOUNTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017-2018.  Point of Contact:  Dave Turner, Interim Parks 
Director. 

 
The resolution was read by title only by Teresa Henry, City Clerk. 
 
Interim Parks Director, Dave Turner, remained available for any discussion. 
 
Discussion compared the amounts quoted in each bid. 



Page 5 of 5 Board of Aldermen March 20, 2018 

 
Alderman Mims, seconded by Alderman Meyers, made a motion to adopt. The motion was approved by a vote 
of 9-0. 
 
Ayes: Aldermen Mims, Meyers, Hunt, Van Buskirk, Moore, Myers, Greene, Aziere, Black 
Nays: None 

 
CLOSED SESSION 

 
Notice is hereby given that the Mayor and Board of Aldermen may conduct a closed session, pursuant 
to the following statutory provisions: 
 
 
610.021(3) Hiring, firing, disciplining or promoting of particular employees by a public governmental body 

when personal information relating to the performance or merit of an individual employee is 
discussed or recorded; and/or 

 
610.021(13) Individually identifiable personnel records, performance ratings or records pertaining to 

employees or applicants for employment. 
 
Alderman Mims, seconded by Alderman Myers, made a motion to adjourn and reconvene in Closed Session. 
The motion was approved by a vote of 9-0. 
 
Ayes: Aldermen Mims, Myers, Hunt, Greene, Moore, Van Buskirk, Black, Aziere, Meyers 
Nay: None 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 10:15 p.m. 
 
 
 
____________________ 
Teresa M. Henry, MRCC 
City Clerk 
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CITY OF RAYTOWN 
Request for Board Action 

 
Date: April 5, 2018      Resolution No.:  R-3076-18 
To: Mayor and Board of Aldermen  
From:  Teresa Henry, City Clerk  
 
Department Head Approval:          
     
City Administrator Approval:        

 
 
 
 
Action Requested:   Appointment of a member of the Board of Aldermen to serve as Acting 
President during the upcoming year of 2018-2019.   
 
Recommendation:  None. 
  
Analysis:  The appointment of an Acting President of the Board of Aldermen may be done by 
motion established by RSMo. Section 79.090, Board to select an acting president, term. 
 

79.090.  The board shall elect one of their own number who shall be styled “acting 
president of the board of aldermen” and who shall serve for a term of one year. 

 
The duties of the Acting President are established by RSMo. Section 79.100, Acting 
president to perform duties of mayor, when. 
 

79.100. When any vacancy shall happen in the office of mayor by death, 
resignation, removal from the city, removal from office, refusal to qualify, or from any 
other cause whatever, the acting president of the board of aldermen shall, for the time 
being, perform the duties of mayor, with all the rights, privileges, powers and jurisdiction 
of the mayor, until such vacancy be filled or such disability be removed; or, in case of 
temporary absence, until the mayor's return. 
 
Budgetary Impact: 
 

 Not Applicable 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.:  R-3076-18 
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A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN TO THE 
POSITION OF ACTING PRESIDENT FOR A TERM OF ONE YEAR OR UNTIL A 
SUCCESSOR IS APPOINTED 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 79.090 RSMo. provides that the Board of Aldermen elect one of 
their own number as Acting President of the Board of Aldermen to serve for a term of one year; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the duties of the Acting President of the Board of Aldermen are established 
by Section 79.100 RSMo., which provides that the Acting President shall perform the duties of 
the Mayor in the absence or inability of the Mayor to act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen find it is in the best interest of the City to appoint 
__________ to serve as the Acting President of the Board of Aldermen during the next year;  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 
CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

THAT __________ is hereby appointed to serve as the Acting President of the Board of 
Aldermen of the City of Raytown for a term of one year;  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Aldermen and APPROVED by the Mayor of 

the City of Raytown, Missouri, the 10th day of April, 2018. 
 
 
 
 
   __________________________________ 
   Michael McDonough, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Teresa M. Henry, City Clerk 
  
 
 
  Approved as to Form: 
 
 
 
  __________________________________ 
  Joe Willerth, City Attorney 
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CITY OF RAYTOWN 
Request for Board Action 

 
Date: April 5, 2018     Amended Bill No.:  6463-18 
To: Mayor and Board of Aldermen   Section No.:  III-A-9 
From:  Tom Cole, City Administrator  
 
Department Head Approval:          
     
Finance Director Approval:  ________________________ (only needed if fiscal impact) 

 
City Administrator Approval:        
 

 
 
 
Action Requested:   Request approval of ordinance to authorize a question regarding a tax 
levy increase to be placed on the August 7, 2018 ballot. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the Ordinance. 
  
Analysis: The City has been relying on General Fund Reserves for several years to 
supplement Operational Costs.  The City Reserves were never intended to be used to support 
operational costs, as those funds should only be used for emergency stabilization or one-time 
opportunities.   
 
An adoption of this ordinance is necessary to increase the City’s tax base through a voter-
approved increase in the City’s property tax levy. 
 
Alternatives:   Without this adoption and levy increase there will need to be a reduction in 
expenses and critical services.  
 
Budgetary Impact: 
 

 Not Applicable 
 

 

 



AMENDED BILL NO. 6463-18 ORDINANCE NO. ____-18 SECTION NO. III-A-9 
 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE CALLING AN ELECTION IN THE CITY OF RAYTOWN, JACKSON 
COUNTY, MISSOURI TO BE HELD ON THE 7TH DAY OF AUGUST, 2018 FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF SUBMITTING A QUESTION TO THE QUALIFIED VOTERS OF THE CITY OF 
RAYTOWN TO INCREASE THE GENERAL PROPERTY TAX RATE FOR ALL SUBCLASSES 
OF PROPERTY TO $1.00 PER ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS OF ASSESSED VALUATION IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH STATE LAW, PRESCRIBING THE FORM OF BALLOT TO BE USED 
THEREAT, SETTING OUT THE FORM OF NOTICE OF SAID ELECTION AND DIRECTING 
ITS PUBLICATION 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Raytown currently levies an ad valorem tax on all subclasses of 
property for general revenue purposes; and 
 

WHEREAS, the current rates on all subclasses of property reflect the rollbacks which 
have occurred over many years due to increases in assessed valuation; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen of the City of Raytown, Jackson County, Missouri 

deems it necessary and advisable to provide funds to meet the cost of general operating 
expenses of the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, the said Board of Aldermen finds that there are not sufficient funds available 

in the City Treasury to provide the level of services desired by the citizens of Raytown, Missouri; 
and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Raytown seeks to increase the tax ceiling and maximum 

authorized levy for the general revenue property tax applicable to all subclasses of property to 
the level of one dollar ($1.00) per one hundred dollars of assessed valuation; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed tax ceiling and maximum authorized levy complies with the 

limitation in Article X, Section 11(b) of the Missouri Constitution; and 
 
WHEREAS, Article X, Section 22 of the Constitution of the State of Missouri requires 

that voters must approve any tax increase;  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 
CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1 – SUBMISSION TO THE VOTERS.  Pursuant to the authority granted by, 
and subject to, the provision of Section 94.250.1, RSMo, an election is hereby called and 
ordered to be held on the 7th day of August, 2017 within the City of Raytown, Jackson County, 
Missouri for the purposes of submitting to the qualified voters of the City a proposal to approve 
an increase in the tax rate ceiling and maximum authorized levy for all subclasses of property. 



AMENDED BILL NO. 6463-18 ORDINANCE NO. ____-18 SECTION NO. III-A-9 
 

SECTION 2 – BALLOT FORM.   This question shall be submitted to the qualified voters 
of Raytown, Jackson County, Missouri, for their approval, as required by the provisions of 
Section 94.250.1, at the Primary Election hereby called and to be held on the 7th of August, 
2018. The ballot of submission shall contain substantially the following language: 
  

“Shall the general property tax rate for all subclasses of property 
be increased to $1.00 per one hundred dollars of assessed 
valuation so that the tax rate ceiling and the maximum authorized 
levy is set at $1.00 in the 2018 tax year and subject to required 
rollbacks in the following tax years?” 
 

 YES  NO 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO VOTERS 
 

If you are in favor of the question, place an “X” in the box opposite “Yes”. If you are 
opposed to the question, place an “X” in the box opposite “No”. 
 
SECTION 3 – ADMINISTRATION.   That any increase imposed pursuant to this 

ordinance shall be computed, imposed, reported, administered, collected, enforced and shall 
operate in all respects in accordance with the provisions of the Revised Statutes of the State of 
Missouri and upon such forms and under such administrative rules and regulations as may be 
prescribed by the Director of Revenue, any provision of this ordinance notwithstanding. 

 
SECTION 4 – NOTIFICATION OF DIRECTOR OF REVENUE.   Within ten (10) days 

after the approval of this ordinance by the qualified voters of Raytown, Missouri, the City Clerk 
shall forward to the Director of Revenue of the State of Missouri by United States Registered 
Mail or Certified Mail, a certified copy of this ordinance together with certifications of the election 
returns and accompanied by a map of the City clearly showing the boundaries thereof. 

 
SECTION 5 – REPEAL OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT.  All ordinances or part of 

ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 6 – SEVERABILITY CLAUSE. The provisions of this ordinance are severable 

and if any provision hereof is declared invalid, unconstitutional or unenforceable, such 
determination shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this ordinance. 

 
SECTION 7 – EFFECTIVE DATE.    This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from 

and after the date of its passage and approval. 
 
BE IT REMEMBERED that the above was read two times by heading only, PASSED AND 

ADOPTED by a majority of the Board of Aldermen and APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of 
Raytown, Jackson County, Missouri, this 10th day of April, 2018.  
 
 
  ________________________________ 
  Michael McDonough, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:  Approved as to Form: 
 
 
 
____________________________  _________________________________ 
Teresa M. Henry, City Clerk  Joe Willerth, City Attorney 
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CITY OF RAYTOWN 
Request for Board Action 

 
Date: April 5, 2018      Amended Bill No.:  6464-18 
To: Mayor and Board of Aldermen   Section No.:  III-A-9 
From: Tom Cole, City Administrator  
 
Department Head Approval:          
     
Finance Director Approval:  ________________________ (only if funding is requested) 

 
City Administrator Approval:        
 

 
 
 
Action Requested:   Request approval of ordinance to authorize a question regarding a motor 
vehicle fuel tax to be placed on the August 7, 2018 ballot. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the Ordinance. 
  
Analysis: The City has been relying on General Fund Reserves for several years to 
supplement Operational Costs.  The City Reserves were never intended to be used to support 
operational costs, as those funds should only be used for emergency stabilization or one-time 
opportunities.   
 
The State Law allows for communities to ask voters for the approval of a tax per gallon of fuel 
(gasoline & diesel) sold within the community. 
 
Alternatives:   Failure to adopt this ordinance would leave the City without the funds.  
 
Budgetary Impact: 
 

 Not Applicable 
 

 

 



 
 
 
AMENDED BILL NO. 6464-18 ORDINANCE NO. ________ SECTION NO.   III-A-9 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING SUBMISSION AT THE PRIMARY 
ELECTION TO BE HELD ON AUGUST 7, 2018 TO THE QUALIFIED VOTERS OF THE CITY 
OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI THE QUESTION OF WHETHER THE CITY SHALL IMPOSE A 
MOTOR FUEL FEE TO BE USED TO FUND THE CONSTRUCTION, RECONSTRUCTION, 
MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, AND SIGNING OF ROADS AND STREETS AT THE RATE OF 
TWO CENTS ($0.02) PER GALLON TO BE IMPOSED ON ALL MERCHANTS FOR THE 
SALE OF FUEL USED FOR PROPELLING MOTOR VEHICLES PURSUANT TO THE 
AUTHORITY GRANTED BY AND SUBJECT TO THE PROVISIONS OF ARTICLE IV 
SECTION 30(A) OF THE MISSOURI CONSTITUTION AND IMPOSING SUCH TAXES IF 
APPROVED BY A MAJORITY OF THE QUALIFIED VOTERS VOTING THEREON 
 

WHEREAS, the City is authorized, under Article IV Section 30(a) of the Missouri 
Constitution, to impose a Motor Fuel Fee at a rate of two cents ($0.02) per gallon to be 
imposed on all merchants for the sale of fuel used for propelling motor vehicles in the City; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed City Motor Fuel Fee cannot become effective until approved 

by a two-thirds majority of the voters at a municipal, county or state general, primary or 
special election; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 

CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1 – SUBMISSION TO THE VOTERS AUTHORIZED.  That there shall be 

submitted to the voters of the City at the primary election to be held in the City on the 7th day of 
August 2018, a proposal to authorize the City to impose a Motor Fuel Fee to fund the 
construction, reconstruction, maintenance, repair, and signing of roads and streets of the City. 

 
SECTION 2 – RATE OF FEE AUTHORIZED.  The rate of the fee shall be two cents 

($0.02) per gallon. 
 
SECTION 3 – BALLOT FORM.  That the ballot of submission for the Motor Fuel Fee 

shall be in substantially the following form: 
 

“Shall the City of Raytown, Missouri impose a city-wide Motor Fuel Fee 
on and paid by gasoline filling stations selling diesel fuel, gasoline, 
and/or blended fuels in an amount not to exceed two cents ($0.02) per 
gallon based on the gallons of motor vehicle fuel sold, the proceeds 
which shall be used solely for construction, reconstruction, maintenance, 
repair, and signing of roads and streets?” 

           [  ] YES                   [  ] NO  

If you are in favor of the question, place an "X" in the box opposite "YES".  
If you are opposed to the question, place an "X" in the box opposite "NO".  

 
SECTION 4 – IMPOSITION OF TAX, IF APPROVED BY VOTERS.  That if a two-thirds 

majority of the votes cast by qualified voters voting thereon are in favor of the proposal, then a 
Motor Fuel Fee in the amount of two cents ($0.02) shall be imposed on and paid by gasoline 
filling stations selling diesel fuel, gasoline and/or blended fuels upon the approval. 

 
 
 



 
 
 
AMENDED BILL NO. 6464-18 ORDINANCE NO. ________ SECTION NO.   III-A-9 
 

SECTION 5 – ADMINISTRATION.   That any tax imposed pursuant to this ordinance 
shall be computed, imposed, reported, administered, collected, enforced and shall operate in all 
respects in accordance with the provisions of the Revised Statutes of the State of Missouri and 
upon such forms and under such administrative rules and regulations as may be prescribed by 
the Director of Revenue, any provision of this ordinance notwithstanding. 

 
SECTION 6 – NOTIFICATION OF DIRECTOR OF REVENUE.   Within ten (10) days 

after the approval of this ordinance by the qualified voters of Raytown, Missouri, the City Clerk 
shall forward to the Director of Revenue of the State of Missouri by United States Registered 
Mail or Certified Mail, a certified copy of this ordinance together with certifications of the election 
returns and accompanied by a map of the City clearly showing the boundaries thereof. 

 
SECTION 7 – EFFECTIVE DATE OF TAX.  That any sales tax imposed pursuant to this 

ordinance shall be effective on the first day of the applicable calendar quarter after the director of 
revenue receives notice of the adoption of the sales tax. 
 

SECTION 8 – REPEAL OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT.  All ordinances or part of 
ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 
SECTION 9 – SEVERABILITY CLAUSE. The provisions of this ordinance are severable 

and if any provision hereof is declared invalid, unconstitutional or unenforceable, such 
determination shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this ordinance. 

 
SECTION 10 – EFFECTIVE DATE.    This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from 

and after the date of its passage and approval. 
 
 
 BE IT REMEMBERED that the above was read two times by heading only, PASSED AND  
ADOPTED by a majority of the Board of Aldermen and APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of 
Raytown, Jackson County, Missouri, this 10th day of April, 2018.  
 
 
 
  ________________________________ 
  Michael McDonough, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Teresa M. Henry, City Clerk 
 
  Approved as to Form: 
 
 
 
  ________________________________ 
  Joe Willerth, City Attorney 
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CITY OF RAYTOWN 
Request for Board Action 

 
Date: April 5, 2018      Amended Bill No.:  6465-18 
To: Mayor and Board of Aldermen   Section No.:  III-A-9 
From: Tom Cole, City Administrator  
 
Department Head Approval:          
     
Finance Director Approval:  ________________________ (only id funding is requested) 

 
City Administrator Approval:        
 

 
 
 
Action Requested:   Request approval of ordinance to authorize a question regarding a use tax 
to be placed on the August 7, 2018 ballot. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the Ordinance. 
  
Analysis: Pursuant to the authority granted by the provision of Sections 144.060 through 
144.761 RSMo., the City of Raytown is authorized to ask voters to approve a use tax. 
 
A use tax applies to purchases from out-of-state retailers.  Currently, someone making local 
purchases pays the City’s sales tax rate of 2.50% on every purchase (1% General Fund, .50% 
Transportation Fund, .375% Capital Fund, .50% Public Safety Fund .125% Park Fund).  The 
City currently does not have a voter approved use tax; therefore, any items purchased from a 
business located outside of Missouri does not require the business to collect and remit the local 
sales tax. 
 
Adoption of a use tax would require that the same tax rate is charged on items purchased 
locally or online.  
 
The City of Raytown took similar steps in August 2016, when voters were asked to consider an 
initiative dealing with out-of-state motor vehicle sales, trailers, boats, outboard motors and RV’s.  
Voters approved the continuation of the tax by 72%. 
 
The Missouri Municipal League in conjunction with the Missouri Department of Revenue, has 
completed an extensive analysis regarding the potential revenue being lost across the State in 
those cities that do not have a use tax.  A use tax would generate an estimated $350,000.00 
annually, dependent on the City’s gross receipts. 
 
The City of Grandview passed a use tax in November 2017 and the cities of Blue Springs, 
Independence, Liberty and Oak Grove will have a question considering the use tax during their 
April 2018 Elections. 
 
Alternatives:   Failure to adopt this ordinance would leave the City without the funds.  
 
Budgetary Impact: 
 

 Not Applicable 
 

 

 



 
AMENDED BILL NO. 6465-18 ORDINANCE NO. ____-18 SECTION NO. III-A-9 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE IMPOSING A USE TAX AT THE RATE OF TWO AND ONE-HALF PERCENT 
(2.5%) FOR THE PRIVILEGE OF STORING, USING, OR CONSUMING WITHIN THE CITY 
ANY ARTICLE OF TANGIBLE PERSONAL PROPERTY PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY 
GRANTED BY AND SUBJECT TO THE PROVISION OF SECTIONS 144.600 THROUGH 
144.761 RSMO; PROVIDING FOR THE USE TAX TO BE REPEALED, REDUCED OR RAISED 
IN THE SAME AMOUNT AS ANY CITY SALES TAX IS REPEALED, REDUCED, OR RAISED; 
AND PROVIDING FOR SUBMISSION OF THE PROPOSAL TO THE QUALIFIED VOTERS OF 
THE CITY FOR THEIR APPROVAL AT THE PRIMARY ELECTION CALLED AND TO BE 
HELD IN THE CITY ON AUGUST 7, 2018, AND PROPOSING THE FORM OF THE BALLOTS 
TO BE EMPLOYED AT SAID ELECTION AND DIRECTING THE CITY CLERK TO DO ALL 
THINGS CALLED FOR BY LAW IN CONNECTION WITH THE HOLDING OF SAID ELECTION 
 

WHEREAS, the City has imposed local sales taxes, as defined in Section 32.085 RSMo., 
at the rate of 2.50%; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City is authorized, under Section 144.757 RSMo., to impose a local use 

tax at a rate equal to the rate of the local sales taxes in effect in the City; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed City use tax cannot become effective until approved by the 

voters at a municipal, county or state general, primary, or special election; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen of the City of Raytown, Missouri, has determined it 

would be in the best interests of the City of Raytown, Missouri to impose a use tax; 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 
CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1 – SUBMISSION TO THE VOTERS.  Pursuant to the authority granted by, 
and subject to, the provisions of Sections 144.600 through 144.761 RSMo., a use tax is imposed 
for the privilege of storing, using or consuming within the City any article of tangible personal 
property. This tax does not apply with respect to the storage, use or consumption of any article 
of tangible personal property purchased, produced or manufactured outside this State until the 
transportation of the article has finally come to rest within this City or until the article has become 
commingled with the general mass of property of this City. 

 
SECTION 2 – RATE IMPOSED.  The rate of the tax shall be two and one-half percent 

(2.50%).  If any City sale tax is repealed or the rate thereof is reduced or raised by voter 
approval, the City use tax rate also shall be deemed to be repealed, reduced or raised by the 
same action repealing, reducing, or raising the city sales tax. 

 
SECTION 3 – BALLOT FORM.   This tax shall be submitted to the qualified voters of 

Raytown, Missouri, for their approval, as required by the provisions of Section 144.757 RSMo., 
at the Primary Election hereby called and to be held on the 7th of August, 2018. The ballot of 
submission shall contain substantially the following language: 
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FOR PRIMARY ELECTION 

IN THE CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI 
ON TUESDAY, AUGUST 7, 2018 

 
“Shall the City of Raytown impose a local use tax at the same rate as the total 
local sales tax rate, currently 2.50%, provided that if the local sales tax rate is 
reduced or raised by voter approval, the local use tax rate shall also be reduced 
or raised by the same action? A use tax return shall not be required to be filed by 
persons whose purchases from out-of-state vendors do not in total exceed two 
thousand dollars in any calendar year” 

 
 YES  NO 

 
INSTRUCTIONS TO VOTERS 

 
If you are in favor of the question, place an “X” in the box opposite “Yes”. If you are 
opposed to the question, place an “X” in the box opposite “No”. 
 
SECTION 4 – ADMINISTRATION.   That any sales tax imposed pursuant to this 

ordinance shall be computed, imposed, reported, administered, collected, enforced and shall 
operate in all respects in accordance with the provisions of the Revised Statutes of the State of 
Missouri and upon such forms and under such administrative rules and regulations as may be 
prescribed by the Director of Revenue, any provision of this ordinance notwithstanding. 

 
SECTION 5 – NOTIFICATION OF DIRECTOR OF REVENUE.   Within ten (10) days 

after the approval of this ordinance by the qualified voters of Raytown, Missouri, the City Clerk 
shall forward to the Director of Revenue of the State of Missouri by United States Registered 
Mail or Certified Mail, a certified copy of this ordinance together with certifications of the election 
returns and accompanied by a map of the City clearly showing the boundaries thereof. 

 
SECTION 6 – EFFECTIVE DATE OF TAX.  That any sales tax imposed pursuant to this 

ordinance shall be effective on the first day of the applicable calendar quarter after the director 
of revenue receives notice of the adoption of the sales tax. 
 

SECTION 7 – REPEAL OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT.  All ordinances or part of 
ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 
SECTION 8 – SEVERABILITY CLAUSE. The provisions of this ordinance are severable 

and if any provision hereof is declared invalid, unconstitutional or unenforceable, such 
determination shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this ordinance. 

 
SECTION 9 – EFFECTIVE DATE.    This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from 

and after the date of its passage and approval. 
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BE IT REMEMBERED that the above was read two times by heading only, PASSED AND  
ADOPTED by a majority of the Board of Aldermen and APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of 
Raytown, Jackson County, Missouri, this 10th day of April, 2018.  
 
 
 
  ________________________________ 
  Michael McDonough, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Teresa M. Henry, City Clerk 
 
  Approved as to Form: 
 
 
 
  ________________________________ 
  Joe Willerth, City Attorney 

 



The Use Tax -Explained
S T UA R T  H AY N ES

P O L I C Y  A N D  M E MB ERS HI P  A S S OC I AT E

M I S S OU R I  M U N I C I PA L  L E A G U E



“The Use Tax: Explained”

1. Sales Tax

2. Use Tax
 “Internet Tax”
 Amazon 

3. Street Decision
 Legislative Fix(s)

4. Campaign Resources
 Restrictions



Sales Tax
The state’s sales tax is 
imposed on the purchase 
price of tangible personal 
property (and some taxable 
services) sold at retail. 
4.225% (state) 
Plus local options –
earmarked for purpose
Tax is collected by DOR 
Remitted to cities 



Location of Sale/Transaction 
Determines Sales Tax Rate

Purchaser’s home address irrelevant.
Doesn’t matter whether they are a 

resident of Missouri.
Remote Sales:
Can be internet, can be phone, catalog, 

fax etc…
Remote Sale shipped in Missouri – sellers 

location determines sales tax
Remote sale shipped out of Missouri by a 

non Missouri purchaser – no Missouri 
sales tax applies.



UseTax  

Use tax – can be thought of as a 
sales tax on goods purchased from 
out-of-state shipped to Missouri.
Use tax does not apply if the 
purchase is from a Missouri retailer 
and subject to Missouri sales tax.
 Imposed directly upon the person 
that stores, uses, or consumes 
tangible personal property in 
Missouri.



UseTax – Very Similar to Sales Tax

It applies to the same basket of 
goods as the sales tax. 
It’s applied at the same rate as the 
local sales tax.
New sales tax automatically increases 

use tax rate

Tax is charged based on first use in 
the state, generally the location of the 
purchaser.  May be the point of 
delivery.



Local Option Use Tax
Authorized in Section 144.757 – 144.761, RSMo

A local use tax rate must equal the imposing jurisdiction’s 
total local sales tax.

142 Municipalities(650 have sales tax); 62 Counties; 
Special Districts 269 – April of 2017 (handout)

Use Tax Revenue – Estimate - Handout

Use Tax Revenue is General Purpose 

Model Ordinance available from Muni League



Common Use Tax Transaction

Construction Contractors 

Businesses purchasing 
supplies and taxable equipment 
from out-of-state

Internet and mail order 
purchases from non-Missouri 
sellers



Use Tax - Collection

VENDORS

Missouri cannot 
require out-of-state 
companies that do 
not have nexus or a 
"direct connection" 
with the state to 
collect and remit the 
use tax. 

Quill Corp. v North 
Dakota

NEXUS – “SUBSTANTIAL 
PHYSICAL PRESENCE”

o Office, distribution house, sales 
house, warehouse, service 
enterprise or other place of 
business.

o Maintain a stock of goods.
o Regularly solicits orders (other 

than advertising or direct mail).
o Regularly leases property located 

in this state



Use Tax - Consumers

Tax is reported and paid by the 
person using, storing or 
consuming the tangible personal 
property directly to the 
Department based on the 
purchaser’s location.

Purchasers are excluded from 
reporting tax until cumulative 
purchases equal $2,000 in a 
calendar year. This is not an 
exemption.

Once required to report tax, all 
purchases must be reported.

HONOR SYSTEM

If an out-of-state seller does not collect 
use tax from the purchaser, the 
purchaser is responsible for remitting 
the use tax to Missouri.



“Internet sales tax”

1. Federal Action/National 
Compact - Marketplace 
Fairness Act/Streamlined 
Sales Tax

2. Missouri Legislative Action
3. Local Use Tax



E-COMMERCE



E-Commerce/Internet Sales Tax

Missouri lost 
approximately $2.3 billion 
in tax revenue 2001 to 
2009.*
$259 Million per year.*

*Source: Huang, Kosash, & 
Wesemann: Institute of Public 
Policy, Truman School of Public 
Affairs

https://ipp.missouri.edu/wp-
content/uploads/sites/2/2014/06/in
ternet_sales_and_use_tax.pdf

https://ipp.missouri.edu/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2014/06/internet_sales_and_use_tax.pdf


BIG 
Announcement

 February 1, 2017 Amazon began collecting 
the Missouri use tax.

News stories incorrectly suggested Amazon 
would collect Missouri sales tax.

Amazon accounted for 43 percent of all 
online revenue last year (2016, according to 
Slice.
 Amazon Will Make Up 50% of All U.S. E-

Commerce by 2021
 Lots of requests for estimates on what this 

would mean for tax revenues (Handout).

 *Total 
GUESTAMATION! 
Using reported gross 
sales of $786 million 
in 2015.  

 Hazelwood Changes 
this



Use Tax / E - commerce
Questions about the Internet sales tax / e - commerce?



Street decision – Background
BACKGROUND

 State and local sales tax applied to all 
vehicle purchases including person to 
person and out of state.

 Tax based on sales tax in jurisdiction of 
purchaser.

 144.069 RSMo. “All sales taxes 
associated with the titling of motor 
vehicles, trailers, boats and outboard 
motors under the laws of Missouri shall 
be imposed at the rate in effect at the 
location of the address of the owner 
thereof” 

HISTORICALLY VEHICLE SALES WERE 
ALWAYS TREATED DIFFERENTLY



Street Decision – Jan 31, 2012

CRAIG STREET BOUGHT A BOAT COURT IMPACT:

Only cities with use tax could collect on out-
of-state and person to person vehicle sales.
DOR estimated local revenue loss at $20.5 
million (HANDOUT).

 Purchased in Maryland.  
 Upon registering in Green County requested a 

refund for local sales tax
 Started court battle that went to Mo. Supreme 

Court



Street Decision
– “Legislative Fix I (SB 182)”

SB 182 (2013) – Re-imposed the  
local sales taxes on the out-of-state 
sales and person-to-person sales of 
motor vehicles. 

Requires voter approval by 
November 2016 to continue local 
sales tax on out-of-state sales of 
motor vehicles. 

Language in bill prevented a new 
use tax from plugging loophole.



Street Decision 
– “Legislative Fix II (HB 2140)
Extends Deadline to November 2018

Provides that a Use tax will plug “Street Loophole.”

After November 2018, in cities that have not passed a use tax or have 
not received voter approval for the continuation of the local sales tax on 
MV purchases – the revenue stream ends.

After November 2018 cities that haven’t passed the use tax or the 
continuation of the MV sales tax may still come back and seek voter 
approval
Unless the issue was rejected by the voters
It appears that cities only get one chance with the MV sales tax.
The use tax is not restricted in this manner
 However, DOR has issued a written option to MML that a Use Tax passed after November, 2018 

will not capture MV sales from out-of-state.



MV Continuation vs. Use Tax

MV CONTINUATION

Only captures local sales tax on 
titling of motor vehicles, boats, 
out-board motors & trailers 
purchased from out-of-state or 
person to person sales

If voter approval not achieved –
may not be brought back

USE TAX

Captures all purchases from out-of-
state (generally speaking).  After Nov 
2018 – DOR says will not capture 
out-of-state autos.
May be brought to votes at any 
election



Next steps – Start Campaign
SOS Election Calendar -
https://www.sos.mo.gov/elections/calend
ar/2018cal
o April 3, 2018 Election
◦ Final Certification – January 23, 2018

◦ August 7, 2018 Election
◦ Final Certification – May 29, 2018

◦ November 6, 2018 – Election
◦ Final Certification – August 28, 2018

Following Voter Approval Send Ordinance 
and Certified Election Results to DOR 
(within 10 days).

Campaign No/No’s

Public Funds cannot be used to 
advocate on ballot measures 
(115.646 RSMo.)

All campaign material – even if just 
educational -must include “PAID FOR 
BY” information. 



Campaign No No’s

PAID FOR BY

All campaign material – even if 
just educational -must include 
“PAID FOR BY” information. 
Name of the entity, entity’s 
Entity's principal officer’s 

name & title
Mailing address

Handout MEC 

PUBLIC FUNDS CANNOT BE USED 
TO ADVOCATE ON BALLOT 
MEASURES (115.646 RSMO.)

Tread line between educate and 
advocate

Can’t say “vote for”

Opinions are probably a violation

Does not apply to public officials 
speaking on their on behalf

Handout - MSA



Campaign suggestions
Emphasis this is not a new tax (MV).

Closes court created loophole(MV/USE).

Levels the playing field for local auto 
dealers & brick and mortar retailers vs. 
out-of-state.

It also levels playing field for your citizens 
– Walmart shoppers vs. Amazon shoppers.

Keeping up with technology.

Be prepared to illustrate what the loss in 
revenue (MV)to the city will result in:

3 police cars? 1 firetruck?  Etc.
And potential gain from use tax

 Work with your county and other 
cities.  

 Campaign team – Auto Dealers, 
Chamber, civic groups, newspaper 
editor?



RESOURCES

Sample ordinances & lots of other 
related info – Missouri Municipal 
League 

http://www.mocities.com/

DOR website:

http://www.dor.mo.gov/publicrep
orts/#pubtax

CONTACTS:

DOR – Local Sale/Use
◦ localgov@dor.mo.gov
◦ 573-522-1160

MML 
◦ info@mocities.com
◦ 573-635-9134

http://www.mocities.com/
http://www.dor.mo.gov/publicreports/#pubtax
mailto:localgov@dor.mo.gov


Questions

Contact:
Stuart Haynes
Missouri Municipal League
573-635-9134
shaynes@mocities.com



CITY OF RAYTOWN 
Request for Board Action 

 
Date: April 5, 2018    Amended Resolution No.:  R-3062-18 
To: Mayor and Board of Aldermen  
From: Damon Hodges, Director of Public Works  
 
Department Head Approval:          
     
Finance Director Approval:       (only if funding is requested) 
 
City Administrator Approval:        

 
 
 
Action Requested:  Approve the purchase of a Freightliner chassis and Elgin Crosswind 
street sweeper from Key Equipment based off of the MoDOT cooperative bid in an amount 
not to exceed $250,000.00. 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval. 
  
Analysis: Street sweeping is an integral part of storm water management and provides a 
cleaner environment that is readily visible to the public. Public Works staff has reviewed 
many options for providing street sweeping services including but not limited to outsourcing 
the program. Staff determined during the process that in-house street sweeping is the most 
cost-effective way to provide the service for the residents of Raytown. 
 
Staff began the process of selecting a new street sweeper through a number of on-site tests 
involving several manufacturers. The on-site testing revolved around the real-world 
conditions observed in the neighborhoods of Raytown and the ability of the sweeper to 
perform in those conditions. Staff evaluated the sweepers based on cost, performance, 
warranty and service. 
 
Staff recommends the purchase of a Freightliner chassis and Elgin crosswind regenerative 
air street sweeper from Key Equipment, Kansas City, Kansas. In an amount estimated at 
$217,100.00, based on the MoDOT cooperative contract. 
 
The Public Works Dept. has budgeted $250,000.00 for the street sweeper purchase in 
FY2018. 
 
Alternatives:  Don’t buy the street sweeper, look for other alternatives. 
 
Budgetary Impact: 
 

 Not Applicable 
 Budgeted item with available funds 
 Non-Budgeted item with available funds through prioritization 
 Non-Budgeted item with additional funds requested 

 
  
Amount to Spend: an amount not to exceed $250,000.00 
Account: 205.72.00.100.57000 
Fund: Capital Sales Tax Fund 

 
Additional Reports Attached:  Key Equipment Elgin Proposal and Cooperative purchase 
contract with the Missouri Department of Transportation. 



AMENDED RESOLUTION NO.:   R-3062-18 
 

  

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF A 2019 
FREIGHTLINER M2 CHASSIS AND A ELGIN CROSSWIND REGENERATIVE AIR STREET 
SWEEPER FROM KEY EQUIPMENT OFF THE MISSOURI DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION COOPERATIVE PURCHASING CONTRACT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED $250,000.00  
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Raytown in the adoption of its purchasing policy has approved 
the practice of purchasing equipment from competitive bids awarded by other governmental 
entities through the cooperative bidding process; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Missouri Department of Transportation has competitively bid and 
awarded a contract to Key Equipment for the 2019 Freightliner M2 Chassis and a Elgin 
Crosswind Regenerative Air Street Sweeper; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Raytown finds it is in the best interest of the citizens of the City of 

Raytown to authorize and approve the purchase of one 2019 Freightliner M2 Chassis and a 
Elgin Crosswind Regenerative Air Street Sweeper off the Missouri Department of Transportation 
Cooperative Public Purchasing Contract in an amount not to exceed $250,000.00; 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 

CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
THAT the purchase of one 2019 Freightliner M2 Chassis and a Elgin Crosswind 

Regenerative Air Street Sweeper off the Missouri Department of Transportation Cooperative 
Public Purchasing Contract in an amount not to exceed $250,000.00, is hereby authorized and 
approved;  

 
FURTHER THAT the City Administrator is hereby authorized to execute all documents 

necessary to this transaction and the City Clerk is authorized to attest thereto. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Aldermen and APPROVED by the Mayor of 

the City of Raytown, Missouri, the 10th day of April, 2018. 
 
 

 
   ________________________________ 
   Michael McDonough, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:  Approved as to Form: 
 
 
 
_______________________________  ________________________________ 
Teresa M. Henry, City Clerk  Joe Willerth, City Attorney 





 
  

 
 
 
 
February 9, 2018  
 
 
 
City of Raytown 
Attn: Mr. Tony Mesa, Public Works Superintendent  
6417 Railroad Rd. 
Raytown, MO 64133 
 
RE: Elgin Single Engine Crosswind w/Lifeliner Hopper 
 
 
Tony, 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to provide the City of Raytown the 2016/2017 MoDOT pricing proposal for the 
Elgin Crosswind Single Engine Regenerative Air Street Sweeper.  Key Equipment and Supply Company is 
proud to provide the safest, most durable and dependable street sweepers on the market today. 
 
Please review the following standard features:  
· Backup Alarm, electric 
· Blower, HARDOX®500 steel with linatex lined housing 
· Brooms, hydraulic rotation 
· Brooms, Dual 
· Camera, rear mounted 
· Console, w/rocker switches for all sweep functions, with 

 full gauge package including tachometer, engine 

 hour meter, oil pressure indicator, coolant 

 temperature, voltmeter and fuel lever indicator, 

 water level gauge and warning lights for hopper 

 "up", hopper rear door "open" and hopper "full", 
 side broom down pressure controls and automotive 

 style blade fuses 
· Doors, access fiberglass doors provide easy service and 

 maintenance on auxiliary engine, hydraulic and 

 electrical system 
 sweep resume/sweep transport/reverse pick-up 
· Hopper rear door, hydraulically opened/closed and 

 locked/unlocked with external manual controls. 
· Hose, hydrant fill, 16'8" (5080 mm) with coupling 
· LED Clearance Lights 
· Lights; rear clearance and rear identification 

· Manuals, operator and parts 
· Mirrors, West Coast type with 8” convex inserts, one each 

 side 
· Pick-up head, hydraulically operated, 
· 14” (355 mm) outside diameter pressure hose, 
· 12-3/4” (324mm) inside diameter suction hose with quick 

 disconnect on suctions side 
· Water system; one (1) rocker switch with HI / LOW 

 setting, with manual valves for water control 
· Spray nozzles, sixteen (16), seven (7) in the pick-up head, 

 three (3) in the suction nozzle, three (3) at each side 

 broom 
· Side Broom Outer Position Stop 
· Trans Oil Cooler 
· Vacuum enhancer, external manually operated 
· Water tank, molded polyethylene, 240 gallons (907L) 
· Water pre-filter, hydrant fill hose 
· Sweeper Painted Standard White 
· Chassis Painted Standard White 
· Red Logo 
· 1 Year Parts and Labor Warranty 

 
 
 
 
 

Branch Office     
P.O. Box 11035     
Kansas City, KS  66111 
913-371-8260  

   

  

   

Corporate Office       
P.O. Box 2007    
Maryland Heights, MO  63043 
314-298-8330      

Branch Office     
P.O. Box 692109 
Tulsa, OK  74169 
918-809-8011 
 

http://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwizt92w877XAhWC4iYKHStbDqcQjRwIBw&url=http://www.elginsweeper.com/&psig=AOvVaw1fXrFvtUx_SeMyE88514CA&ust=1510777626455063


In addition to the standard features, the following product enhancements meet and or exceed the current 
MODOT specifications: 
• Robert Shaw automatic lubrication system with individual pump for each zerk (sweeper only) 
• Complete Grade 304 Stainless Steel hopper and screens 
• Centerbroom in pick-up head with water spray nozzles 
• Inside hopper spray nozzles 
• Nozzles to be controlled individually 
• Left and Right gutter broom tilt angle control from in cab 
• Left hand fender mirror 
• Right and left hand heated and remote controlled mirrors 
• 12” Convex mirrors 
• Front spray bar for dust suppression 
• AM/FM stereo weatherband with CD player and two speakers 
• Cab painted yellow to match sweeper which is painted RAL 1037 yellow 
• Alternating LED strobe lights flush mounted to rear of sweeper 
• LED light to be mounted rear of unit with guard  
• LED light Mounted rear of cam but not on cab 
• Service, parts and operators manuals to meet specifications 
• Chassis hour meter, aux. engine hour meter and side broom hour meter 
• (2) Bostrom 905 mid-back air suspension seats   
• Auxiliary electric/hydraulic pump (allows dumping without impeller engaged) 
• Turbo II air precleaner 
• MODOT special arrowboard 
• AC/Heat and defrost  
• High temp low level oil shutdown 
• Low level hydrauic level shut down 
• Hopper load indicator 
• LED flood light adjacent each side broom 
• LH/RH Electric remote West Coast type mirrors with 8 inch spot convex(chassis dependent option) 
 
 
Price per Unit with MoDOT Enhancements on 2019 Freightliner M2 Chassis:  $270,860.00 
 
MoDOT Enhancements NOT needed for the application of the City of Raytown: 
Stainless Steel Hopper, Auto Lube Sweeper Only, Centerbroom, Turbo II Precleaner, Spray Nozzles for 
Centerbroom, Vacuum Enhancer, MoDOT Special Arrowboard w/o Wandering Hose, Flush Mounted LED 
Strobes, Paint Cab RAL 1037 Yellow 
 
Additional Enhancements needed for the application of the City of Raytown: 
Single Engine, Lifeliner Hopper, LED Stop/Tail/Turn, (1) Spare Chassis Key, Variable Speed - Dual 
Sidebrooms, Right Hand Inspection Door with Step and Handle, Hydraulic Heavy Duty Wandering Hose, 
Individual Switches For the Water System Control, In-Cab Hopper Dump, · High Pressure Washdown, Anti 
Siphon, (1) Extra Key - Auxiliary Engine, Rear Strobe with LED Arrowstick, Indvidual Switches For Dual 
Sidebroom Lights-Led, 4 Camera System, 2.5 lb Fire Extinguisher 
 

Price with Deductions, Additional Enhancements, and Multiple Product Line Discount: 
$217,100.00 

 
 



Includes on-site factory certified training by Key Equipment for service and operation  
Payment Terms are Net 10 
Delivery approximately Nov/Dec 2018 - Jan 2019 
Base chassis is for a latest model available Freightliner M2 Chassis  
 
Thank you again for your consideration of Key Equipment & Supply Co. and Elgin Sweeping Co.  I look 
forward to reviewing this proposal with you.  If you have any questions, or would like additional information, 
please don’t hesitate to contact me at (913) 915-8709 or stevew@keyequipment.com. 
 
Respectfully, 
 

Steve Williams 
Steve Williams 
Territory Manager 
Key Equipment & Supply Co. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
        *Sample Photo 

mailto:stevew@keyequipment.com
http://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiPjYOoid_UAhUkxYMKHZkCCMsQjRwIBw&url=http://www.dohenycompanies.com/equipment/product-information/elgin/elgin-pelican/&psig=AFQjCNFItNxJOiGdW2XlWij_J60zMWFHLw&ust=1498688886521729
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CITY OF RAYTOWN 
Request for Board Action 

 
Date: April 5, 2018      Bill No.:  6466-18 
To: Mayor and Board of Aldermen                       Section No.: V-A 
From: Ray Haydaripoor, Director of Community Development Department  
 
Department Head Approval:          
     
Finance Director Approval:       (only if funding is requested) 
 
City Administrator Approval:        

 
 
 
Action Requested:  Approve a contract with the KCATA for the 2017-2018 Metro Bus Service. 
 
Analysis: This is a demand-response public transportation service (Metro Service) that the City has 
provided under contract with the KCATA since April 2001.  The City of Kansas City, Missouri also pays 
the same amount as the City of Raytown to the KCATA for the Metro Bus Service as the service area 
extends beyond Raytown to make connections with the rest of the KCATA network to the north and to 
the south within Kansas City.     
 
The hours of operation for the Metro Service are from 6:00 a.m. to 10:00 a.m.; and from 2:30 p.m. to 
6:30 p.m., Monday through Friday. The proposed agreement would maintain that level of service at a 
cost of $58,418.00. The operational cost is within the amount budgeted by the City for this service. This 
contract will be for a 12-month period that mirrors the City’s budget year. 
 
Alternatives: The City could choose not to participate in the Metro Bus Service and risk losing this 
benefit for our citizens.  
 
Budgetary Impact: 
 

 Budgeted item with available funds 
 Non-Budgeted item with available funds through prioritization 
 Non-Budgeted item with additional funds requested 

 
Amount Requested: $58,418.00 
Account:  204-00-00-100-53999 
Fund:   Transportation Sales Tax 

  Budget:  $60,000.00 
   
 



BILL NO. 6466-18 ORDINANCE NO. _____ SECTION NO. V-A 
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AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING A CONTRACT FOR TRANSIT 
SERVICE BY AND BETWEEN THE KANSAS CITY AREA TRANSPORTATION 
AUTHORITY AND THE CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED $58,418.00 FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017-2018 
  
 WHEREAS, the City of Raytown (the “City”) is a city of the fourth class, with the 
authority pursuant to Chapter 70 of the Revised Statutes of the State of Missouri to enter 
into agreements with other political subdivisions; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Kansas City Area Transportation Authority (“KCATA”) is a body 
corporate and politic and a political subdivision of the states of Missouri and Kansas with the 
authority to enter into agreements with other political subdivisions; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a sound, efficient and viable public transportation system is essential to the 
socioeconomic well being of the Kansas City Area Transportation District (hereinafter referred 
to as the "District"), including the Counties of Cass, Clay, Jackson, and Platte in Missouri, and 
the Counties of Johnson, Leavenworth, and Wyandotte in Kansas; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the KCATA is a public agency authorized by law to plan, own, operate, 
have and generally deal with public transportation systems and facilities in the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to promote the convenience, comfort, prosperity, general 
interests and welfare of its citizens; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the public transportation facilities and services of most immediate concern 
are those estimated to be provided by the KCATA at a deficit, described generally in amounts 
and, more specifically, by formula set forth in Attachment "A" adopted in January, 1976, 
modified in August, 1977, revised in January, 1983, and December 1997; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Raytown desires to enter into an agreement with the KCATA for 
transit services as set forth in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 
CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1 - APPROVAL OF CONTRACT.  That the Contract for Transit Services 
by and between the Kansas City Area Transportation Authority and the City of Raytown, 
Missouri, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, is hereby authorized and 
approved in an amount not to exceed $58,418.000. 

 
SECTION 2 - EXECUTION OF CONTRACT.  That the City Administrator is 

authorized to execute the Contract and all documents necessary to the performance thereof, 
and the City Clerk is authorized to attest to the same. 

 
SECTION 3 - REPEAL OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT.  All ordinances or parts of 

ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 4 - SEVERABILITY CLAUSE.  The provisions of this ordinance are 

severable and if any provision hereof is declared invalid, unconstitutional or unenforceable, 
such determination shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this ordinance. 



BILL NO. 6466-18 ORDINANCE NO. _____ SECTION NO. V-A 
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 SECTION 5 - EFFECTIVE DATE.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect 
from and after the date of its passage and approval. 
 
 BE IT REMEMBERED that the above was read two times by heading only, PASSED 
AND ADOPTED by a majority of the Board of Aldermen and APPROVED by the Mayor of 
the City of Raytown, Jackson County, Missouri, this __ day of April, 2018. 
 
 
 
 
 ___________________________________ 
 Michael McDonough, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
______________________________   
Teresa M. Henry, City Clerk 
 
    
 Approved as to Form: 
 
 
 ____________________________________ 
 Joe Willerth, City Attorney 
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Twelve-Month Contract 
November 1, 2017 – October 31, 2018 

 
KANSAS CITY AREA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

 
Contract for Transit Service 

 
RAYTOWN, MISSOURI 

 
THIS CONTRACT, entered into this _____ day of ______________, 2018, by and between the 
KANSAS CITY AREA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (hereinafter referred to as the 
"KCATA"), a body corporate and politic and a political subdivision of both the States of Missouri 
and Kansas, and RAYTOWN, MISSOURI (hereinafter referred to as the "Community"). 
 
WITNESSETH: 
 
WHEREAS, a sound, efficient and viable public transportation system is essential to the 
socioeconomic well being of the Kansas City Area Transportation District (hereinafter referred to as 
the "District"), including the Counties of Cass, Clay, Jackson, and Platte in Missouri, and the 
Counties of Johnson, Leavenworth, and Wyandotte in Kansas; and 
 
WHEREAS, the KCATA is a public agency authorized by law to plan, own, operate, have and 
generally deal with public transportation systems and facilities in the District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Community desires to promote the convenience, comfort, prosperity, general 
interests and welfare of its citizens; and 
 
WHEREAS, the public transportation facilities and services of most immediate concern are those 
estimated to be provided by the KCATA at a deficit, described generally in amounts and, more 
specifically, by formula set forth in Attachment "A" adopted in January, l976, modified in August, 
l977, revised in January, l983, and December 1997. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants herein 
contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
A. Public Mass Transit Service 
 

1. The Community requests public transportation services (hereinafter referred to as 
"Contract Service"), set forth in Attachment "B", be operated by the KCATA for the 
period November 1, 2017, through October 31, 2018, unless sooner terminated 
under Paragraph "7" of this Contract. 

 
 2. The level of service as generally set forth in Attachment "B" shall not be changed or 

be modified without the consent of the Community. 
 
 3. The computations and, more specifically, the formula contained in Attachment "A" 

attached hereto and made a part hereof, are the accepted methods for the 
determination of the estimated deficit of the Community. 
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4. The KCATA and the Community estimate the Community’s total payment for the 
service (hereinafter referred to as "Local Share") to be $58,418 estimate is based on 
the following components of cost and revenue to applied to this Agreement: 

 
Local Service Cost $92,616 
Passenger Revenue $(4,050)  
Estimated Operating Loss  $88,566 

 
Local Operating Share  $53,284 
Local Capital Share  $5,133 
Total Local Share $58,418 

 
 5. It is the understanding of the parties that, notwithstanding any provision of this 

Agreement, the maximum obligation of the Community under this Contract shall be 
the sum of $56,335.  If the actual total deficit and other factors are such that the 
KCATA deems the full Local Share is not required, the KCATA may require 
payment of less than the total Local Share, or reimburse the Community for a 
portion of the Local Share previously paid. 

 
 6. The method of payment of the Local Share provided for in Paragraph "4" is as 

follows: 
 
  a. The Community's monthly Local Share will be one-twelfth of the 

Community’s portion of the estimated total deficit amount. 
 
  b. The KCATA will invoice the Community for ninety percent (90%) of 

Community monthly Local Share by the l5th of the month preceding the 
month service will be provided.  The Community is required to remit ninety 
percent (90%) of the monthly Local Share by the first of the month service 
will be provided. 

 
  c. By the 20th of the month following the month in which service was 

provided, the KCATA will provide the City’s Director of Development and 
Community Affairs, or the City Designee, with reports showing service 
capital and operating costs and revenue for Contract Services.  The report 
will also provide a reconciliation of subsidy amounts with the advance 
payment provided to in Sub-paragraph "b".  The report will detail Local 
Share and Federal and State Share amounts used to cover the month's 
service deficit.  Any balance of Local Share subsidy required by the 
reconciliation will be invoiced at this time, to be paid within ten days. 

 
d. For the month of December, the monthly report and reconciliation provided 

for in Sub-paragraph "c", will not be prepared until the completion of the 
KCATA's annual audit.  The invoice of November l5, provided for in Sub-
paragraph "b" will require payment of the unexpended balance of the 
Community's Local Share. 

 
 7. When the estimated total operating loss of $88,566 is reached, KCATA's obligation 
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to furnish services shall terminate.  If the actual operating loss exceeds the estimated 
operating loss in any two consecutive months of service, KCATA shall notify the 
Community.  The Community and KCATA may mutually agree to amend this 
Contract to provide additional operating subsidy or to adjust the level of service so 
that the cost of such service will not exceed the contractual subsidy. If the 
Community and KCATA cannot agree on how to address the situation and costs do 
exceed the estimated loss, KCATA may terminate the service with 60 days notice.  

 
 8. If for any reason the KCATA is unable to obtain the federal or state assistance, 

and/or the State of Missouri Public Transit Operating Assistance Grant as provided 
for in Paragraph "4" of this Contract, the Community will be immediately notified 
and this contract will be amended to provide additional Local Share subsidy or to 
adjust the level of service.  If a satisfactory amendment is not agreed to after a 
reasonable period, KCATA's obligation to furnish services will terminate. 

 
 9. The KCATA shall indemnify, save and hold the Community harmless from any and 

all damage, loss or liability of any kind whatsoever arising out of this Contract, 
including, but not limited to, any loss occasioned by reason of any injury to property 
or third persons occasioned, in whole or in part, by any act, omission, neglect or 
wrongdoing of the KCATA, or any of its officers, agents, representatives or 
employees.  At its own cost and expense, the KCATA will defend all losses arising 
there from. 

 
 10. The Community recognizes that the KCATA, as the principal public transportation 

operator in the region, is obligated to conform to various regulations and 
requirements of the Federal Transit Administration in order to maintain its eligibility 
for financial assistance pursuant to the Federal Transit Act.  In this regard, the 
Community agrees to cooperate with the KCATA in meeting said regulations and 
requirements, and will not require the KCATA to violate said regulations and 
requirements.  The Community will also cooperate with reasonable requests of the 
KCATA, and the KCATA agrees to make all such records available to the 
Community for the auditors upon reasonable request of the Community. 

 
 11. The Community, at its expense, shall have the right to cause an audit to be made of 

the books and records of the KCATA, and the KCATA agrees to make all such 
records available to the Community for the auditors upon reasonable request of the 
Community. 

 
 12. KCATA, at the direction of the Community, is reviewing the feasibility of 

alternative service options in order to improve customer service and efficiency. This 
includes modifications to the existing flex service, fixed-route options, and on-
demand options. This analysis will be reviewed with the Community to inform 
future contracts. 

 
 
B. Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 Special Service Provision 
 
 WHEREAS, a contractual relationship with Raytown requires that the Community not 
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require the KCATA to provide public transit services that are in conflict with the American 
with Disabilities Act of 1990 and subsequent federal regulations regarding compliance with 
this law, it is agreed: 

 
 1. The KCATA shall perform all functions necessary for the administration, 

management and operation of Complementary Paratransit inside the City of 
Raytown. 

 
 2. The Complementary Paratransit shall be provided through the department of the 

KCATA known as Share-A-Fare, and these services shall be called Share-A-Fare 
service inside Raytown. 

 
 3. Complementary Paratransit is defined in 49 C.F.R. Part 37.  In general, 

Complementary Paratransit is required to provide a comparable level of service 
whereby when all aspects of a transportation system are analyzed, equal 
opportunities to use the transportation system exist for all persons - individuals with 
and without disabilities. 

 
 4. Raytown shall reimburse the KCATA for the net cost to the KCATA, which is paid 

by the KCATA to its contractors that provide the transportation services inside 
Raytown.  Raytown shall not be charged for the KCATA's administrative or 
dispatching expenses related to the service. 

 
 5. There will be a $3.00 fare per trip charged to participants using Share-A-Fare 

service inside Raytown.   
 
 6. The KCATA shall render invoices to the City which shall include information on 

the number of Raytown Share-A-Fare participants, the number of trips provided of 
each type (ambulatory or non-ambulatory), the average cost for each type of trip, the 
average trip length of each type of trip, the total cost, and the net cost. 

 
 7. In no way does this contract obligate the KCATA to insure that any other services 

provided by Raytown, are in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA) of 1990 or subsequent regulations. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this instrument to be executed as of the 
day and year first above written. 
 
KANSAS CITY AREA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
 
By:          
      Daniel Serda, Chairman of the Board of Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By:          
       Witness 
 
 
COMMUNITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI 
 
By:          
 
       Name & Title:__________________________________ 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By:           
       Witness 



 
 6 

Twelve-Month Contract 
November 1, 2017 – October 31, 2018 

 
 
 ATTACHMENT "A" 
 
 REVENUE AND COST ALLOCATION PROCEDURES 
 
The procedure to be used in determining passengers, direct operating expenses, indirect operating 
expenses, farebox revenue, and estimated loss for transit service shall be as follows: 
 
A. Passengers and Revenue - The number of passengers and the amount of revenue reported 

will be derived from electronic farebox reports. 
 
 1. Revenue figures are computed as follows: 
 
  a. Total Fare Revenue is the total farebox revenue plus pass sales proration. 
 
  b. Pass Sales proration for a line is the Pass Sales Revenue multiplied by a pass 

utilization factor as determined by data from electronic fareboxes. 
 
 2. Passenger types - definitions 
 
  a. Intra-city passenger - a passenger boarding and alighting in the same 

jurisdiction. 
 
  b. Inter-city passenger - a passenger who boards in one jurisdiction and alights 

in another. 
 
 3. Computation of inter-city and intra-city passengers 
 
  a. Intra-city passengers for each subsidizing jurisdiction will be determined by 

multiplying total passengers by the appropriate intra-city passengers ratios as 
determined by periodic activity checks.  An intra-city passenger ratio is the 
ratio of passengers who both board and alight a bus within that community 
to total route passengers on the line. 

 
  b. Inter-city passengers for the route will be determined by subtracting the 

intra-city passengers from the total route passengers. 
 
B. Direct Operating Expenses - Each route shall be charged direct labor and benefits on the 

basis of scheduled pay hours (including allowances, spread, guarantee, and overtime) times 
the fully burdened operator cost per hour of service for each type of bus used (Large, Small, 
or Metroflex).  Each route shall be charged fuel and tire expense for the same type of bus 
used (Large, Small or Metroflex) in the proportion of route miles per type of bus to total 
system miles for the same type of bus. 
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C. Indirect Operating Expenses - Indirect operating expenses shall be allocated to each route 

on the ratio of route miles to total system miles for the same type of bus used (Large, Small, 
or Metroflex).  Indirect operating expenses include all expenses except direct labor and fuel 
and tire expense, such as maintenance cost, vanpool operations, administrative and 
overhead expense, and a contribution to self-insured reserves for revenue vehicle and 
workers compensation. 

 
D. Estimated Net Income or Loss - Intra-City Routes - Estimated net income or loss for 

each route shall be calculated by subtracting total fare revenue for each route from the total 
operating expenses for each route. 

 
E. Allocation of Net Income or Loss on Inter-City Routes. 
 
 1. Suburban Express Routes 
 
  a. A suburban express route is a route or portion of a route that is designed to 

serve inter-city passengers and suburban community intra-city passengers, 
and does not serve Kansas City, Missouri, intra-city passengers. 

 
   b. Net income or net losses of inter-city routes shall be prorated among the 

subsidizing jurisdictions by calculating the net loss per passenger (total 
operating expense less total fare revenue) and then multiplying the net loss 
per passenger by the number of passengers boarding in each jurisdiction. 

 
 2. Local Service Inter-City Routes 
 
  a. A local service inter-city route is a route designed to serve Kansas City, 

Missouri, intra-city passengers, as well as inter-city passengers and suburban 
community intra-city passengers. 

 
  b. Revenue shall be credited among subsidizing jurisdictions by assigning 

intra-city passenger revenue to the jurisdiction in which the trips are made.  
Inter-city passenger revenue shall be assigned by calculating the revenue per 
inter-city passenger and then by multiplying the revenue per inter-city 
passenger by the number of inter-city passengers boarding in each 
jurisdiction. 

  c. Operating costs shall be allocated among subsidizing jurisdictions as 
follows: 

 
   (l) Direct labor costs shall be allocated on the basis of operator cost per 

hour of service multiplied by the actual time operated in each 
jurisdiction. 

   (2) Fuel and tire expense in the proportion of miles in each jurisdiction 
to total system miles. 
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   (3) Indirect operating expense in the proportion of miles in each 
jurisdiction to total system miles. 

 
  d. The Net Income or Loss for each jurisdiction is calculated as the sum of 

direct labor cost, fuel and tire expense, and indirect operating expense, less 
passenger revenue credit. 

 
F. Capital Expense - Each jurisdiction will be charged capital expense, prorated on 

community miles to system miles, to be used for the acquisition of buses, facilities and 
other equipment. The capital charge may be used for the purchase of vans for a vanpool 
operation that will facilitate in providing a regional transit system.  Such vanpool operation 
must provide service to or from the Community that is reasonable when compared to the 
amount of the Community’s capital contribution for the vans. 

 
G. Enclave Communities - Local service inter-city routes operating from a part of Kansas 

City, Missouri, through another jurisdiction and into another portion of Kansas City, 
Missouri, will be treated differently for the allocation of Net Income or Loss.  The Net 
Income or Loss for the intermediate (enclave) jurisdiction will be based on 50% of the 
calculated cost for that jurisdiction per Item "E".  The remaining 50% of the calculated cost 
within the intermediate jurisdiction will be allocated to Kansas City, Missouri. 

  
H. For Service Implemented After December 31, 1997 – Service implemented after 

December 31, 1997, that is above the service level that exists as of  December 31, 1997, 
will be allocated costs as stated in other sections of this Attachment, except for Indirect 
Operating Expenses.  Indirect Operating Expenses shall be allocated to such service based 
on 45 percent of the ratio of route miles to total system miles for each type of bus.  Indirect 
Operating Expenses include all expenses except direct labor and fuel and tire expense; such 
as maintenance cost, vanpool operations, administrative and overhead expense, etc.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Twelve-Month Contract 
November 1, 2016 – October 31, 2017 
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 ATTACHMENT "B" 
 
 
 CITY OF RAYTOWN 
 
 CONTRACT SERVICE 
 
 
One route will provide service within the Raytown city limits.  Service, including peak and mid-day 
is as follows: 
 
Route #253--Raytown Circulator provides demand-response service throughout all of Raytown 
and parts of Kansas City, Missouri, Monday through Friday, 6:00 a.m. to 10:00 a.m. and 2:30 p.m. 
to 6:30 p.m.  Service will be provided with 1 bus.    Reservations may be requested by calling the 
KCATA “Metroflex” office at (816) 346-0802. 
 

• Full Fare:  $1.50 one-way fare/$50 monthly pass 
 

• Reduced Fare:  $0.75 reduced one-way fare/$25 reduced monthly pass 
 

o Reduced fares are available for Medicare Cardholders, youths 12 to 18 years of age, 
seniors 65 years old and over, and persons with disabilities.  One must present a 
Metro Reduced Farecard or Medicare Card to purchase a reduced fare or a reduced 
fare monthly pass.  Applications for the Metro Reduced Farecard are available 
through calling (816) 221-0660. 
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Twelve-Month Contract 
November 1, 2016 – October 31, 2017 

 
 

ATTACHMENT "C" 
 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
 
1. The KCATA agrees to provide timely information on all transit related matters affecting the 

City to the City’s designated transit liaison. 
 

2. The KCATA and the City will work together to seek additional funding opportunities to 
support transit service in Raytown. 
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CITY OF RAYTOWN 
Request for Board Action 

 
Date: April 5, 2018      Resolution No.:  R-3077-18 
To: Mayor and Board of Aldermen  
From: Teresa Henry, City Clerk 
 
Department Head Approval:          
     
Finance Director Approval:        (only if funding is requested) 
 
City Administrator Approval:        

 
 
 
Action Requested:  Approve the resolution authorizing agents for UMB banking business.  
 
Recommendation:  Approve the recommended resolution.   
 
Analysis:  With Finance Director Briana Burrichter’s departure from the City, it is necessary to name 
replacements.  The authority granted by this resolution empowers the agents to manage the City’s 
investment activity and authorize other banking business items as required.   The attached 
accomplishes that requirement.    

 
Alternatives:  Authorize other individuals.     
 
Fiscal Impact: None 
 
Budgetary Impact 
 

 Not Applicable 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.:   R-3077-18 
 

 v:\board of aldermen meetings\agendas\agendas 2018\04-10-18\reso designating authorized official for umb banking business.doc 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING AN ORGANIZATION RESOLUTION AND 
AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI AND UMB BANK, N.A. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Raytown (City) has contracted with United Missouri Bank (UMB) 
for banking services and in connection with such banking services it is necessary to designate 
individuals authorized to act on behalf of the City for such purposes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City had previously authorized Briana Burrichter (along with other City 
officials) to perform such duties on behalf of the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Briana Burrichter, Finance Director, left her employment with the City and is 
no longer eligible to serve in such capacity; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen find it to be in the best interest of the City to authorize 
and approve the Organization Resolution and Agreement for Deposit Accounts Services attached 
hereto and made a part hereof by reference;  
 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of Aldermen of the City of Raytown, 
Missouri, as follows: 

 
 THAT the Organization Resolution and Agreement for Deposit Accounts Services, 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, is hereby authorized and approved; 

 
FURTHER THAT the officials whose names appear on the attached Organization 

Resolution and Agreement for Deposit Accounts Services are hereby authorized to execute any 
and all documents necessary in connection with said agreement and the City Clerk is authorized 
to attest thereto;  

 
FURTHER THAT all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict with this resolution are 

hereby repealed. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Aldermen and APPROVED by the Mayor of 

the City of Raytown, Missouri, the 10th day of April, 2018. 
  

 
 
 
   ________________________________ 
   Michael McDonough, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Teresa M. Henry, City Clerk 
   Approved as to Form: 
 
 
 
   ________________________________ 
   Joe Willerth, City Attorney 
 
 



CITY OF RAYTOWN 
Request for Board Action 

 
Date: April 5, 2018      Resolution No:  R- 3078-18 
To: Mayor and Board of Aldermen   
From: Missy Wilson, Interim Finance Director/ 

Economic Development Administrator 
 

Department Head Approval:          
     
Finance Director Approval:  ________________________ (only if funding is requested) 

 
City Administrator Approval:        
 

 
 
Action Requested:  Approve a Resolution amending the Business License and Liquor License 
Section of Schedule of Fees for the City of Raytown.  
 
Analysis:  The attached sections of the Schedule of Fees establishes fees associated with 
various permits, licenses and applications that are to be collected by the City.  The fees 
collected help to cover all or a portion of the cost incurred by the City with the applicable 
licenses, permits, and applications. Staff is proposing that these sections of the Schedule of 
Fees be amended by adding the following: 
 
Business Licenses: 
 

• Create a Catering/Mobile Food Truck-No Liquor Sales Business License fee of 
$40/license (Up to five (5) single 1-day events per year). 
 
The City currently does not have a specific license fee for businesses wanting to cater or 
operate a mobile food truck at an event for a single day in the City limits. 
 

• Create an Annual Catering/Mobile Food Truck-No Liquor Sales Business License fee of 
$160.00. 
 
The City currently does not have a specific license fee for businesses wanting to cater or 
operate a mobile food truck within the City limits. The annual license would allow 
catering and mobile food truck businesses to set up within the City for an unlimited 
number of events and unlimited number of days within a calendar year.  
 

• Change Heavy Construction Contractor Business License fee from $50.00 to $100.00. 
 

• Restore the Vending Machine Business License fee of $5.00/machine. 
 
Food and Liquor Licenses: 
 

• Create a Catering/Mobile Food Truck Business and Liquor License fee of 
$140.00/license (Up to five (5) single 1-day events per year). 
 
This license combines the business and liquor license to streamline the application 
process for both the applicant and City staff.  This license binds the licensee to the same 
State and City rules applicable to any other business applying for a liquor license within 
the City of Raytown and the State of Missouri. 

  



 
• Create an Annual Catering/Mobile Food Truck Business and Liquor License fee of 

$260.00/license. 
 

This license combines the business and liquor license to streamline the application 
process for both the applicant and City staff.  The annual license would allow catering 
and mobile food trucks businesses to set up within the City for an unlimited number of 
events and unlimited number of days within a calendar year. This license also binds the 
licensee to the same State and City rules applicable to any other business applying for a 
liquor license within the City of Raytown and the State of Missouri. 

 
• Create Non-Profit Organization Temporary (up to 7 days) Picnic Malt Liquor License fee 

of $15.00/license.  
 
This license follows State of Missouri provision of the issuance of a Temporary Liquor 
License to a Non-Profit organization, church, school, civic, service, fraternal, veteran, 
political or charitable club to retail sale liquor by the drink.  The State of Missouri limits 
the number of days to seven (7). 
 

• Create Non-Profit Organization Temporary (up to 7 days) Picnic Liquor By the Drink 
License fee of $37.50/license.  
 
This license follows State of Missouri provision of the issuance of a Temporary Liquor 
License to a Non-Profit organization, church, school, civic, service, fraternal, veteran, 
political or charitable club to retail sale liquor by the drink.  The State of Missouri limits 
the number of days to seven (7). 
 

Alternatives: Modify the proposed fees, not approve the resolution, or make the license fees 
cost prohibit for specific business types 
 
Budgetary Impact: The amended fee schedule will result in increased revenue to the City that 
will help pay for costs incurred by the City in processing and issuing the related licenses, 
permits, and applications.  For the initial collection year, it is estimated that these fees could 
generate a minimum of $1,000.00. 
 

 Not Applicable 
 
Additional Reports / Information Attached:  Section of Schedule of Fees 



RESOLUTION NO.:  R-3078-18 
 

 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AMENDED FORMAL AND COMPREHENSIVE 
SCHEDULE OF FEES AND CHARGES FOR THE CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI 
RELATING TO FOOD TRUCKS AND LIQUOR  
 
 WHEREAS, amending a formal Schedule of Fees and Charges by the City is desirable 
to achieve fiscal stability in obtaining the City’s overall policy goals and objectives; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen find it in the best interest of the citizens of the City of 
Raytown to adopt an amended formal and comprehensive Schedule of Fees and Charges set 
forth in Exhibit “A” attached hereto;  

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 

CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

THAT the formal and comprehensive Schedule of Fees and Charges set forth in 
Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part hereof by reference is hereby approved and 
adopted.  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Aldermen and APPROVED by the Mayor 

of the City of Raytown, Missouri, the 10th day of April, 2018.  
 
 
 
 
 ________________________________ 
 Michael McDonough, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:   
 
 
_______________________________          
Teresa M. Henry, City Clerk 
 
  
 Approved as to Form: 
 
 
 _________________________________ 
 Joe Willerth, City Attorney 



 EXHIBIT “A”  

Fee Type Current Fee Proposed Fee 

Heavy Construction Contractor $50.00 $100.00 

Vending Machine License N/A $5.00/machine 

Catering/Mobile Food Truck-No Liquor Sales 
Business License (Up to five single-1 day 
events per year) 

 

 

N/A 

 

$40/day 

 

Catering/Mobile Food Truck-No Liquor Sales 
Business License (full year)  

 

 

N/A 

 

$160 

Caterer/Mobile Food Truck Business and 
Liquor License (Up to five single-1 day 
events per year) 

 

N/A 

 

$140/day 

Caterer/Mobile Food Truck Business and 
Liquor License (full year)   

 

N/A 

 

$260 

Non-Profit (501 (c) organization, church, or 
school, etc.) Temporary (up to 7 days) Picnic 
Malt Liquor License  

 

 

 

N/A 

 

 

$15/event 

Non-Profit (501 (c) organization, church, or 
school, etc.) Temporary (up to 7 days) Picnic 
Liquor by the Drink License  

 

 

N/A 

 

$37.50/event 

 



CITY OF RAYTOWN 
Request for Board Action 

 
Date: April 5, 2018      Resolution No.:  R-3079-18 
To: Mayor and Board of Aldermen   
From: Ray Haydaripoor, Director Community Development 
 
Department Head Approval:          
 
Finance Director Approval:  ________________________ (only needed if fiscal impact) 

 
City Administrator Approval:        
 

 
 
 
Action Requested:  Approval of a Resolution amending the Schedule of Fees for the City of 
Raytown.  
 
Analysis:  The attached Schedule of Fees establishes the fees associated with various Animal 
Control fees and applications that are to be collected by the city.  The fees collected help to 
cover all or a portion of the cost incurred by the city with the applicable animal control activities 
and applications. Staff is proposing that the Schedule of Fees be amended by adding the 
following: 
 
Animal Control Fees: 
 

• City Animal License: Unaltered Animal - $20 per year 
• City Animal License: Altered Animal - $10 per year 
• City Animal License: Late Fee (30 days) additional $25.00 
• 1st impound - $50.00 
• 2nd impound - $75.00 
• 3rd and subsequent impound(s) - $150.00 
 

Alternatives:  An alternative to the recommendation would be to not adopt the proposed 
schedule and leave the Animal Control fees as they stand in the Schedule of Fees of the City of 
Raytown, or to refer the proposed schedule back to the staff for revisions and/or further review. 
 
Budgetary Impact: 
 

 Not Applicable 
 
Additional Reports / Information Attached:    

• Schedule of Fees 



RESOLUTION NO.:  R-3079-18 
 

 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AMENDED FORMAL AND COMPREHENSIVE 
SCHEDULE OF FEES AND CHARGES FOR THE CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI 
RELATING TO ANIMAL CONTROL  
 
 WHEREAS, amending a formal Schedule of Fees and Charges by the City is desirable 
to achieve fiscal stability in obtaining the City’s overall policy goals and objectives; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen find it in the best interest of the citizens of the City of 
Raytown to adopt an amended formal and comprehensive Schedule of Fees and Charges set 
forth in Exhibit “A” attached hereto;  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 
CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

THAT the formal and comprehensive Schedule of Fees and Charges set forth in 
Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part hereof by reference is hereby approved and 
adopted.  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Aldermen and APPROVED by the Mayor 

of the City of Raytown, Missouri, the 10th day of April, 2018.  
 
 
 
 
 ________________________________ 
 Michael McDonough, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:   
 
 
_______________________________          
Teresa M. Henry, City Clerk 
 
  
 Approved as to Form: 
 
 
 _________________________________ 
 Joe Willerth, City Attorney 



EXHIBIT “A” 

Fee Type Current Fee Proposed Fee 
City Animal License 
Tag  

 

Unaltered Animal - $15 per year 
Altered Animal - $5 per year 

Late Fee (30 days) additional $10.00 
 

Unaltered Animal - $20 per year 
Altered Animal - $10 per year 
Late Fee (30 days) additional 

$25.00 
 
 

 
Animal Impound Fees 1st impound - $30.00 

2nd impound - $60.00 
3rd and subsequent impound(s) - $120.00 

 

 
1st impound - $50.00 
2nd impound - $75.00 

3rd and subsequent impound(s) - 
$150.00 

 
 



CITY OF RAYTOWN 
Request for Board Action 

 
Date: April 5, 2018      Resolution No.:  R-3080-18 
To: Mayor and Board of Aldermen   
From: Ray Haydaripoor, Director Community Development  
 
Department Head Approval:          
     
Finance Director Approval:  ________________________ (only if funding is requested) 

 
City Administrator Approval:        

 
 
 

Action Requested:  Approval of a Resolution amending the Schedule of Fees for the City of 
Raytown related to construction and building inspections.  
 

Analysis:  In comparing the City of Raytown’s construction and building inspections with 
neighboring jurisdictions, it is apparent that our current fees are almost always lower than others. 
The Cities of Raymore and Grandview are also fourth-class cities with comparable populations 
whereas Lee’s Summit is a Home Rule city with a significantly larger and growing population. In an 
effort to account for more efficient, accurate and timely manner of staff time and encourage timely 
processing of inspections, Community Development staff is proposing to revise the construction 
plan review and building re-Inspection fees.  
 

Currently our construction plan review fee is based on construction permit fees and not on the 
actual time spent on reviewing construction plans. In order to better capture and absorb the staff 
time required to process the construction plan review and ensure a sound and sustainable 
process, staff is proposing that the Schedule of Fees be amended by adding the following: 
 

Building/Construction Fees:  
 

• Residential (<$150,000): $75   
• Residential (>$150,000): $75+ $1 per $1000 valuation                                          
• Multi-Family Residential/Commercial/Industrial:  $100+$1.25 per $1000 valuation 

  

On many occasions the Building Official was required and obligated to perform several more re-
inspections after a failed initial inspection, which subsequently overloaded his daily work and 
activities with multiple inspections and re-inspections. Currently our re-inspection fee to be 
assessed at the 3rd re-inspection with flat fee of $30.  Staff is proposing to amend the fee 
schedule to be assessed at the 2nd re-inspection with the fees to be collected at $30 /hr. 
 

The attached Schedule of Fees establishes the fees associated with various building inspections, 
construction plan review and applications that are to be collected by the City.  The fees collected 
help to cover all or a portion of the cost incurred by the city with the applicable licenses, permits, 
and applications.  Additionally, the proposed fee increases would make the City’s fee schedule 
more comparable with our neighboring cities.   
 

Alternatives: An alternative to the recommendation would be to not adopt the proposed 
schedule and leave the current construction and building inspection fees as they stand in the 
Schedule of Fees of the City of Raytown, or to refer the proposed schedule back to the staff for 
revisions and/or further review. 

 

Budgetary Impact: 
 

 Not Applicable 
 

Additional Reports / Information Attached:    
• Schedule of Fees 
  



RESOLUTION NO.:  R-3080-18 
 

 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AMENDED FORMAL AND COMPREHENSIVE 
SCHEDULE OF FEES AND CHARGES FOR THE CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI 
RELATING TO BUILDING AND CONSTRUCTION  
 
 WHEREAS, amending a formal Schedule of Fees and Charges by the City is desirable 
to achieve fiscal stability in obtaining the City’s overall policy goals and objectives; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen find it in the best interest of the citizens of the City of 
Raytown to adopt an amended formal and comprehensive Schedule of Fees and Charges set 
forth in Exhibit “A” attached hereto;  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 
CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

THAT the formal and comprehensive Schedule of Fees and Charges set forth in 
Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part hereof by reference is hereby approved and 
adopted.  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Aldermen and APPROVED by the Mayor 

of the City of Raytown, Missouri, the 10th day of April, 2018.  
 
 
 
 
 ________________________________ 
 Michael McDonough, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:   
 
 
_______________________________          
Teresa M. Henry, City Clerk 
 
  
 Approved as to Form: 
 
 
 _________________________________ 
 Joe Willerth, City Attorney 



EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Fee Type Current Fee Proposed Fee  Notes 
Construction Permits  
Construction Plan 
Review Fee  
 
 

25% of the total 
building permit fee 

charged only for 
projects valued in 

excess of 
$150,000.00 

 

Residential (<$150,000): $75 
 

Residential (>$150,000): $75 +$1 per 
$1,000 valuation 

 
Multi-Family 

Residential/Commercial/Industrial: 
$100 + $1.25 per $1,000 valuation 

 
 
 
Building plans only 

Building Re-
Inspection Fee 
 

After the 3rd 
inspection for the 
same permit, the 
City will charge 

$30.00/hr. 
 

After the 2nd inspection for the same 
permit, the City will charge 

$30.00/hr. 
 

 

 



CITY OF RAYTOWN 
Request for Board Action 

 
Date: April 5, 2018      Resolution No.:  R-3081-18 
To: Mayor and Board of Aldermen   
From: Ray Haydaripoor, Director Community Development  
 
Department Head Approval:          
     
Finance Director Approval:  ________________________ (only if funding is requested) 

 
City Administrator Approval:        
 

 
 
Action Requested:  Approval of a Resolution amending the Schedule of Fees for the City of 
Raytown.  
 
Analysis: In comparing the City of Raytown’s Planning and Zoning fees with neighboring 
jurisdictions, it is apparent that our current fees are almost always lower than others. The Cities 
of Raymore and Grandview are also fourth-class cities with comparable populations whereas 
Lee’s Summit is a Home Rule city with a significantly larger and growing population. The City’s 
Planning and Zoning fees as they are today do not account for the amount of staff time and 
supplies that are required to process these applications from the date received to the 2nd 
reading at the Board of Aldermen meetings.  
 
The proposed increase in fees better absorbs the staff time required to successfully process 
applications in an accurate and timely manner to ensure sound and sustainable development 
and redevelopment in Raytown, and this accounts for the public notice fee, mailing fees, and 
public notice signs as well. Additionally, the proposed fee increases would make the City’s fee 
schedule more comparable with our neighboring cities. 
 
The attached Schedule of Fees establishes the fees associated with various planning and 
zoning activities, plan review and applications that are to be collected by the City.  The fees 
collected help to cover all or a portion of the cost incurred by the City with the applicable 
planning and zoning activities. Staff is proposing that the Schedule of Fees be amended by 
adding the following: 
 
Planning and Development fees:  
 

• Preliminary Plat : $450 + $4 per lot 
• Final Plat : $300 + $ 4 per lot 
• Lot Split Lot Combination : $150 
• Right-of- Way vacation : $250   
• Conditional Use Permit : $450 
• Rezoning : $450 
• Site Development Plan / Staff Review : $300 
• Appeal of Design Overlay Standards : $350 
• Variance Application : $350  
• Additional Variance Requests : $50 per request   
• Zoning Verification Letter :  $100                                          
• New Monument Sign : $150 
• Change Copy/ New Sign Face : $50  
  
 



Alternatives: An alternative to the recommendation would be to not adopt the proposed 
schedule and leave the procedure as it stands in the Schedule of Fees of the City of Raytown, 
or to refer the proposed schedule back to the staff for revisions and/or further review. 
 
Budgetary Impact: 
 

 Not Applicable 
 
Additional Reports / Information Attached:    

• Schedule of Fees 
  



RESOLUTION NO.:  R-3081-18 
 

 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AMENDED FORMAL AND COMPREHENSIVE 
SCHEDULE OF FEES AND CHARGES FOR THE CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI 
RELATING TO PLANNING AND ZONING  
 
 WHEREAS, amending a formal Schedule of Fees and Charges by the City is desirable 
to achieve fiscal stability in obtaining the City’s overall policy goals and objectives; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen find it in the best interest of the citizens of the City of 
Raytown to adopt an amended formal and comprehensive Schedule of Fees and Charges set 
forth in Exhibit “A” attached hereto;  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 
CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

THAT the formal and comprehensive Schedule of Fees and Charges set forth in 
Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part hereof by reference is hereby approved and 
adopted.  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Aldermen and APPROVED by the Mayor 

of the City of Raytown, Missouri, the 10th day of April, 2018.  
 
 
 
 
 ________________________________ 
 Michael McDonough, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:   
 
 
_______________________________          
Teresa M. Henry, City Clerk 
 
  
 Approved as to Form: 
 
 
 _________________________________ 
 Joe Willerth, City Attorney 



EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Fee Type Current Fee Proposed Fee Code Reference / Notes 
Preliminary Plat $250 + $3/lot $450 + $4/lot Sec. 38-6 
Final Plat $100 + $3/lot $300 + $4/lot Sec. 38-7 
Lot Split/Lot 
Combination 

$100 $150 Sec. 38-10 

Right-of-Way 
Vacation 

N/A $250 Sec. 36-130 

Conditional Use 
Permit 

$250 $450 Sec. 50-443 

Rezoning $250 $450 Sec. 50-558 
Site/Development 
Plan – Staff Review 

$200 $300 Sec. 50-520/521 
Residential or 
Commercial 

Appeal of Design 
Overlay Standards 

$250 $350 Sec. 50-82 

Variance N/A $350 Sec. 50-83 
Additional Variance 
Requests 

N/A $50/request Sec. 50-83 

Zoning Verification 
Letter  

N/A $100  

New Monument 
Sign Permit 

N/A $150 Sec. 50-489 

Change Copy/New 
Sign Face 

$30 $50 Sec. 50-489 
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